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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kontafarma
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to
you the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately HK$894.1 million (2021: approximately HK$803.3
million), representing an increase of approximately 11.3% as
compared to the previous year. The loss for the year of the Group
was approximately HK$52.8 million (2021: approximately HK$4.6
million). The basic loss per share amounted to approximately
HK$0.74 cent (2021: approximately HK$0.27 cent).

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in December 2018. The
Company considers stable and sustainable
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain the dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

returns to our

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group's
results of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial
condition, future prospects, as well as statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination on
proposed dividend with the above factors taken into account, there
can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.
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Corporate Culture and Visions

Adhering to the people-oriented philosophy, the Group extensively
recruits talents from different fields, treasures our staff as our
cornerstone, insists on unity within the Group and values internal
care and communication. By actively putting the subjective initiative
of our staff into play with care and soul, the Group continuously
enhances team cohesion and realizes complementary advantages
and sincere cooperation.

During the new era of development, the Group will focus on the
target of universal health. On one hand, we look forward to the
national deployment on universal health and uphold market
orientation in our product research and development to benefit the
health of people. On the other hand, we strive to contribute to
universal health by offering quality service and create value for all
stakeholders. The Group will discharge its corporate responsibilities
to pave a new path for promoting health, join hands with various
parties and forge ahead for the health of people nationwide.

OUTLOOK
Pharmaceutical Business

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 took a heavy toll
on China’s economy and crippled the pharmaceutical industry as
well. The performance of the Group’s pharmaceutical business
segment has also been affected and fluctuated. In 2022, the
Group’s pharmaceutical business has successively experienced
adverse impacts such as extreme weather in some regions and the
peak of COVID-19 infections, but with the Group’s operational
resilience, it has achieved business growth.

As the negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic subsides rapidly,
China’s pharmaceutical industry will usher in new development
opportunities. On the one hand, the Group will focus on the
development of its existing advantageous chemical generic medicine
and active pharmaceutical ingredients industries, and on the other
hand, it will pay close attention to the investment opportunities in
emerging sub-sectors, and strive to extend its business reach to a
wider range of areas, so as to bring better long-term returns to the
shareholders.
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Fitness Business

When the safe distancing has been no longer required and capacity
limit has been lifted in Singapore since end of April 2022, the
Group'’s fitness business did not see a clear trend of recovery in
new membership sign-ups till the last quarter of 2022, during
which period we ended the financial year of 2022 with the greatest
number of new membership acquisition since the COVID-19
pandemic.

As the COVID-19 pandemic comes to an end, we believe that more
joiners will flood back to fitness centres in the coming year. Though
we have much to do to catch up on the lost memberships due to
COVID-19 pandemic, we are confident that the upward trend of
new membership acquisition will continue in 2023. The Group is
well prepared to play a key role to embrace the recovery of the
fitness industry in 2023.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders, customers and suppliers for their continuous
support to the Group. | would also like to express the Group's
appreciation for the contributions of the members of the Board and
all staff.

Bai Pingyan
Chairman

24 March 2023
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T - FREFRIAE e Extraordinary General Meeting in 2022

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s continuing
operations mainly included (i) manufacturing and sales of
prescription drugs, including chemical drugs and prescribed
traditional Chinese medicines in the PRC; and (i) operating of
fitness centres and provision of consultation services for fitness and
health activities, and operating of franchise business for royalty fee
income.

The Group was engaged in the business of sales of laboratory
related products. Such business was disposed of by the Group on
29 July 2022 and presented as discontinued operation for the year
ended 31 December 2022, and the comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been re-presented accordingly.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue and
gross profit amounted to approximately HK$894.1 million and
HK$506.2 million (2021: approximately HK$803.3 million and
HK$396.2 million) respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 11.3% and 27.8% respectively as compared with last
year. The increase in revenue and gross profit was mainly due to
the following reasons:

— For the pharmaceutical business segment, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* (R ZEEEEER QA A])
("Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) has not experienced failure of a
major product supplier in making timely delivery of production
materials in 2022, whereas Tongfang Pharmaceutical
encountered such failure in 2021 which led to negative
impact on its sales in respect of such year; and



10 EEFEREEBER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEENWmRDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AT EXEEERIAIRE

Production plant of Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd*

— RBEEBSITIEZEBENRFTREIES  —  The fitness business segment has gradually improved by
BMBMNE - overcoming the impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

REEHgE—_T__F+-A=+—HItF The Group's net loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
EZEBFEARBI09.7TEEEL(ZEZ— approximately HK$109.7 million (2021: approximately HK$56.3
FH563FEET) R-IZE-—FRHBZ million), representing an increase in loss of approximately HK$53.4
EHI53.4BBA T - BIREAREIBLA1.528 million as compared to the corresponding period in 2021. Basic loss
W(=ZF = —%F : £90.86/81l) - BFHE FFEH per share was approximately HK$1.52 cents (2021: approximately
m-EFEZRAATEREETHAMENT HK$0.86 cents). The increase in net loss was mainly due to the

ji-By [T following factors which offset the increase in revenue and gross
profit:

— BEEBHSHSTEH AEERBRETS — In respect of the pharmaceutical business segment, the Group's

BHHIERIHEERREFIEM distribution and selling expenses increased as compared with

last year due to market expansion;

— RBEEEOAE - AEEWHRZHTE  —  For the fitness business segment, government grants and
ZIERBARNHMRZUREFRD - subsidies relating to COVID-19 pandemic that the Group
AR FEWGRIE 2 TE s B B8 i L 1 received have decreased as compared with last year, and
mi R expected credit losses on receivables increased as compared

with last year; and

— AEER-ZZE-—FHE-HKRBAT —  The Group recorded a one-off gain of approximately HK$51.4
BB —RMERELNS1 4B EBETT - million from the disposal of a subsidiary in 2021.
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EERLUNERFRAAERHTRONE - BRARERRE
Quality inspection and testing device of Chongging Kangle
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* for testing the company’s product

Discontinued Operation

SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HTB4E (At R) &£ ¥ AR
~A]) (“SPF”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, SPF (Suzhou)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HiE & (M) E£¥WHMBR R F)
(collectively as “SPF Group”), are principally engaged in the sales of
laboratory related products. On 6 April 2022, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as the
vendor), Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (F3IH
EREEEETEAMBRAA) (“Shenzhen Waranty”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company (as the purchaser) and SPF entered into
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Tongfang
Pharmaceutical sold 55.43% equity interest in SPF held by it to
Shenzhen Waranty. Such transaction was duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 June 2022.

On 29 July 2022, the SPF Group was disposed of and presented as
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
re-presented accordingly.
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Liquid medicine concentrate of Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care One-step granulation of granules in Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
E 3 e BUSINESS REVIEW
BERKEER Continuing Operations
BEER Pharmaceutical Business
—E - CF  AEEBEXRBRAMENG In 2022, the revenue and gross profit of the Group’s

BRA EBRERFEER T __FI pharmaceutical business both increased, which is mainly due to that

BREE— 2T EEMHEREEIRERMNE Tongfang Pharmaceutical has not experienced failure of a major

EMHEER calEFNEERAEEE T product supplier in making timely delivery of production materials in

BHEXEBARRET BRI BZBEN 2022. This favorable change was offset by the fact that certain

@M RmARTE  MAMEHE - pharmaceutical business subsidiaries of the Group were unable to
fully recover from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
regional extreme weather.
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RO EXEBFRARKIHE

Cartoning machine of Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.*

1.

Tongfang Pharmaceutical

Tongfang Pharmaceutical is principally engaged in the
production and sales of chemical generic drugs. It has a
preparation workshop covering 30,000 square meters in
Yanging District, Beijing. Its key products are prescription
drugs and its therapeutic areas mainly include drugs for local
anesthesia and gynecological purposes. In 2022, its revenue
amounted to approximately RMB453.5 million (2021:
approximately RMB329.6 million), representing an increase of
approximately 37.6% as compared to last year; gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB412.4 million in 2022 (2021:
approximately RMB294.9 million), representing a growth of
approximately 39.8% as compared to last year.

The products of Tongfang Pharmaceutical are mainly targeted
at hospitals at all levels in China. The outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 had a greater impact on
Tongfang Pharmaceutical. With the improvement of the
COVID-19 pandemic situation in Mainland China in 2022, the
overall operation of Tongfang Pharmaceutical returned to
normal level and the terminal market was also gradually
recovering. In 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has not
experienced failure of a major product supplier in making
timely delivery of production materials as in the previous year,
therefore both the operating revenue and gross profit
increased as compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

13
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Honeyed pills production of Shaanxi Unisplendour Life

Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
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2.

RAXARBEXERRARE
Warehouse of Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*

Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*

(LN REEEERL F) (“Shaanxi Life Care”)

Shaanxi Life Care is principally engaged in the business of
Chinese medicine related fields, including the manufacturing
and distribution of Chinese medicines and the operation of
production facilities in Baoji City, Shaanxi province. Shaanxi
Life Care recorded a revenue of approximately RMB62.3
million in 2022 (2021: approximately RMB66.6 million),
representing a drop of approximately 6.5% as compared to
last year; gross profit amounted to approximately RMB26.8
million in 2022 (2021: approximately RMB31.1 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 13.8% as compared
to last year.

In 2022, Shaanxi Life Care was not able to fully recover from
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time, it
was affected by unfavorable factors such as rising raw
material prices, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in its
revenue and profitability. With the slow recovery of the
terminal sales market of Shaanxi Life Care and the rapid
increase in costs, this has brought certain challenges to the
future development of the new production base in Hi-tech
Industrial Development District, Baoji City, Shaanxi Province,
the PRC* (REIPRFEE BH ™ = RMAERMER), which is
being developed by the Group.
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Production plant of Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
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3.

Chongqing Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (E & FE5#%&
#EHERA ) (“Chongqing Kangle”)

Chongging Kangle is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sales of active pharmaceutical
ingredients (“API”) and APl intermediates in Chongqging
Changshou Chemical Industrial Park. In 2022, Chongging
Kangle recorded a revenue of approximately RMB117.2 million
(2021: approximately RMB145.2 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 19.3% as compared to last year;
gross profit amounted to approximately RMB29.6 million in
2022 (2021: approximately RMB47.8 million), representing a
drop of approximately 38.1% as compared to last year.

In 2022, Chongging Kangle successively experienced rising raw
material prices, regional power supply shortage caused by the
impact of local extreme weather, and the peak of COVID-19
infection at the end of 2022, which had a periodic negative
impact on the annual results. In 2023, with the improvement
of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Mainland China, the
performance of Chongging Kangle will gradually recover with
the word-of-mouth reputation of its products in the terminal

sales market.
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Fitness Business

The revenue of the Group’s fitness business for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$171.2 million (including
royalty fee income of approximately HK$37.8 million) representing
an increase of approximately 6.1% as compared to HK$161.3
million (including royalty fee income of approximately HK$37.8
million) last year. The net loss for the year was approximately
HK$46.0 million (2021: HK$26.4 million).

Since the easing of restrictions from the end of April 2022 in
Singapore, the Group focused on building back its sales team and
operations in preparation of recovery of the fitness industry. The
Group’s fitness business finally saw a clear improvement in
membership acquisition from October 2022, which is also reflected
in the increase in revenue for the year, whereas the net loss of
Group's fitness business widens which is primarily attributable to the
significant drop in government grants and subsidies and landlords’
rental rebates as compared to the previous year.

We pay close attention to the market trend and adjust operation
strategies accordingly. In December 2022, we have launched our
premium yoga brand named “Yoga Edition” in Singapore to attract
yoga practitioners and to increase focus on mental well-being, as
we believe that more people tend to focus on mental and physical
wellness after the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Yoga Edition reception counter, welcomes members
checking in for their rejuvenating yoga sessions.
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TFX Millenia Walk®Y EEBBEFHE : LB BBMERT 218 @R AE
RIESRE N MRARthERTE LREAZ BN EARRR
Dedicated spinning studio in TFX Millenia Walk, a newly revamped space for
members to power up their fitness with adrenaline-pumping indoor cycling workouts.

The Group’s fitness business keeps customer experience as top
priority all the time. In 2022, we continued our digitalization
efforts, embarked on virtual membership cards, revamped APP and
refreshed our website. We will continue to invest in and enhance
our technology capability, and the key development for 2023 is to
further upgrade our existing proprietary APP with more features to
enhance our customer experience.
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RARBERE A BEHEZTH] Shaanxi Life Care be awarded with
Shaanxi Life Care be recognized as "PRC Patent Certificate*”
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group's capital expenditure, daily operations and investments
during the year ended 31 December 2022 were mainly funded by
cash generated from its operations and loans from principal
bankers.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash reserves of approximately HK$122.6 million (2021:
approximately HK$174.2 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$122.6 million (2021: approximately
HK$168.0 million) and pledged and restricted bank deposits of nil
(2021: approximately HK$6.2 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding borrowings
repayable within one year of approximately HK$158.8 million and
outstanding borrowings repayable after one year of approximately
HK$103.2 million (2021: approximately HK$226.7 million and
HK$17.1 million). As at 31 December 2022, approximately 86.8%
of the Group’s outstanding borrowings were denominated
Renminbi (“RMB”) and approximately 13.2% in Singapore dollars
(“SGD"). Approximately 6.6% of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings were charged with interest at floating rates while the
remainder were at fixed rates.

in

The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total assets) of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 was as follows:

2022 2021

—E-= —E - —4F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET T T

BEE%R Total borrowings 261,925 243,802
BEE Total assets 2,120,443 2,558,775
BEABLE Gearing ratio 12.4% 9.5%

19
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Financial Management and Policy

The Group's financial policy aims at minimising the Group's financial
risk exposure. Our policy is not to engage in speculative derivative
financial transactions and not to invest current capital in financial
products with significant risk.

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Singapore and most of its transactions, related working capital and
borrowings are denominated in RMB, SGD, United States dollar
("US$”) and HK$. The Group closely monitors such foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant currency
exposure if necessary. However, since the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$ which is different from its
functional currency, the Group would inevitably face foreign
exchange exposure, whether positive or negative, arising from
translating the accounts to its presentation currency.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$206,555,000 (2021: HK$167,046,000) and lease liabilities of
HK$661,000 (2021: HK$4,776,000) were secured by the following:

2022 2021

=== —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THEx FHIT

BFEREEY Buildings and structures 81,558 98,586
KEWME Investment property 37,760 =
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 32,945 24,563
EETR Construction in progress 136,843 —
e B 558 Trade receivables — 20,123
RIT AR Bank balance 112 889
289,218 144,161
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Material Capital Commitments and Investments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

2022 2021
—=E=-— —E-—4F
HK$’000

F7B7T

HK$’000
TER

ERIABRRGA P EREBEE 2 Capital commitments contracted for but

CRAVES

not provided in the consolidated

financial statements:

—BEVE  BEA&RE

— Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

93,075 118,572

=]

RZE-_—_F+-A=+—H KXEEHFI22
(T =—% 1,305%) B L - NEE@E 7 —
ERXAREBERF N ZEHMNES  WIKE
BRIVEHGE & NI R - o BEAR
FvBRESE (PR — A ++H
fEm) RGBS 8 2GR AAKRE
Bk Al D RIERERE R BB D - ZEE
BB ECTREREAAEBELEE &
BALEABEMEBAESEU S BZES
AEBRMNIEBEAEBMEBEEEZAN

* EHRHT

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 922 (2021: 1,305)
employees. The Group maintains a policy of paying competitive
remuneration packages, and employees are also rewarded salary and
bonus on a performance related basis. In addition, share options
and awarded shares may be granted to eligible employees pursuant
to the terms of the share option scheme (which was expired on 17
January 2022) and the share award scheme of the Company,
respectively. The purpose of the schemes is to provide incentives to
the selected employees to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees, and attract
and retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

* For identification purpose only
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OVERALL APPROACH, STRATEGY, REPORTING
SCOPE AND REPORTING PRINCIPLES OF
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

About this Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
aims to illustrate the system establishment and performance of
Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we") in fulfilling its environmental and
social responsibilities, and is also published on the respective
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.kontafarma.com.hk).

Reporting Scope

This Report covers the data within the reporting period from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”) and
makes relevant disclosures in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company considers that we
have complied with the mandatory disclosure requirements and the
“comply or explain” provisions as set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The current reporting scope of this report covers the following
principal businesses of the Group:

(1) the manufacturing and sales of prescription drugs, including
chemical drugs and prescribed traditional Chinese medicine
related products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
(the “Pharmaceutical Business”). The major operating
subsidiaries of the Pharmaceutical Business include Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.* (R EEEEABRAR])
("Tongfang Pharmaceutical”), Chongging Kangle
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEFELEEER A 7))
(“Chongging Kangle”) and Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BREENXRBEHZBFRE QN F)
("Shaanxi Life Care”); and

o For identification purpose only
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(2)  Operation of fitness centers and provision of consultation
services for fitness and health activities in Singapore (”Fitness
Business”). The principal operating subsidiaries of which
include True Fitness Pte. Ltd. and True Yoga Pte. Ltd..

For the Pharmaceutical Business, Beijing Huakong Health Technology
Co., Ltd.* (dbRFELEERITABMRAE]) had no actual operation
during the Reporting Period; at the same time, SPF (Beijing)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (B & (JbR) E£WE M BRAR]) (“SPF")
and Tibet Linzhi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (P M= EEEGR A
Al) was disposed during the Reporting Period, therefore subsidiaries
without operation or disposed subsidiaries will be excluded from the
reporting scope for the Reporting Period. For Fitness Business, the
fitness centers operated under the franchise business model in
Taiwan will no longer be covered in the reporting scope of this
Report from 2022 onwards.

This Report summarises our environmental, social and governance
(“ESG") performance during the Reporting Period, and covers our
management policies, mechanisms and measures for environmental
protection, emission reduction, safe workplace, staff training and
drills, supply chain management and community investment and
engagement during the Reporting Period. We are fully committed to
operating in a manner that is economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable while balancing the interests of our
stakeholders and bringing positive impacts to the society.

Reporting Principles

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
and based on the following four reporting principles — materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency.

Materiality: We have collected, through the materiality assessment
questionnaires, and reviewed the views of internal management and
stakeholders to identify the Group’s ESG issues and assess their
relevance and materiality, so as to determine the reporting scope
and the required information for the preparation and verification of
the ESG report.

Quantitative: The ESG key performance indicators disclosed in this
Report are supported by quantitative data and measurable criteria.
The sources of all applicable data, calculation tools, methodologies,
references and conversion factors used are disclosed in the
presentation of emission data, where applicable.
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Balance: This Report provides a complete, fair, clear and

comparable overview of the Group’s ESG policies and performance.

Consistency: To facilitate stakeholders’ comparisons of the ESG
performance of the Group from year to year, the same reporting
and calculation methodologies are used as reasonably practicable in
the preparation of this Report and material changes in the
methodologies are set out in the relevant sections in detail. The
Group will also add a note in the corresponding contents of the
report to indicate any changes that may affect the comparison with
previous reports.

Governance Structure

The Group understands that ESG are crucial to the sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has established an ESG
management framework with clearly defined responsibilities to
ensure top-down and effective implementation of the ESG policies.
The Board is responsible for overseeing the effective implementation
of the Group’s ESG policies, including determining the Group's
overall ESG initiatives, understanding and controlling ESG-related
risks, as well as supervising and leading the executive committee of
the Board (the “Executive Committee”), the management and
relevant functional departments in formulating and implementing
relevant policies and measures, directing the management to
monitor the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and internal
control systems, and regularly reviewing the progress of relevant
performance and objectives. The Board approves and supervises the
preparation of the ESG Report and formulates its approach. The
working group will be responsible for the specific preparation of the
ESG Report in accordance with the instructions of the Board and
the Executive Committee.

The Group has established a strong ESG governance structure and
implemented the concept of sustainable development in its daily
work, so as to achieve sustainable growth and the foundation of
long-term success. The structure consists of three parts:

The decision-making level (the Board), the organisation level (the
Executive Committee, the management) and the executive level (the
working group, the functional departments, the subsidiaries of the
Group), which are responsible for different ESG functions and work,
respectively.
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The Board is responsible for:

developing the ESG management framework, approach,
strategy, priorities and objectives;

o overseeing the Group’s overall ESG risks and its relevant
objectives, and reviewing the relevant progress and
performance;

° ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk management

and internal control systems are in place;

. supervising and leading the Executive Committee, the
management and relevant departments to conduct the ESG-
related work; and

° approving the disclosure in the ESG Report.

The Executive Committee and the management are
responsible for:

. developing and implementing relevant policies and measures in
accordance with the ESG approaches, strategies, priorities and
objectives set by the Board;

° regularly assessing and reviewing the ESG-related progress,
performance, target progress, risks and opportunities, and
reporting to the Board;

o providing guidance on the implementation of the ESG policies
and measures to the functional departments and the
subsidiaries of the Group;

o reporting the ESG-related progress and performance to the
Board; and

° reviewing the ESG Report and submitting it to the Board for
approval.
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The working group is responsible for:

o integrating information and data collected by functional
departments and subsidiaries of the Group relating to the
Group's ESG performance; and

o engaging in the preparation of the ESG Report in accordance
with the instructions of the Board and the Executive
Committee, and reporting to the Executive Committee on the
work progress.

The functional departments and the subsidiaries of the Group
are responsible for:

° coordinating and implementing specific ESG policies, objectives
and measures;

o reporting the ESG-related work to the management;

° collecting information and data relating to the Group’s ESG
performance; and

o coordinating with the working group in preparing the ESG
Report.

Governance Approach and Strategy

The Board formulated and implemented a clear and prioritised ESG
management approach and initiative that is closely aligned with the
Company’s overall business strategy. The Executive Committee and
the management are responsible for the formulation of policies and
guidelines, and the allocation of budgets for the ESG activities and
projects in achieving sustainable development. Our vision is to
promote sustainable economies, build a solid foundation and a
bright future for the Group and enhance the value for business
partners of the Group and shareholders of the Company. Our
strategy is to comply with all environmental requirements applicable
to its scope of business and to continuously improve our
environmental management of every aspect towards the industry
best practice.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The management is committed to incorporating the ESG elements
into the strategic assessment of daily operation, and has considered
the long-term impact of stakeholders on our ESG issues. We have
appointed internal functional department and engaged external
advisor to assist the management of the Group in reviewing our
operation, in order to identify the relevant ESG issues and assess
their importance to our business and stakeholders’ interests.

The Group values the intelligence gained from the stakeholders’
insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to the business and established various communication
channels. The following table provides an overview of the Group's
key stakeholders, and various platforms and communication
methods that are used to reach, listen and respond to them.

BEAR

Communication methods

Expectations and requirements

Key stakeholders

== S THm EIES
B @A BRERZ
BEERE BT FH
BEMBEZE Bl KR E
A B %6 14
Employees Labour rights and interests Employee activities
Benefits and welfare Performance appraisal
Career development Employee handbook
Health and occupational safety Trainings and drills
Internal email
REE /R RE B, BREEZE
RFNEEERRL PHRFERE
NEME BB ERAE RIEE NS R Id
NCIN=WF b
BEFEHMH

Investors/shareholders

Return on investment

Good corporate governance system
Transparency and disclosure of
corporate information

Shareholders’ meetings
Interim and annual reports
Announcements and circulars
Official company website
Email
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Key stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication methods
BT/ BEWEEEE o EPEREER e TFHIHRHK

Bx o BIREEEAML o JREER

. BEAR . RAMFA

Government/regulatory e Compliance with laws and regulations e  Regular reporting

authorities/legal team e  Fulfillment of corporate legal e Laws and regulations

responsibilities e Global compliance platform

e Regulatory compliance

EFREBEERER s BHEEMERKE s MHBFET
¢ REXRE e BFHMA BHRNMBAEARER
o HIEEH s EZFRMBEEHRE
o MRBEE
Customers and potential e Quality products and services e  Business visits
customers e Timely delivery e Email, telephone and
e Reasonable price communication applications
e Value of services e Customer satisfaction survey
HIER, BB o  [IREFER s BHBFET
o RBEMFK o BFHMA BHRMABMAEARER
o HERRENML
Suppliers/business e Payment schedule e Business visits
partners e Stable demand e  Email, telephone and

communication applications
e Supplier performance evaluation

o o RERE e RAIBEHMU

o HEEM e HEZH

s REER e BIRIREH
Community Environmental protection Official company website

Community contribution
Economic development

Community involvement
Staff volunteering activities
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Materiality Assessment

The Group has assessed the materiality and importance of the ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Formulation of industry benchmark

o The relevant ESG areas were identified by the Group through
the review of relevant ESG reports of local and international
industry peers.

o The importance of each ESG area was determined based on
the recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide as well as
the risks on the Group through internal discussion of the
management.

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder engagement

o The Group conducts questionnaire assessments on the key ESG
areas concerned by its key stakeholders above, so as to
identify all key and material ESG issues that they consider to
be material to the Group’s business development.

o All the key and material ESG-related issues were prioritized base
on the preliminary materiality assessment result. The Group
takes into account the materiality to stakeholders and
materiality to business in prioritizing the issues.

Step 3: Validation — Determining material issues

° Assessment, identification and prioritization were made based
on the above questionnaire results, and the Executive
Committee determined and confirmed all key and material
ESG issues and areas that are important to the business
development in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide.
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BERMTE  ARESEHEERRSE Based on our assessment, this Report provides a summary disclosure
BOMEEE UTHERE HEhEARSE of the Pharmaceutical Business and the Fitness Business. The
HHEREARMOBRER - following five ESG issues are identified as our key aspects.

EENBERRSE

HEREARSEE NAEEZENREENY R ERE

Key ESG issues Reasons for identifying as material issues and risks involved

s EmBEREERLERNRUBRFOMEBER AEERETR  UEERER A
EEXE@AMG  A¥&E BER-

e ERYEMMBETABEMRMMBBERNES NEBEIEN  BEEMTSIEMH
ERHAEEMSERER -

e Product liability and quality are the core competitiveness and strategic goals of an
enterprise. An enterprise aims to survive with quality and develop with reputation.
Only enterprises with quality will have market, benefit and development.

e The relevant requirements and penalties for product sampling inspection and
substandard products are increasing, and it is essential for the Group to ensure
that the products meet the relevant requirements.

o HRROEBRMIRED - MREEREE - AR - BREREE AMRNEREL
HE RACESABT HEEREZEREZMEE -
s RBRURREEBRAUKEERBEBRBUTHE
(1) BPORAFERNEAHMSEMNA  BELELERAE
2 HRARAMNEZR  EE RELELINENRE:
() BIRARESERBERFBRITOHLE  REME
o AREFBINMERER ATNEEEMEMOER  ESEEMS -
BAEETREER

BREHERERERE  BREFERDEND R -

e Energy is the source of enterprise development. The strengthening of energy
management, energy conservation and consumption reduction, energy conservation
and emission reduction can help enterprises optimise production and enhance
comprehensive competitiveness, which are essential to their long-term development.

e The establishment of an energy management system is beneficial for the Group to
achieve its objectives as follows:

(1) to help the Company save and use energy reasonably and reduce production
and operation costs;

(2) to ensure the Company’s safe, continuous and stable production;

(3) to help the Company obtain economic and environmental benefits supported
by national energy conservation and emission reduction policies.

e  Reasonable planning and use of energy can reduce energy consumption per unit
product and improve economic efficiency.

e The Group strictly complies with and actively responds to the requirements of
environmental protection laws and regulations, focuses on strengthening the
centralized treatment of exhaust gas of pharmaceutical enterprises, and strictly
controls the emission of exhaust gas (including the emission of formaldehyde and
dust) in workshops.
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HERERSHE IAERBRENRENS RNER

Key ESG issues Reasons for identifying as material issues and risks involved

e RBHEHRBEMNERRETIEKNTHEEMNERRE -

o HERMHENARUEEELEADRRATEMEE  UREECEHBEERA -
RITEERES °

s AHNFIBHEMER FRHREBEENESNERNESE  AARRSEENZOR
FN o REEE KBRS

e Procurement and supply chain management is the basic guarantee for timely
completion of production.

e The reliability and flexibility of supplier delivery can help improve customer satisfaction,
reduce the total supply chain cost of the enterprise, and improve production
efficiency.

e Effective procurement and supply chain management helps to ensure smooth
production and product quality, and to improve the core competitiveness of an
enterprise and enhance its economic benefits.

e ATEERERELFEMEANEAEEFAITARENELAER  BEEXRER
ME-BROEEEZRNEARE  HEXNEREERANENIER KBRS
FREBMSERENOAT R -

e Talent management and development is an essential element for an enterprise’s
strategic human capital management plan, and is the primary resource and the basic
guarantee for enterprise development, which greatly promotes the development of
an enterprise. The Group shall maintain and expand its high-quality talent pool.

e RUHBKREARGERBREREENANERR  REXRKINZA - BREXETHEE
B ANRREACERTS LRI REE  ROXRYREEE-

s EREERLERY REERMOER- ﬁf'JE’\m%Tﬁi*%*J?w

o AREERERBZIERAMHERNEFAEM EERILHBELINVAR HELD
EERBROCEERNER -

e Good corporate governance is an inherent requirement for the robust operation of
an enterprise and the foundation of success. Ensuring that the enterprise complies
with relevant regulations is beneficial to enhancing the competitiveness and
reputation of the enterprise in the market and creating long-term value for the
enterprise.

e Risk management is the foundation for the steady and healthy development of an
enterprise. It is conducive to the sustainable development of enterprises.

e Compliance monitoring reduces the risk of legal liability, regulatory penalties and
goodwill loss due to illegal action and non-compliance, and continues to play a good
role in corporate governance.
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Objectives and Review

While developing its business, the Group is committed to improving
its business operation management. The Group’s operations are
generally based on the nature of production and service. Therefore,
the resources we use are mainly electricity and water. We always
aim to reduce emissions, reduce water consumption and cherish
resources, so as to reduce the impact on the surrounding
environment where we operate. At the same time, we have a
sound employment system to create a diverse, inclusive, healthy and
safe working environment, and maintain close communication with
employees to understand their needs, in particular, during the
pandemic prevention and control period, the Group gives priority to
employee safety and well-being, and provides pandemic prevention
supplies and flexible working arrangements for employees in need.
The table below summarises our key objectives.

BEMHBEE
Our objectives

1. BTIEMR .

BEAH — BRSENEHEFENAERNERER

o BREARE —RBIHEVNEBRERE HIUSROXE

1. Strict compliance o
with regulations

Legal compliance — ensuring that the Group’s business operations are in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations

e  Ethics — adhering to ethical standards of business integrity and establishing a culture

of compliance

2. WmERE .

EREE — BRESHEZRY HARPHER

s EmXE — BREMTALERERER

2. Quality assurance e
requirements

Product quality — ensuring good product quality and meeting customers’

e  Product safety — ensuring that products meet safety standards and requirements
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BEMHWER
Our objectives

3. THERER e REER — THERSERR2H BERLHBENRREYE  BOSHER M
DY R D EE A BB RE R )
o RIRERE — EHRTEEREREEMITE - WHHFAHRORRE®S
SEEL ) gy

Environmental management — regularly monitoring various environmental parameters
to minimise the relevant environmental impact, committed to saving resources,
reducing emissions and reducing the generation of solid waste

e Climate change strategy — regularly reviewing the Group’s approach to climate
change, and identifying risks and opportunities, and relevant countermeasures

ENER —BEMAEINSTIREMNRARE #FSEBEEE  WERITBHANE
RERBEK  YERRARBERETHXIL
e 2T — REIRHARIF WREEZEMNIERSR

4. People-oriented o

3. Environmental
protection

4. LAANBK

Diversity and inclusion — Respecting the labour rights and human rights of all
employees, maintaining high ethical standards, clearly stating human resources
management policies and advocating an inclusive culture within the company

e Work safety — providing employees with a supportive, happy and healthy working
environment

MARMNERNER  REBAEOLRRSE

Leveraging our expertise and resources to serve the communities in which we operate

5. EIFEHE .

5. Giving back to
society

HITZESNEEEEBSEBHEBREAA
REHEMEMREETE - RFIRE - HLEREAR
BREELRRERR YRNEZSER -EF
SHERTABRETENIL L EMERR
RBETTERZ - R - EFEEHSEEREL
BERRE HENEAZBEARETREN
R - BEEXEBOHTEHER  EESRHEBT
FHRE - e REAEMEE  TREERS

The Executive Committee and the management determine and
review the progress of ESG objectives and provide feedback through
regular reports provided by the relevant responsible persons of each
business and report to the Board. The Board reviews the
achievement of objectives and reviews the progress and
effectiveness of related matters. Meanwhile, the Board will continue
to monitor the risks brought by these material ESG issues to the
Group. As the business continues to develop, the Board has been

BRERR HEREREB TIE - RREBXR
FIER¥THIRE HEREARMEHEINKE
RE - AABMERAEMAZETAE - B
ReBaRka a8 EzAR  UKE
AEASRENXEGERBEHEIIRE £

erERBRF -

paying attention to new ESG-related issues and will continue to
oversee ESG-related work to keep abreast of the latest disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange.
The Company also ensures that all departments work closely
together to achieve the objectives of operational compliance and
social responsibility, and will continue to formulate corresponding
ESG objectives in response to the Group’s business development.
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A. Environmental
1. Emissions

Pharmaceutical Business

With the aim of reducing gas emissions, the Group regularly
conducts exhaust gas monitoring in accordance with the
requirements of various emission standards, and ensures that the
concentration of exhaust gas emissions meets the emission
standards stipulated in government regulations, such as the Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants for Catering Industry* (CZ &R ¥ K RIT 4
YPETRAZ X)), the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers*
(CGBIE R RS2 YHEMZE4)) and the Integrated Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants* ((RKFR5EYE G BEMIE®E)), etc. Relevant
emission reduction works were carried out during the Reporting
Period to achieve the goal.

In response to the promotion of alternative energy use by the PRC
government, we have continuously implemented a solar energy
power generation project (the “Solar Energy Generation Project”) in
our plant in Beijing. In this project, solar photovoltaic modules were
installed, covering an area of over 30,000 square feet and fulfilling
the daily energy consumption requirement of our plant in Beijing.
Any surplus solar power would be sold to the plants nearby. The
Solar Energy Generation Project effectively promotes the
development of alternative energy and contributes to a better
environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Meanwhile, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has regularly carried out
various energy-saving actions, eliminated heavily-polluted production
lines and related facilities and used natural gas as fuel to reduce
emissions. The exhaust gas generated by Tongfang Pharmaceutical
in its workshop during the production process of pharmaceutical
preparations mainly includes dust, exhaust gas, chemical reagent
volatilisation of laboratories, boiler exhaust gas, etc. Tongfang
Pharmaceutical has regularly carried out the monitoring of the
concentration of exhaust gas emissions and replaced relevant
facilities, such as installing electrostatic fume purifier facilities and
replacing low-nitrogen burners. In accordance with the requirements
of the pollutant discharge permit, it engaged a qualified inspection
company to carry out self-monitoring of pollutant emissions, so as
to reduce emissions and ensure that exhaust gas emissions are
controlled in accordance with the total amount permitted by the
pollutant discharge permit.
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The safety and environmental protection committee of Chongging
Kangle led various departments to implement energy conservation
and emission reduction, and gradually started to implement various
energy conservation and emission reduction work, including the
purchase of a new set of exhaust gas treatment equipment, the
application of the equipment with high energy efficiency to
eliminate obsolete machines, the centralised production to reduce
the use of packaging and forklifts, and the strengthened inspections
to deal with abnormal situations in a timely manner and to
completely eradicate environmental pollution incidents. During the
Reporting Period, Chongqging Kangle officially operated the
renovated temporal storage sites for hazardous wastes and waste
gas collection and treatment facilities at the sewage station, which
effectively collected and controlled the fugitive emissions of
temporal storage sites for hazardous wastes, and processed it
together with the waste gas from the sewage station treatment
pool and then gas emission is required to meet the standard. At the
same time, the waste gas treatment system of the sewage station
has been upgraded to level-three deep treatment device of
“condensation + water absorption + activated carbon adsorption”,
so as to further reduce exhaust gas (such as formaldehyde)
concentration emissions, effectively ensuring the up-to-standard
emission of the relevant exhaust gas. In addition, during the
Reporting Period, Chongging Kangle increased the pre-treatment of
the front-end of production of exhaust gas, the total amount of
exhaust gas emissions thereby decreased.

During the Reporting Period, since the emissions, such as nitrogen
oxides (“NOx"), sulphur dioxide (“SO,”) and dust (“PM") and
greenhouse gases emitted directly, produced from the
Pharmaceutical Business were not significant, a decision was made
not to disclose such information. In 2022, indirect carbon dioxide
("CO,") emission from electricity consumption was approximately
2,110 tonnes (2021: 4,034 tonnes). The intensity of CO, generated
per person from electricity consumption was 3.25 tonnes (2021:
4.21 tonnes). The decrease in overall emissions was due to the
decrease in electricity consumption after the disposal of SPF in
2022. For the reasons of the decrease in electricity consumption,
please refer to the section “Use of Resources” below.

During the period, the Group classified wastes, aims to reduce the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, and treated the
discharge of all wastes in strict accordance with laws and
regulations.
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Clinical waste such as reagent bottles, disposed drugs and
experimental liquid waste are the major hazardous wastes of the
Pharmaceutical Business. We start with the design of process
research and development, strengthen material recovery and
application, and negotiate with suppliers to reduce or reuse the
packaging of raw materials to reduce waste generation. We
centralise the handling of all hazardous wastes in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations. All hazardous wastes have to go
through detoxification treatments by qualified vendors before
disposal. During the Reporting Period, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has
completed the self-monitoring and environmental impact assessment
and acceptance of the pollutant discharge permit, improved the
existing environmental protection facilities, and carried out green
technical transformation on plant equipment and process flow.
Tongfang Pharmaceutical’s hazardous waste management has been
renovated and hazardous waste storage site administrators have
been employed to manage hazardous waste specially, while a more
standardised and safer environmental protection process was
implemented and addresses potential environmental hazards.

In terms of solid waste, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has fully
implemented waste classification during the Reporting Period,
strengthened the publicity and education of employees, and signed
classified waste disposal agreements with local legal waste disposal
companies to dispose of solid waste and domestic waste generated
every day, which has complied with the Regulations on the
Management of Domestic Waste in Beijing* ({1t & 11 4 /& £ 3 & 32
1&f1)) for proper waste disposal and removal; Chongging Kangle
has also set up reasonable and standardized temporary storerooms
for the disposal of domestic waste and solid waste respectively, so
as to reduce the water content of distillation residue and sludge
and reduce the disposal cost. Chongging Kangle has improved the
production process, adopted clean production and selected fine
materials, improved product quality and used long-life materials,
etc., in order to reduce the generation of solid waste from the
source.

In 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical treated a total of 21 tonnes
(2021: 7 tonnes) of hazardous waste, including chemical waste and
hazardous chemicals. The chemical waste generated by Tongfang
Pharmaceutical mainly includes waste drugs, chemical reagent waste
and waste liquid that expired within the Reporting Period;
hazardous chemicals mainly include activated carbon, ink cartridges,
empty reagent bottles produced in daily office operation and waste
organic solvents produced in production process. The powder
injection workshop of Tongfang Pharmaceutical has been producing
drug certification batches since the commencement of relevant
certification work. As the certified batch of products cannot be sold
externally and can only be treated as hazardous waste after
expiration, the volume of chemical waste disposal in 2022 increased
significantly. Tongfang Pharmaceutical strives to carry out partial
harmless treatment before the expiration of that batch of products.
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The production base of Chongging Kangle generated approximately
637 tonnes of chemical waste in 2022 (2021: approximately 496
tonnes), representing a significant increase as compared to the same
period of last year, which was due to the increase in production
volume in 2022, and the higher rate of chemical waste generated
by the types of drugs produced during the Reporting Period,
resulting in a large amount of hazardous waste reserves. Chongging
Kangle continued to implement the following measures to reduce
and control the discharge of hazardous wastes:

—  Carrying out official inspections (e.g. National Medical Products
Administration of China, and U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA"), etc.) and multiple domestic and
foreign customer audits, and pushing forward clean
production and improvements on process technology, resulting
in significant improvements of product qualities and technical
indicators as well as substantial reductions in costs and
chemical wastes;

— Improving solvent recycling fixtures to increase the recycling of
distillation and condensation facilities and cooling water,
resulting in significant increase of solvent recovery rate and
effective reduction of chemical wastes emission;

— Adopting front-end collection of chemical wastes in batches
and applying distillation-concentration regime for highly
concentrated chemical wastes, which effectively lowered the
volume of emissions and processing costs;

— Using quinclorac by some external procurements to reduce its
production;

—  Engaging professional outsourcing companies to uniformly
recycle and dispose of hazardous wastes;

—  Signing disposal agreements with newly-hired hazardous waste
disposal units to accelerate treatment efficiency and thereby

reduce environmental risks; and

— Undergoing non-hazardous treatment and disposal.
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Shaanxi Life Care, a subsidiary engaged in planting, manufacturing
and distribution of Chinese medicines, produced approximately 200
tonnes (2021: approximately 230 tonnes) of non-hazardous wastes
during 2022. Such wastes included slag/coal-fired boiler wastes after
heating and dregs/wastes produced after extraction of Chinese
medicines. During the Reporting Period, the total volume of non-
hazardous wastes decreased, which is due to the decrease in the
aggregate production volume of Shaanxi Life Care as affected by
the pandemic. In addition to the above non-hazardous wastes
produced by Shaanxi Life Care, non-hazardous wastes consumed by
finished products consisted mainly of paper boxes, plastics and
general commercial wastes. We consider the amount of materials
consumed by finished products and non-hazardous wastes was not
significant, and thus the Group decided not to disclose such
information.

Fitness Business

Since Fitness Business is a service industry, it only indirectly
produces greenhouse gases emission from electricity consumption,
and does not constitute other significant direct discharge of waste
gas, greenhouse gases, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes. During
the Reporting Period, CO, emission from electricity consumption was
approximately 804 tonnes (2021: approximately 5,739 tonnes) and
the emission intensity of CO, generated per person from electricity
consumption was 3.06 tonnes (2021: 5.90 tonnes), representing a
decrease as compared with the previous year’s emission, which was
mainly due to the decrease in electricity consumption of fitness
centers in Singapore as still being affected by the pandemic in
2022, and the CO, emission data of fitness centers in Taiwan will
no longer be covered in the Reporting Period from 2022 onwards.
Please refer to the section "Use of Resources” below for electricity
conservation measures of the Fitness Business.
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B AR

Emissions Performance Table

2 5 %%

Fitness Business

BAREMRER

Key performance indicators

L E R

Pharmaceutical Business

A1.1 PR iR A R ARRE B
BREIE o

A1.1 The types of
emissions and

MNARE IR > ARERB BB EXBIARE S EBMEENTRY (BINOx ~ SO, KPME) I
EXR BRETHRBERBER -

During the Reporting Period, the Group considered that the emissions such as NOx, SO, and
PM from the Pharmaceutical Business and the Fitness Business were not significant, and thus

respective emissions
data.

a decision was made not to disclose such information.

A1.2 BHE (BE1) KR P E P E P E - P E
R (8BE2))R =R 2,110 4,03415 8041 5,739
BBHEE (CAMEEE) mE BE: HE HE ¢
K (A& ) 2 E (40 32508, A 42108,/ A 3.06M8, A 5.9008, A
NEBESEM - §H
R E) o

A1.2 Direct (scope 1) and Emissions: Emissions: Emissions: Emissions:
indirect (scope 2) 2,110 tonnes 4,034 tonnes 804 tonnes 5,739 tonnes
greenhouse gas Intensity: Intensity: Intensity: Intensity:
emissions from 3.25 tonnes/person 4.21 tonnes/person 3.06 tonnes/person 5.90 tonnes/person
electricity
consumption (in
tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of
production volume,
per facility).

A1.3 FEEXREEEYE {2 E&Y) - 658 L2 REY) - 50218 3 A
= (A E) B EEY) - OWF BEREREY) : 21

A1.3 Total hazardous Chemical wastes: Chemical wastes: Not applicable
wastes produced (in 658 tonnes 502 tonnes
tonnes) Medical wastes: Medical wastes:

0 tonnes 2 tonnes

Al.4 FELEZEEYE EmEREY EEREY BEEBRAEEBRERNESEEZEN 2 -
2 (LABAGHE) 2000 23008

Al.4 Total non-hazardous Non-hazardous Non-hazardous The Fitness Business had no significant

wastes produced (in
tonnes)

wastes:
200 tonnes

wastes:
230 tonnes

emission of non-hazardous wastes.
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A1.5

A1.5

BAREMRER

Key performance indicators
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Description of
emission targets set
and steps taken to
achieve them.

Emissions Performance Table

L E R

Pharmaceutical Business

2021

SEPAVREREHRERBE  REFHIEE
2R EHRRERER - SWHEARERERE
ZEEBUFR PP EROBERIRE - REAFRRE
BEORBE TIEARR BIR - @5 RERER
HER KRR - ERRARIESRE LR
BB E  EXETEBENBREYEFR S
KA BE R FR IR A%t » W E FHE T APZ e B
IR A MMEITRIBERERPE TIE - QORI HTRE
FRERRE  FARGEREGERE  STEE
EORDBERBREIR - R - R - R
RERIEREEER  MBRFSLAEREE M
RTHEEERAGNELE - BEROIRES
T - UEHRSFRRANERFRETE=R
R - BRI A BERUIR A MAL B FCRCR ©

With the goal of reducing gas emissions, the
Group regularly conducts exhaust gas
monitoring in accordance with the
requirements of various emission standards,
and ensures that the concentration of exhaust
gas emissions meets the emission standards
required by government regulations. During
the vyear, the Group carried out relevant
emission reduction work to achieve the goal,
such as phasing out production lines and
related facilities with severe pollution, using
natural gas as fuel to reduce emissions;
officially operated the renovated temporal
storage sites for hazardous wastes and waste
gas collection and treatment facilities at the
sewage station. We have also implemented
the Solar Energy Generation Project and
carried out various energy conservation and
emission reduction measures, such acquiring
new exhaust gas filters, applying equipment
with high energy efficiency and centralising
production, to reduce concentration of
exhaust gas emission. Meanwhile, we
strengthened inspection, timely dealt with
abnormal situations, eliminated environmental
pollution accidents, increased the
pretreatment of the front-end of production
exhaust gas, and reduced the total amount of
exhaust gas emissions, while a third-party test
on waste gas emission was conducted twice
a year to ensure compliance with the
emission standards for purification purposes.

2 5 %%

Fitness Business
NS

/

2021

PRFIF Bk — G E ([LED|) B IREA R G5 -
PR S ORISR - EEREHAE

Apart from replacing our lighting system with
Light Emitting Diodes (“LED(s)”), we also
promoted electricity consumption and energy
saving by putting up posters in our fitness
centres.




BAREMRER

Key performance indicators

HEEEERES
FEEME TR » R
At T AT 32RO RLRE B 1R
R RERE L B R
BREXAO 27 5%

Description of how
hazardous and
non-hazardous
wastes are handled,
and a description of
waste reduction
targets set and steps
taken to achieve
them.

B AR

Emissions Performance Table

L E R

Pharmaceutical Business

2021

SESEEMETOBRIARVEEEENE
EEEYVRAR  BIOEREEHR - RFA
2EEERIF DR TAE - BEERERRE - FA
ERERT MR B A D Bl E B A4k 17 % B [E 58
FERY)  WHEEREBMBRRREHE N
RYBEMEREMBL TRERR - ARES
BENREEERE JRBERERE - RART
I EREFG - MR EKRER - REH
FERWE - RAHERRYAIEEY - R
PERYNEL - BMASBEREMNEETS
EITRE(CRINEGE - EBER  RRERE
EMERSED  WREBERDBEEYMHES - Ff
FREBEENERBENKHAEERNATET
EE(CRIE  MRIZRE 2 REE B
78 o

The Group classifies waste and targets to
reduce the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, and handles emissions in
accordance with regulations. We have
implemented waste sorting in all aspects
during the year. Through improving our
environmental protection facilities as well as
utilising hazardous waste storage sites, any
domestic wastes and solid wastes were
disposed of separately, and we sign disposal
agreements with hazardous waste disposal
units to accelerate treatment efficiency and
reduce environmental risks. In the future, we
would continue to enhance our hazardous
waste management to prevent any potential
impacts on the environment. We started with
design of process research and development,
strengthened material recovery and
application, and negotiated with suppliers to
reduce or reuse the packaging for raw
materials to reduce waste generation. We
carried out green technical transformation of
plant equipment and production process,
selected fine materials, improved product
quality and service life, and reduced waste
generation from the source. All hazardous
wastes will go through detoxification
treatment by qualified vendors before
disposal, so as to ensure that wastes are
treated and disposed of in accordance with
the requirements.
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2 5 %%

Fitness Business

BREXBERABEREANES NEZTERY
ZHER

The Fitness Business had no significant
emission of hazardous and nonhazardous
wastes.
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2. Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of green development and has
been striving to implement the 3R Principle (Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle). Through equipment and technology transformation,
changing the way water is used for production, improving water
recycling utilisation rate, rationalising production layout, and
reducing demand for water in production, the Group continuously
optimises the use of resources, aiming to reduce resource
consumption and improve resource utilisation efficiency in all
possible aspects of business operations, including energy
conservation and water conservation.

Huge amount of water is required during the medicine
manufacturing process and provision of fitness services. Our sources
of water vary and largely depend on the location of our plants and
fitness centres. We are consciously taking steps in reducing our
consumption and contributing towards maintenance and recharge of
water sources. During the Reporting Period, we purchased sewage
rights to control the amount of wastewater discharge according to
the total amount of sewage discharge license. We controlled the
source, attached importance to the selection of raw materials and
auxiliary materials for production, and took scientific and rational
measures from the raw material selection stage to reduce the
hidden dangers of pollutants; seeked alternative products for
difficult-to-process raw materials, or strengthened management to
limit the usage; adopted clean production process to reduce the
generation of wastewater during the production process. For the
wastewater generated, the Group selected suitable processes,
determined the best process parameters and operation management
mode, and treated the wastewater to meet the discharge standards.
Meanwhile, the Group adopted classified collection and separate
treatment to strengthen the recycling of wastewater, which greatly
reduces the technical difficulties and operational management
difficulties of wastewater treatment and reduces pollution. The
amount of wastewater discharge was relatively reduced through the
measures of emission reduction, and no excessive wastewater was
generated during the Reporting Period. In addition, we provide
waste recycling bins at all common areas of our plants to separate
wastes by nature for recycling and appoint recyclable waste
collection contractors to help discharge them.
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We invest in the enhancement and reformation of the Company’s
power facilities and devices. In particular, we reform street lamps
into energy-saving solar LED street lamps, remove and phase out any
production lines and relevant facilities that have serious pollution
problems with high energy consumption, with a view to reducing
electricity consumption. Since the utilisation of solar power at the
end of 2019, the power generation of clean energy as of year 2022
was approximately 2,490,000 kWh (2021: approximately 3,910,000
kWh) per year. We have completed the replacement or upgrading of
our aged equipment to models that are more efficient, and replaced
the motor water pumps with high energy consumption. For
machinery with high electricity consumption such as the
refrigeration equipment, we have used the fluoride machines for
cooling and eliminated the ammonia machines, a kind of
refrigeration equipment with high energy consumption, to replace
the refrigerating medium and prevent air pollution. We also adopt
centralised cool storage in the nighttime, and alternatively use
refrigeration equipment for cooling during peak hours of power
consumption to reduce electricity consumption. We have completed
the replacement of LED lights in our plants and offices, providing
energy savings of up to 40% compared to conventional lights.
When constructing or upgrading plants, impacts on the environment
are our key consideration.

Pharmaceutical Business

Regular energy audit or carbon audit was performed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group to monitor energy usage. All of our
pharmaceutical plants have passed the environmental assessment
certification of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China. The Solar Energy Generation Project was
implemented in our plants, and the refrigeration units with
frequency control were adopted, which provide energy savings of up
to 40%. Meanwhile, power distribution facilities were upgraded to
reduce reactive power loss and reduce the utilisation rate of air
conditioning. In order to encourage energy saving among
employees, the Pharmaceutical Business has incorporated the
amount of energy saving into department assessments, providing
performance incentives to projects with significant energy saving.
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We consumed 6.99 million kWh of electricity in 2022 (2021: 13.36
million kWh), and the intensity of electricity consumption per person
was 0.0108 million kWh (2021: 0.0139 million kWh). The decrease
in overall electricity consumption was due to the disposal of SPF
which reduced the total electricity consumption. As a laboratory
research company, SPF required more electricity and water
consumption for breeding laboratory animals. Subsidiaries of the
Pharmaceutical Business continued to implement the following
measures to reduce electricity consumption, including the
elimination of high energy consumption cooling equipment to
improve production efficiency, and the promotion of power
consumption during staggered peak hours; carry out green technical
transformation of plant equipment and process flow to improve the
level of energy conservation and consumption reduction in
production; optimize production process, reduce total electricity
consumption, and pay attention to electricity subsidy measures in a
timely manner, etc..

We replaced water taps by installing water-saving devices and
increased water-saving renovation to improve the water recycling
rate. Chongging Kangle controlled the wastewater produced during
the production process. Regular reviews on water conversation
measures were conducted to prevent any act of wasting water. No
water shall be used to wash the floor of workshops except for
process water and water for cleaning of equipment and special
work types. Washing tanks and containers containing oil, acid
liquid, lye or liquid wastes within the factory area were also
prohibited to reduce wastewater and use of water for floor
cleaning. Meanwhile, the highly concentrated wastewater produced
is pretreated at the sewage stations with special distillation and
concentration process to reduce treatment costs, and centralised
pretreatment facilities for wastewater of high salinity will be
established at the sewage stations once the transformation of these
stations is completed and put into use, which is able to reduce the
wastewater used for equipment cleansing by approximately 300
tonnes each year.
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During the Reporting Period, we consumed approximately 152,035
tonnes (2021: approximately 225,928 tonnes) of water and the
intensity of water consumption per person is 234.26 tonnes (2021:
235.83 tonnes), representing a decrease as compared to last year,
which was primarily due to the disposal of SPF resulting in the
significant drop of overall water consumption within the Reporting
Period. The annual planned water consumption of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical is 12,000 tonness, and the actual water
consumption is 10,035 tonnes, which does not exceed the planned
usage. During the Reporting Period, we continued to implement the
following measures to address the water consumption:

—  Formulate annual targets for water consumption, strengthen
water conservation supervision and management and water
recycling;

—  Reduce water resource consumption intensity and improve
utilization efficiency through measures such as process
optimization, consumption reduction technology, adoption of
equipment with small water consumption;

—  the enforcement of clean production, recycling, and prohibiting
the cleaning of workshops by using a large amount of
drinking water (use sweeping instead);

—  the production of diphenylmethyl thioacetamide, amodiaquine
hydrochloride and ecabet sodium significantly dropped due to
market factors, resulting in drop of related water use;

—  the installation of water saving devices, change of disinfection
mode, and improvement of the water recycling rate; and

—  Reduce the use of water for ground cleaning so as to reduce
water usage.
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Fitness Business

Electricity and water are the major resources used in the Fitness
Business. Apart from replacing our lighting system with LEDs, we
promote energy saving by putting up posters around the fitness
centers to remind members and staff to consume less water.
Furthermore, we are digitalising our business and transitioning
ourselves into a paper-less office. In 2022, the Singapore
government announced the relaxation of safety control measures
and the opening of borders and the lifting of social distancing
restrictions, the fitness centers in Singapore were re-opened. Due to
the ongoing effects of the pandemic, in Singapore, the area of one
fitness center was reduced after renovation and one fitness center
was closed due to the expiry of the lease, while the electricity
consumption data of the fitness center in Taiwan will no longer be
covered in the Reporting Period from 2022 onwards, resulting in a
significant decrease in overall electricity consumption. The electricity
consumption was approximately 1.98 million kWh (2021:
approximately 11.52 million kWh). The intensity of electricity
consumption per person was 0.0075 million kWh (2021: 0.0096
million kWh), maintaining the level of energy efficiency. The water
consumption in 2022 was 49,269 tonnes (2021: approximately
258,917 tonnes) and the intensity of water consumption per person
was 187.33 tonnes (2021: 201.22 tonnes) due to the decrease in
water consumption by members as a result of the closure of a
fitness center in Singapore owing to the expiry of the lease.
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Use of Resources Performance Table
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Key performance indicators

BEXK

Pharmaceutical Business

2 5 %%

Fitness Business

2021 2021
A2.1 BRSSO EE RREE= BEEE BREEE REEE
R,/ SRR (40 6.99E B T R 1336 B & T R 1.98 @B TRk N52EBETRE
(ATERFE) k&5 0.0108E & 0.0139E & 0.00758H & 0.0096 5 &
EnAGESE FEE/A FEE/A FRE,A FRE,A
i ~ BIERMEAE)
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect electricity electricity electricity electricity
energy consumption consumption consumption consumption consumption
by type (e.g. in total: in total: in total: in total:
electricity, gas or oil) 6.99 million kWh 13.36 million kWh 1.98 million kWh 11.52 million kWh
in total (in kWh) and Intensity: Intensity: Intensity: Intensity:
intensity (e.g. per unit 0.0108 million 0.0139 million 0.0075 million 0.0096 million
of production kWh/person kWh/person kWh/person kWh/person
volume, per facility).
A2.2 BREKEREE (10 HFEKE HFEKE : BREKE : HFEKE
NEEEEM 57 152,035 225,928 49,2691 258,917
Rt EHE) HE B HE BE
2342618,/ A 235.83M8, A 187.33W8, A 201.2208,7 A
A2.2 Water consumption Water consumption Water consumption Water consumption Water consumption

in total and intensity in total: in total: in total: in total:
(e.g. per unit of 152,035 tonnes 225,928 tonnes 49,269 tonnes 258,917 tonnes
production volume, Intensity: Intensity: Intensity: Intensity:
per facility). 234.26 tonnes/ 235.83 tonnes/ 187.33 tonnes/ 201.22 tonnes/
person person person person
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Description of energy
use efficiency
target(s) set and
steps taken to
achieve them.
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Use of Resources Performance Table
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Pharmaceutical Business
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Fitness Business
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We adhere to the concept of green development and implement the 3R Principle (Reduce,
Reuse and Recycle). We continuously optimise the use of resources, aiming to reduce resource
consumption and improve resource utilisation efficiency from the business operations level.

We invest in the enhancement and reform of
the Company’s power facilities and devices. In
particular, we reform street lamps into
energy-saving solar LED street lamps, remove
and phase out any production lines and
relevant facilities with high energy
consumption. In addition, the Solar Energy
Generation Project is implemented and central
air conditioning modules with frequency
control are adopted, with energy savings
reaching 40%. The power generation of clean
energy as of the end of 2022 was 2,490,000
kWh per year. Moreover, the amount of
energy saving has been incorporated into
department assessments, providing
performance incentives to projects with
significant energy saving.

Electricity and water are the major resources
used in the Fitness Business. Apart from
replacing our lighting system with LEDs, we
promote energy saving by putting up posters
around the fitness centres to remind users
and staff to consume less water.
Furthermore, we are digitalising our business
and transitioning ourselves into a paperless
office.
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Description of
whether there is any
issue in sourcing
water that is fit for
purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to
achieve them.
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We have conducted our annual water usage plan, and this year's water usage has not
exceeded the standard amount set at the beginning of the year. The Group purchased
sewage rights to control the amount of wastewater discharge according to the total amount
of sewage discharge license. Through measures of emissions reduction, the amount of
wastewater discharged has been relatively reduced, and no excessive wastewater has been
generated. We controlled the source, selected raw materials and auxiliary materials for
production that can reduce wastewater discharge using scientific and rational methods;
adopted clean production processes to reduce the generation of wastewater during the
production process. In addition, we replaced water taps by installing water-saving devices and
increased water-saving renovation to improve the water recycling rate. We are committed to
guiding employees to save water.

In addition, the wastewater produced during the production process is controlled, and highly
concentrated wastewater is treated at the sewage stations with special distillation and
concentration process. We will process wastewater using the best process parameters and
operational management mode to meet the discharge standards, and strengthen the recycling
of wastewater. Regular reviews on water conversation measures are conducted to prevent any
act of wasting water resources. We continued to implement measures throughout the year to
improve water consumption, including promoting clean production, recycling, and eliminating
the use of large amounts of drinking water to flush the workshop by adopting cleaning
methods; reduced the use of water for ground cleaning and minimise water usage.

A2.5

A2.5

SR G PR BEM
miaE (LAMEEHE)

Total packaging
materials used for
finished products (in
tonnes)

NHREZENEIERN  MAKERETNRESHER -

Materials consumed by finished goods are mainly paper boxes, plastics and non-hazardous
wastes which are general commercial wastes. Since the materials consumed for finished goods
and non-hazardous wastes are considered not significant, the Group has decided not to
disclose such information.
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3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s consumption of natural resources is relatively small in
the daily operation process, which has no significant impact on the
environment. The Group is committed to enhancing environmental
sustainability and minimising the impact on the environment and
natural resources through the above measures to reduce emissions,
waste generation and resource consumption. In case of any
pollution accident, the Group will immediately formulate an
emergency plan and report to the relevant departments to minimise
the environmental impact.

We recognise the environmental responsibilities associated with our
business and are committed to minimising the environmental
impacts of our business operation. Our environmental strategy is to
strike a harmonious balance between our business and the
environment. In order to establish a green working environment, we
request at least one-third of the managed area of our operation
plants to be green.
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Key performance indicators
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Description of the
significant impacts of
business activities on
the environment and
natural resources and
the actions taken to
manage them.
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Environment and Natural Resources Performance Table

L E R 2 5 %%

Pharmaceutical Business Fitness Business
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Our major environmental policies are as below:

— To comply with all environmental requirements applicable to our operations

— To improve the environmental structure according to the industry’s best practices

— To integrate environmental considerations in all stages of business operations (e.g.
planning, design and manufacturing)

— To enhance environmental awareness of our employees via trainings

— To support environmental activities of the communities where we operate

—  To encourage green coverage on lawns

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with local laws and regulations on
environmental protection. Relevant laws and regulations mainly include but are not limited to:

—  Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((FF%E AR £ FIER
BIRTEE))

— Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China*
((hZEARZEFE REFERED)

—  Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({2
AR LB KT LI AED)

—  Standards for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage* (/& EE AT 17,5 242 I

(=)
—  Hazardous Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Technology Policy* ({f& k& #1535 2
B 06 B AT B D)

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-compliance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations was noted in our operation.




52

EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

R HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4. Rix#E{

RIRBCERTRENTHRRR  AHAE
BEELTEARE AKERIZRARK
BENBY  BRIRBIORERBERAAL
FHGRMEEET - Bt AKEDFBIALF
AREEZRER - WH EHFEAREER TH
22 BREEREERTEMNAEERX
RISl - AEBEE FIE RIS MEE - UK
VPERZIXERBENBIZEREHRIREL
BYMERAR SEEEEHRIRRER
BUR - BT HERBCRK

4. Climate Change

Climate change leads to frequent extreme weather and has a
significant impact on daily operations. The Group pays attention to
the trend of global climate change and incorporates climate change
mitigation and adaptation into corporate social responsibility
management. Accordingly, the Group has identified and assessed
the risks of climate change and drawn up measures to safeguard
the safety of its employees, including the strict compliance with the
relevant extreme weather guidelines issued by the government. The
Group has formulated emergency guidelines and measures to
reduce future damage from disasters and cope with extreme
weather caused by climate change. The Group regularly reviews its
climate change policy to ensure its effectiveness.

RIRELEXE

Climate Change Performance Table

BREMER

Key performance indicators

t
e

A4.1 A B R TS &
BITANELEXENS
ARGHEBEE - &
JEE1TE) ©

Ad1 Description of the
significant climate-
related issues which
have impacted, and
those which may
impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken
to manage them.

X3

Pharmaceutical Business

LB 2 5 %%

Fitness Business
NS

/

2021

SEHEIZRRRECWEY  BREZLHERERMACELSETERD - CRFIL
At REEERR  YHEREARBEINGZ 2 - UREHIEEIESI MG - OB A%
RENERENPENBERRECETNEHRRAR - KEESTE R HEBEE -

B AR

The Group pays attention to the trend of global climate change and incorporates climate
change mitigation and adaptation into corporate social responsibility management. The Group
has identified and assessed the risks of climate change and drawn up measures to safeguard
the safety of its employees. It has formulated emergency guidelines and measures to reduce
future damage from disasters and cope with extreme weather caused by climate change. The
Group regularly reviews its climate change policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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B. Society
1. Employment and Labour Practices

We recognise our employees as an important asset and we provide
fair and equal opportunities to our employees regardless of their
backgrounds and genders. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
a total of 912 employees (2021: 1,180) from the business
segments. Among those employees, 649 employees (2021: 958)
were from the Pharmaceutical Business and 263 employees (2021:
222) were from the Fitness Business. The total number of
employees decreased by 366 due to the disposal of SPF in the
Pharmaceutical Business, however, the number of employees
increased due to the increased number of customers as a result of
the reopening of the fitness centers and reduced suspension of
operation during the Reporting Period. In spite of the challenges
and impacts of the pandemic on the Group, we are committed to
building an open and inspirational working environment to all our
employees.

Employment

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and age to
balance the culture and communication among employees. The
Group encourages a diverse workforce and welcomes all kinds of
employees to make the principle of fairness a common practice.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had 912
employees (2021: 1,180), of which 447 (49%) were male (2021:
546 (46%)) and 465 (51%) were female (2021: 634 (54%)).



54

EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

RE - HgRERARSE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RNEBIZMR - BRI - FEeARR KM= E The Group’s total workforce by gender, employment type, age

DHEBBHEENT ¢ group and geographical region are as follows:
BEA™
ARENIER Key performance indicators Number of employees
ZERICHE B FE
2022 2021
EEBE Total number of employees 912 1,180
EEAZ (RHERES) Total workforce (by gender)
St Male 447 546
ik Female 465 634
BELAY (RERERE D) Total workforce
(by employment type)
e Full-time 908 1,178
FERk Part-time 4 2
EEAB(RERBE D) Total workforce
(by structure)
BREIRE Senior management 23 29
PREEE Middle management 116 166
AEEBAE Rank and file employees 773 985
EER (ZFRARES) Total workforce
(by age group)
305 AT Under 30 years old 202 209
305 E505% 30 to 50 years old 607 842
505% A £ Over 50 years old 103 129
EEAY (RHEED) Total workforce
(by geographical region)
+ The PRC 649 958
T Singapore 263 222
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BEEAB(AE)
Total workforce (person)
1,500
1,300 1,180
1,100
912
900
700
500
300
100
T FF T —FF
2022 2021
EEAH (RMERNE D) EEAH(REBES)
Total workforce (by gender) Total workforce (by structure)

23

2%)
>

773
(85%)
465 447 ? 11:3
(51%) (49%) (13%)
%1t ® it ® ERERE O FREEE O HEAS
Male Female Senior Middle Rank and file
management management employees
EEAH (RFRARE ) EEAY (RHESES)
Total workforce (by age group) Total workforce (by geographical region)
103
(11%)
649 263
202 (71%) (29%)
(22%)
607
(67%)
30T @ 30E505% @ 505%MA L ® F = 0%
Under 30 30 to 50 Over 50 The PRC Singapore

years old years old years old
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Key performance indicators

Employee turnover rate/number of employee

Retaining Talents

The Group is committed to maintaining employee turnover rate at
an acceptable low level to facilitate the accumulation of skills and
experience. In 2022, the turnover rate of male employees was
approximately 24% (2021: 24%), the turnover rate of female
employees was approximately 15% (2021: 19%), and the total
turnover rate of employees was approximately 20% (2021: 21%).

The Group’s employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region are as follows:

At E
Turnover rate
ZBCC-FE —T-_5F
2022 PAA

MEAH
Employee turnover
“B-CFE -T-5E
2022 2021

20% 21% 178 250

BEERXLE (RUERED)

Employee turnover rate (by gender)

oL Male 24% 24% 108 129
pegid Female 15% 19% 70 121
EERALE Employee turnover rate

(RERARES) (by age group)

30mMA T Under 30 years old 39% 44% 78 93
307 E507% 30 to 50 years old 13% 17% 81 139
50750 & Over 50 years old 18% 14% 19 18

EERALE(RBERD)

Employee turnover rate (by geographical region)

HE
At

The PRC
Singapore

12%
38%

14% 77 135
52% 101 115
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We promote fair competition

We are committed to the principle of equal employment and
creating a working environment which provides equal employment
opportunities, so all employment decisions shall be based on
objective criteria. Equal opportunities principles are applied in all of
our formulated employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees.
Remuneration packages are determined based on responsibilities and
performance, and the Company reviews the work performance of
employees on a regular basis and may carry out performance
assessment for employees on an annual basis or according to its
business needs. Working time, rest periods and defined
contributions are in compliance with relevant labour laws and
regulations.

Pursuant to relevant employment regulations in each region, such as
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({FFEE AR HH
£ %)%)), the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China* ((HZE AR MBI B E[FE)) and the Employment Act of
Singapore, the employee handbook of each of our subsidiaries
regulates our remuneration scheme, including basic salary, bonus,
social security contribution and statutory holidays correspondingly.
We contribute social security and provident fund in compliance with
local labour law and regulations, namely the Social Insurance Law of
the People’s Republic of China* ((FF#ZE AR KEFBEIHGREE)), the
Regulations on Management of Housing Provident Funds* ({{fXE 2
HEEEIEIEM)), and the Central Provident Fund Act of Singapore,
etc. Our remuneration scheme is comparable to peers in the local
industry. Working hours and rest periods are in compliance with
local labour laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-
compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations was noted.

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment against any
employee based on his/her nationality, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, age, race, disability or any status protected by law.
Complaints about discrimination or harassment would be dealt with
impartially on a confidential basis. During the Reporting Period, no
reported instance on discrimination or harassment was noted.
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We welcome feedbacks

We encourage our employees to provide feedbacks and address
their concerns to the Company proactively. A number of channels
are in place for our employees to express grievances and complaints
which will be well-handled according to the predetermined
procedures to ensure equality to all employees when related matters
are handled.

2:  Health and Safety

We promote occupational safety and health

We are committed to providing a safe working environment to our
employees and to protecting them from occupational hazards.
Environmental, health and safety management systems are
implemented in all sites. Safety guidelines are formulated and
communicated to all employees. Relevant regulations on health and
safety that have significant impact on the Group include but are not
limited to:

— Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupation Diseases* ({7 HE A K 0 B B ¥ 75
YBIED);

—  Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({(FRZEEA
REMBZ 2 EEE)),

—  Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurances* ({ T{5/R K 1§
1)) of the PRC; and

—  Workplace Safety and Health Act of Singapore.
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The continuation of COVID-19 pandemic has significantly threatened
the public hygiene. In order for the Group to protect its staff from
infection and to diminish the spread of pandemic, the following
measures have been taken, which include:

— to formulate pandemic prevention and control plans to
strengthen the monitoring of employees’ health, such as
disinfection of operation areas, adjustment of employees’
dining time and working hours;

— to strictly implement pandemic prevention and control
measures, and report and inspect body temperature every day;

— to remind its staff to maintain good personal hygiene, for
example, wearing surgical mask properly and washing hands
frequently;

—  to require its staff to declare their health conditions and recent
travel history;

—  to require its staff who have recently travelled overseas to stay
at home for self-quarantine;

—  to adopt flexible work arrangements, allowing its staff to work
from home and strengthening social distancing;

—  to provide anti-pandemic supplies to employees; and

— to continue to pay attention to the development of the
pandemic and strengthen its pandemic prevention measures as
and when necessary.

We will continue to monitor and evaluate the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic and any other matters that may affect the
health and safety of our employees, and formulate corresponding
solutions and measures to protect our employees in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations.
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Relevant trainings are organised regularly and various safety
educations and trainings, including handling of hazardous and
chemical substances, dust explosion prevention, fire safety, fire
protection knowledge trainings and related activities, are
commenced to improve our employees’ awareness on health and
fire safety. We have appointed safety officers to supervise the safety
level of each aspect of operations and provide the Group’s
employees with information and training courses about operation of
equipment in office, production facilities, mining tools and
inspection equipment on a regular basis. Spot checks by the
management on the implementation of safety measures are in place.
Regular internal trainings and ad-hoc external trainings are provided
to our physical trainers to ensure that they are well-equipped.

During the Reporting Period, we organised and held fire drills for
fire incident caused by hazardous and chemical substance.
Particularly, Chongging Kangle carried out firefighting trainings and
on-site fire drills. In addition, annual or semi-annual fire drills were
carried out in each of our fitness centres and organised by the
property management department of the headquarters during the
year, in which all on-site personnel are required to participate. Each
fitness centre was equipped with fire safety manager responsible for
communication with the fire safety officer of the property on any
fire safety issues. Meanwhile, we also provided CPR/AED trainings to
the employees, and were awarded the Bizsafe certificate by the
Occupational Safety and Health Division of Singapore.

In respect of the Pharmaceutical Business, the Group has established
an environmental, health and safety department, formulated a
production safety management system, and regularly conducted
training and assessment for employees. All employees are
responsible for maintaining a healthy and safe working environment.
Non-compliance with the Company’s health and safety rules may
result in disciplinary action. Once an employee is found to
constitute a safety hazard, occupational disease or work-related
injury, he/she should immediately report to the manager and fill in
the form of occupational disease or work-related injury to the
management as necessary, and the relevant responsible department
will follow up and investigate such matter.
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Key performance indicators

AICHABRLE

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

—EC_CEE

(person)

For the past three years, the number and rate of work-related
fatalities of the Group were 0 (0%), 0 (0%) and 3 (0.25%) in
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and lost days due to work
injury were 0 day, 301 days and O day in 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The Group has strictly complied with the laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and safety and has
implemented practical safety management to effectively eliminate
potential safety risks.

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-
compliance with relevant occupational safety and health laws and
regulations was noted in our operation.

The number and rate of work-related fatalities of the Group
occurred in each of the past three years (including the reporting
year) are as follows:

AfkE —Bo-FE  ASKE —ToBEE BAME
2022 Percentage VLA Percentage 2020 Percentage
ON (%) (A) (%) N (%)
(person) (person)

0 0% 0 0% 3 0.25%

AEBEERTSBREIAIEREEHEMNT :

BRENER

AIBBAXTIEAH

Lost days due to work injury

Key performance indicators

The Group’s lost days due to work injury are as follows:

—EC_CEFE
2022

(R)
(days)
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3: Development and Training

We provide learning opportunities

We provide our employees with adequate trainings regarding
production, skillsets and code of behaviour. We provide appropriate
and ongoing trainings on quality, Good Manufacturing Practice
("GMP") of drugs production, and medical skillsets or knowledge to
our employees. Our system not only ensures that all suitable
employees are trained, but also monitors the effectiveness of the
trainings.

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category of the Group is as follows:

BAKE ZIAR

Number of

Percentage employees trained
SRoCEE T ZB--HE —T-FE
2022 PAA 2022 2021

RiEEBEDLL/BE Employees trained Percentage/total number of employees 88% 93% 804 1,094

ZHES AR (£RIBIS)  Percentage of employees trained (by gender)

S Male 45% 44% 359 480
pogid Female 55% 56% 445 614
ZHREEED L Percentage of employees trained (by employee category)

(ZEEERES)

RREEE Senior management 3% 2% 21 26
RRERE Middle management 13% 14% 105 153
EEBAR Rank and file employees 84% 84% 678 915
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Total Percentage of employees trained Percentage of employees trained (by gender)
12%

~ 45%

88% 55%

I % B ® ZilER Bt ® £
Employees untrained Employees trained Male Female

TlEEEAL ZEEEMNE D)
Percentage of employees trained (by employee category)

3%

84% 13%
(]

SREREE OFREEE O EEAS
Senior Middle Rank and file
management  management employees
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Key performance indicators

The data of the Group’s average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category are as follows:

FHRANEY

Average training hours Total training hours
S®-cgE -F--AF CRSSEE —F-5R
2022 PAVA 2022 2021

AZIEY

Average/Total training hours completed by employees 92 78 83,645 92,261

GBS EERRZLES

Average training hours completed by employees

(RiERIESD) (by gender)
S Male
i Female

81 72 36,362 39,487
102 83 47,283 52,774

CLEEEEERRZLES

Average training hours completed by employees

(RESERNED)

(by employee category)

BREEE Senior management 68 64 1,566 1,864
FRERE Middle management 74 72 8,567 11,976
HEEAB Rank and file employees 95 80 73,512 78,421
4: BTITHERH 4: Labour Standards
BUETHAEHET Prohibition on child and forced labour

B R BRRERBE L EAE T MR G
T ¥EHEBREFCREARKNELE L) P
(BRUEFEREBETRE)  CREF TRHKRERER
E) BB - FINE S AP EMRERR
BE - BT EABPILREBET - A&EH|
ETBRENTIHRZERF  BARMEERESE
ENAAEREFR - =N RAKRLTET
BRMA BEIAERETREHSE TR
o A ESRBERRIFAEAE TR HIRR
BEH - WIN ARBERIET RRHISTH
PEmES - SSBMETERR - MBERETR
SR THIEM - BFIEZAETRERS
REBTHEIIFAMBNBRATER TE &
BEHRREA > REERETRWH S T
ME|ESM -

Our employment policy strictly prohibits the employment of children
and forced labour, and strictly complies with the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor* ((ZEIEERAZETRE)), the Special
Protection for Juvenile Workers* ({RKFE THRFKRERT)) in the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({##E AR HLFNE 4
&)7%)) and other relevant laws and regulations in the labour laws
of the PRC and Singapore. In order to more effectively prevent the
employment of child labour, the Group has established a rigorous
age verification process to ensure that all candidates have reached
the legal age for employment. In addition, we have set up
employee suggestion boxes to allow employees to report child
labour and forced labour, so as to prevent the Group from illegally
hiring child labour or forced labour. Also, the Group has established
a reporting mechanism for child labour and forced labour to
encourage employees to report truthfully. If child labour and forced
labour are found, we will immediately investigate the causes to
ensure that no employees work overtime on an involuntary basis.
During the Reporting Period, no reported instance on child labour or
forced labour was noted.
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b: Supply Chain Management

Supply Chain Management

All our raw materials were sourced from the Group’s list of
qualified suppliers. Admission to the list of qualified suppliers must
follow strict standards. After a preliminary screening, potential
suppliers are subject to an on-site audit entailing a comprehensive
assessment of the supplier’s quality management level, capability of
ensuring a stable supply, safety and environmental management,
employee health and social responsibility, corporate culture and
business reputation, etc. The list of qualified suppliers is closely
managed with regular assessments to eliminate unfit suppliers.

The Group has established a set of clear standard procurement
management procedures, which include procedures for evaluating,
selecting and monitoring suppliers to ensure that environmental and
social risks associated with the supply chain are minimised. Before
engaging suppliers, they are required to go through a series of
audit procedures to review their quality, environmental and safety
performance in a comprehensive manner before they can be
adopted. In view of the complexity of the supply chain, each
business unit of the Group must consider different conditions and
standards when selecting suppliers, including price, service, location,
productivity (service capability) and legal procedures. At the same
time, the Group will also conduct special consultation on a case-by-
case basis and consider suppliers’ performance in social responsibility
and environmental protection. The Group conducts regular review
on suppliers every year. If a supplier is found to be in serious
violation of its agreed responsibilities and operating procedures, the
partnership will be terminated to ensure that the quality,
environment and safety performance of the supply chain are in line
with the Group’s policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 307 suppliers
(2021: 583), of which 301 suppliers were located in the PRC
(2021: 576), 2 suppliers were in the United States (2021: 2) and 4
suppliers were in other regions (2021: 5).
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AEEZRESNEBESREBEOT

The number of suppliers of the Group by geographical region is as
follows:

HER A
Number of suppliers
—ECCFE —E—FE
BRERER Key performance indicators 2022 2021
RittBE 5D By region
+ The PRC 301 576
51 The United States 2 2
HAth Others 4 5
6: EmEfE 6:  Product Responsibility
EmREF Product Responsibility

AEBEROHENIERNERE  RERE
EEMHEBNMBETENANBEECER
BT T BRAR BY P B4R ) 2 R IR H
MABERE  BRASMENTRER 28
BAREERE  WRBEBMERNRE B85
B (PEARANBHEERGEREER
N CEA B RHREZR) FHEER - M
308 By o 1 37 R T S m M PR AR S A AR U B T K
B Em AR

AEEBREFENRBEELREKE BEFPH
FREEFHRORE - Bt AREBRETH
FRENZTRREHE ARBHREETE
MERNREERZS  BES  BH%  #R0E
AR REMBERNDBBEZLRD - B
BT ABLEEEMNEREE MR -

The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding intellectual
property rights. In order to promote the cultural awareness of
intellectual property rights with respect to knowledge and integrity,
we have established a strict internal control system to manage our
intellectual property, encompassing the administration of trademarks
and patents, the management of proprietary technology and
confidentiality, and intelligence and information gathering, which
includes the compliance with relevant regulations such as the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests* ((FEARLMEEEEERIREE)) and the
Personal Data Protection Act of Singapore. Trademarks of newly
designed products would be registered on a timely basis, and
detailed descriptions of most of our products are updated on our
websites.

The Group regards customer information as the guarantee for the
safe operation of the enterprise and the healthy development of
customer relationship. Accordingly, the Group strictly complies with
various confidentiality systems stipulated by the state. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
product health and safety, advertisement, labelling, methods of
redress and protection of intellectual property rights, as well as the
relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy.
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Product quality is one of our main focuses in our business
operation. The Group is committed to providing quality products
and services to its customers, and pays attention to the customers’
feedbacks on the products sold and services provided by the Group.
In addition to the commitment, the Group is also committed to
providing quality pharmaceutical products and fitness services to its
customers at competitive prices. Customers can express their
opinions or complaints through the established communication
channels. The Group will conduct investigations and prepare reports
based on the feedbacks, and take corrective measures if necessary.
The Group has established strict product and service complaint
procedures to better understand customers’ opinions on the Group’s
services, so as to continuously improve the operation process and
service quality and enhance customer satisfaction.

Pharmaceutical Business

We provide medical-related products in accordance with the relevant
pharmaceutical regulations including the Drug Administration Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({(fr#E A R A H 2 FEIE L)), the
Regulations for the Implementation of the Drug Administration Law
of the People’s Republic of China* ((FFEARLMHZEREREE
M 5f1)), GMP, the Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical
Products* ((ZEmEEESEE %)) and the Pharmacopoeia of the
PRC* ((FREIZ£H8)) We apply and adhere to a strict set of quality
standards, and we adopt relevant policies and procedures to
identify, measure, control and sustain product-quality excellence. We
strive continuously to improve these standards in order to enhance
our quality and safety procedures and ensure ongoing compliance
with GMP. Our manufacturing facilities are inspected by national
authorities. We have adopted GMP in all of our manufacturing
plants. Our chemical drugs production base located in Beijing, the
Chinese medicines production base located in Baoji City, Shaanxi
Province, and active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates
active pharmaceutical ingredients production base located in
Chongqging City have all obtained the GMP certification from the
National Medical Products Administration of China. The active
pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates active pharmaceutical
ingredients production line located in Chongging City holds a valid
FDA certification and the Prequalification (“PQ") of the World Health
Organisation ("WHO"), while Chongging Kangle holds a valid new
WHO PQ for an active pharmaceutical ingredient. The Active
Pharmaceutical Ingredients Chloroquine Phosphate, which was
previously recognised by the National Medical Products
Administration of China (formerly known as the China Food and
Drug Administration), has also been tested and proven to be the
treatment and allopathy of pneumonia infected by COVID-19 by the
Consumable and Industrial Committee of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC* (FF B T3 F11= 8L 2B &
ah L2 7]), Chongging Economy and Informatization Commission
and the Economy and Informatization Commission of Changshou
District of Chongqing City* (EEMRSELENEB(LLEZER).
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Labelling is essential for our brand reputation. To prevent
mislabelling, we separate our production lines for different products.
All of our products are labelled with detailed information in line
with the requirements of relevant labeling laws and regulations.

According to our drug recall policy, our pharmaceutical products are
divided into three categories based on their emergence level of
harmful impacts and consequences. The drug recall policy also
prescribes that affected items shall be recalled immediately, as fast
as 24 hours. To ensure the effectiveness of the recall process, recall
drills are performed every year.

Fitness Business

The Group's fitness business will continue to enhance its in-store
experience and staff professionalism, and strive to provide customers
with high-quality fitness services with the latest state-of-the-act
cardiovascular training equipment. Our fitness centres are located in
Singapore. As at 31 December 2022, there were 8 fitness centres
(2021: 10) and 1 yoga centre (2021: 1) in Singapore. Free personal
trainers sessions are provided to new customers to help them get
familiar with the correct ways to use the equipment. We provide a
24-hour cooling-off period for each signed contract. Customers are
welcome to cancel any signed contracts within the cooling-off
period. We handle our customers’ private information in accordance
with the relevant privacy protection laws. Our fitness centres in
Singapore are awarded the “Shape Sports Awards” for four
consecutive years from 2015 to 2018 and the “Global Health &
Pharma (“GHP") Distinction Award for Yoga Classes and Facilities”
in 2020.
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AEFECESACEXAERBREPREL 2 HiE Total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and

FRIEAmMARWHSENT health reasons are as follows:
BE BoLE
Number/percentage

ERENER “BICEE B FRE
Key performance indicators 2022 2021
A2 &2 RS hMmEE @K ERER 018 9278
Total number of products subject to recalls for safety and health reasons 0 item 92 items
CEEmAR 037 3,700,000
Total products sold 0 item 3,700,000 items
EEHDERERERTRALBEREMMARNNE DL 0% 0.002%
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety 0% 0.002%
and health reasons

BEEBRNERRRBHRFEE 38R 313
Number of products and service related complaints received 38 cases 313 cases
FRUDRMEH 2R 24°R

Total number of legal dispute cases 2 cases 24 cases
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7:  Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

Honesty and fairness are important assets of the Group’s business.
The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of ethical
corporate culture. By providing integrity and anti-corruption training
and information to directors and employees, such as the Anti-
Corruption System Practice Guidelines for Listed Companies and the
Integrity Practice Guidelines for Directors, the Group ensures that all
employees strictly comply with the relevant laws, industry norms and
standards, professional ethics and company rules and regulations in
their daily operations. In order to maintain a fair and efficient
business and working environment, we put a great emphasis on
anti-corruption. The Group does not tolerate any forms of
corruption. Also, the Group has formulated the Anti-Corruption
Policy and has adopted relevant code of conduct in employee
handbook, complying strictly with relevant anti-corruption laws such
as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((F#EAR
HAMBIFIE)), the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ({(F#E ARLMBRTIEEHEFIE)), the Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery* ((BARZE -7 2 BEER 1T
AEEITHIE)), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ((FF#E ARZEMEIREEEIE)), the Civil Code of
the People’s Republic of China* ({(FPZEARLMEREE)) and the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((FFZEE AR
BlA&)%E)) to prohibit employees from extorting, charging or
accepting any form of interest from people, companies or
organisations which conduct business with the Group.
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We have formulated the Whistleblower Policy and established a
whistleblowing system, under which employees and relevant third
parties (such as customers and suppliers who have dealings with the
Group) can report all forms of suspected illegal acts, and we have
also formulated and implemented an internal integrity system to
strengthen the integrity and honesty of employees in governance
practices. The Group has established effective whistleblowing
procedures to encourage employees, directors and
relevant third parties to report any misconduct or dishonest acts,
such as acts that may lead to incorrect financial reporting,
corruption, fraud and other offences or illegal acts. If employees are
concerned about misconduct or dishonesty within the Group, they
are encouraged to report to the members of the Audit Committee
or the Executive Committee through the secretary of the Audit
Committee as soon as practicable. We will make every effort to
keep whistleblower’s identity and the reported content confidential,
pending assessment or investigation by the Audit Committee, the
Executive Committee or other designated investigators.

managers,

In addition, the Group has provided clear guidelines on misconduct,
such as bribery, corruption, embezzlement, insider trading, theft of
the Group's assets, etc., to ensure that its employees can report
their concerns to the Human Resources Department through various
channels in an absolutely confidential manner. If the case is found
to be true upon investigation, the Group will take appropriate
corrective measures and take disciplinary actions against the parties
involved. If the case involves criminal elements, the Group will refer
the case to the relevant authorities for handling. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the provisions on
prohibiting corruption and bribery and applicable legal requirements
for listed companies in Hong Kong, and has not been involved in
any legal prosecution cases regarding corruption.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group and its
employees.

71
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8: Community Investment

Community Investment

In order to better fulfil its social responsibilities, the Group actively
participates in community and charitable activities, and by
encouraging its employees to participate in charitable and social
services, devoting time and effort to support the local community, it
creates a harmonious society and undertakes the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen to contribute to the community. The Group
focuses on the living standards of the community, cultural projects,
education and development, and labour cooperation. During the
Reporting Period, the aggregate amount contributed by the
Company for charity purpose reached HK$180,000 (2021:
HK$210,000) and a total of 214 employees have participated in
voluntary activities with 2,080 service hours.

For people living in poverty, the Group helps them through
donating money or goods. As part of corporate social responsibility
initiatives, we also provide free personal training sessions to
underprivileged children in Singapore. For the Pharmaceutical
Business, we donate money to staff who are sick and for poverty
alleviation in nearby regions.
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Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (th
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within a
sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company recognises the importance of the corporate culture,
which is instilled and continually reinforced across the Group. The
Company has developed its core culture and visions to enhance
team cohesion and realize complementary advantages and sincere
cooperation, so as to facilitate the Company’s long-term sustainable
development. For details of the Company’s corporate culture and
visions, please refer to the section headed “ABOUT US” on the
Company's official website. The Board has satisfied itself that the
Company’s established purpose, values and strategy and its
corporate culture are aligned, and will continue to act with
integrity, lead by example, and promote the Company’s desired
corporate culture.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company in light of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the

Directors, the Company applied the principles of, and complied
with, all the applicable code provisions of the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year").
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven Directors in total, with four
executive Directors (the “Executive Director(s)”) and three
independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)). The composition
of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this report is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman)™ot

Mr. Chai Hongjie

Mr. Huang Yu (President)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)

INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

Note:

Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Bai
Pingyan has taken up the role of the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 19 April 2022.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
"BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" section in the Directors’ Report on pages 105 to
111 of this annual report.

As at the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Board,
there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among the Directors.
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Number of meetings held
during the Year

Board Process

During the Year, the INEDs provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) with a wide range of
expertise and experience. Their active participation in the Board and
Board committee meetings has brought independent judgement on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance, and
management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company had three INEDs, representing not less than one-third of
the Board, with two INEDs possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
his independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent
under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to
review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and
other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. The attendance
records of each Director at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and shareholders’ meetings of the Company for the Year
are set out below:

BRER
ZE®

Risks
Management
Committee

—E--E%
BRRAFAE
2022 Annual

General
Meeting

RREBAE
Extraordinary
General
Meetings

REZEE

¥Mz88 EHEEE REZE®
Audit
Committee

Investment
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Nomination
Committee

W/ BTEANEE

Number of meetings attended/held™

HOEE: Executive Directors:
RYEEREO(EE) Mr. Bai Pingyan® (Chairman)
EENEES Mr. Chai Hongjie®
EaRE(TRER) Mr. Huang Yu (President)
BRXEE(ERATE) Mr. Jiang Chaowen

(Chief Executive Officer)
BUkHGES: INEDs:
RBREE Mr. Chan Sze Chung
RInt L E Mr. Zhang Ruibin
REERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack
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33
33

33

33

33
33
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Notes:

(1)  Attendances of each of the Directors appointed or resigned during the
Year were made by reference to the number of such meetings held
during their respective tenures.

(2)  Mr. Bai Pingyan was appointed as an Executive Director and a member
of each of the executive committee and share dealing committee of
the Board with effect from 27 September 2021; and has taken up the
role of the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of each of the
executive committee, the nomination committee, the share dealing
committee and the investment committee of the Board with effect
from 19 April 2022.

(3) Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and a
chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board; and remains a member of each of the
executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board
with effect from 19 April 2022.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating
budget, annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment or
reappointment (based on the recommendations made by the
Nomination Committee), material contracts and transactions,
corporate governance, environmental, social and governance as well
as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated day-to-day responsibility to the executive management
under the instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which
has its specific written terms of reference. The respective functions
of the Board and the management of the Company have been
formalised and set out in writing and are reviewed by the Board
from time to time to ensure that they are consistent with the
existing rules and regulations.
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Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advan e
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. A notice of a regular
Board meeting of at least 14 days is given to all Directors such that
they are given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman/the President/the Chief Executive
Officer in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following
Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board, which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The 2nd amended and restated articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save
for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall not vote (nor
shall he/she be counted in the quorum) on any resolution of the
Board in respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which
such Director or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and the
related materials and to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
are continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure and Independent View Policy were
established by the Company to enable the Directors, in discharge of
their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.
The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Independent View Policy on an annual basis.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD")

In addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and review of
papers and circulars sent by the management of the Company, the
Company arranged training on topics relating to legal and
regulatory updates which are relevant to the Group’s businesses at
the Company’s expenses. The chart below summarises the
participation of each of the Directors in CPD activities during the
Year:

SHEEEXBRERED
Participation in CPD activities
HEEESERE
BEZEIN
LE:S -4
B AR EHN mEe 88
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
seminars/
Reading conference
regulatory relevant to
Name of Directors updates Directors’ duties
HITES Executive Directors:
SR Mr. Bai Pingyan v/ v
B NN - Mr. Chai Hongjie v/ v
EN-ie Mr. Huang Yu v/ v
BEN AL Mr. Jiang Chaowen v/ v
BYFHITES: INEDs:
PR BRI A Mr. Chan Sze Chung v/ v/
SR S A Mr. Zhang Ruibin v/ v
REERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack v/ v

EEHABRFONAEHESTEIIZEEE
JATRIE Z 80 2 STAHRXEC1.40G X E
RIARRFHRHAFEAMRZIFI L -

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the Part 2 of the CG Code on directors’ training
and have provided the Company with the records of their training
received during the Year.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF E

Code provision C.2.1 of the Part 2 of the CG Code provides that
the roles of the chairman and the chief executives should be
separate and performed by different individuals.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, the President and the Chief
Executive Officer are separate. Such division of responsibilities
reinforces the independence and accountability of these Directors.
Mr. Bai Pingyan, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for
leadership and effective running of the Board while Mr. Huang Yu,
the President, is responsible for strategic development of the Group
and Mr. Jiang Chaowen, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for overall management of the Group. Their respective
responsibilities have been clearly established and set out in written
form as Functions/Roles of the Board and the Senior Management
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) specifies the
director nomination process and criteria for the identifications,
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Nomination Policy” of this report.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package
from the Company Secretary or the lawyer of the Company on the
first occasion of his/her appointment. This induction package is a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the responsibilities
and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the "Companies Ordinance”), Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO"). In addition, this induction package includes materials briefly
describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation
for the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.
Directors are continuously updated on any major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices.
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All INEDs were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office but are eligible for re-election. Details of the terms of
appointment of the INEDs are set out in the section headed
“TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INEDs” contained in the Directors’
Report on page 112 of this annual report.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM"), one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment whilst
for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be
eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
in accordance with its terms of reference. The duties of the Board
in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and CPD of Directors
and senior management;

(iii)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the corporate governance
duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Investment Committee, the Risks Management
Committee and the Executive Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the
Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the
committees are required to report back to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section
headed “THE BOARD" of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board
and comprises a majority of INEDs. As at the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), who is
an Executive Director, and Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Zhang Ruibin
and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, who are INEDs.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on matters including nomination and
appointment of directors, succession planning and structure,
composition and diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and it
can seek independent professional advice according to the
Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee are included in its terms of
reference, which are available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with
matters by way of circulation. One Nomination Committee meeting
was held in 2022 and the attendance of each member is set out in
the section headed “THE BOARD" of this report. In addition to the
above-mentioned Nomination Committee meeting, the Nomination
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the
Year. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the major
work performed by the Nomination Committee was as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
renewal of an INEDs' appointment and relevant terms of the
appointment letter;

(i) assessed the independence of INEDs;

(iii)  monitored the implementation and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
and the measurable objectives under such policy and its
progress, reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval
of the Board Diversity Policy;

(iv)  reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
Nomination Policy;

(v)  reviewed the structure, size, composition of the Board and time
invested by the Directors in performing their duties taking into
account the Board Diversity Policy and the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(vi)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
Functions/Roles of the Board and the Senior Management;

(vii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
proposed resolutions for the re-election of Directors, including
an INED who have served the Company for more than nine
years at the AGM;

(viii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
change of Chairman of the Board and the new compositions
of the Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Share Dealing Committee and the Investment Committee.
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EFECHEMEREE  BERHIEFRS The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out the
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The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for
identifying director candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional search
firms. In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider
director candidates properly submitted by the Shareholders.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates
nominated by the Shareholders, are evaluated by the
Nomination Committee based upon the director qualifications.
While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion to
establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may
vary based on the composition, skill sets, and experiences of
the collective Board rather than on the individual candidate.

The evaluation of director candidates may include, without
limitation, the following:

—  review of resume and job history;

—  personal interviews,

— verification of professional and personal references; and
—  performance of background checks.

The Board will consider the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee and is responsible for designating the
director candidate(s) to be considered by the Shareholders for
their election at the AGM, or appointing any suitable
candidate to act as Director to fill a Board vacancy or as an
additional Director subject to compliance of the Articles of
Association.

All appointments of Director should be confirmed by letter of
appointment and/or service contract setting out the key
and conditions of the appointment of the Di
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The selection criteria considered by the Nomination Committee in
evaluating director candidates are as follows:

All director candidates will be evaluated based upon the director
qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc. that
can add to and complement the range of skills, experience
and background of the existing Directors.

Nomination Committee considers the following

qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new

Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
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the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s
field and the ability to exercise sound business
judgement;

the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that are
required of a member of the Board and the
commitment of time and energy necessary to diligently
carry out those responsibilities;

independence: the independent non-executive director
candidates should meet the “independence” criteria as
required under the Listing Rules and the composition of
the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the
Listing Rules; and

skills that are complementary to those of the existing
Board and the ability to contribute to the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which,
in particular, are set out as follows:

(@) participating in Board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

issues of
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taking the lead where potential
arise;

(c)  ensuring the committees of the Board on which he
or she serves to perform their powers and
functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(d) conforming to any requirement, direction and
regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Articles of Association or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

3. Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria
for director candidate, although the Nomination Committee
may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in
the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The Board
Diversity Policy sets out the objectives and principles regarding
board diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives of balanced diversity at the Board as far as practicable.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the
Board.

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to the Board and senior management levels. The
Nomination Committee will annually review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and also the abovementioned diversity
perspectives and its progress on achieving those objectives. While
the Board recognises that gender diversity at the Board level can be
improved given its current composition of all male Directors, the
Board would continue to take initiatives to identify suitable
candidates so as to appoint at least one female Director on the
Board no later than 31 December 2024. Gender diversity at
workforce levels (including our senior management) is s i
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
annual report.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
annually to ensure its effectiveness and recommend any revisions
that may be required to the Board for consideration and approval.
The Nomination Committee also monitors the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Zhang Ruibin (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and Mr. Zhang
Junxi Jack, all being the INEDs.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
of the Group and other matters relating to remuneration, reviewing
the performance of Directors and senior management in discharging
their responsibilities and conducting annual performance evaluation,
and considering the remunerations paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions for
other positions in the Group. The remuneration of all Directors is
subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to
ensure that their remunerations and compensations are reasonable.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and/or
approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and it can seek
independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy
if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee are included in its terms of reference,
which are available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The model of the Remuneration Committee described in code
provision E.1.2 (c)(ii) of Part 2 of the CG Code has been adopted by
the Company.
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accordance with its terms of reference. One Remune
Committee meeting was held in 2022 and the attendance of each
member is set out in the section headed “THE BOARD" of this
report. In addition to the above Remuneration Committee meeting,
the Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during the Year. During the Year and up to the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee had performed the work
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
remuneration package of an INED for renewal of the term of
appointment;

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Group;

(iii)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 December 2021 for
the Executive Directors and the salary increments of the
Executive Directors for the Year;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
increments of remuneration of INEDs for the Year; and

(v)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Group.

Each Director will be entitled to Director's fee which is to be
proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year.
Further remunerations payable to the Directors (including any service
fees of the INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services
will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
respective employment contracts or service contracts as approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ remunerations are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Details of
the remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in the section
headed “EMPLOYEES” contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 21 of this annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Part 2 of the CG Code, the
annual remunerations of the members of the senior management of
the Group (other than the Directors) during the Year by band is set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three
INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Sze Chung (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack. To retain
independence and objectivity, it is chaired by an INED with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The primary duty of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
its oversight of the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
financial statements of the Company, the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems, the
independence of the external auditor and the performance and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit and compliance
function. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and it can seek independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are included
in its terms of reference, which are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee meetings were
held during the Year and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “THE BOARD"” of this report. In addition to
the above Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the independent review report/audit completion
report from the external auditor and the management’s
response in relation to the final audit for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Audit”), the interim
results review for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (the
"2022 Interim Results Review”) and the final audit for the
Year (the “2022 Final Audit”);



(iii)

(vi)

(vii)
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

reviewed and recommended for the B

financial reports for the year ended 31 December

the six months ended 30 June 2022 and for the Year
together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal control review reports/summary prepared
by the business responsible officers and external consultants
respectively, and instructed that the issues raised would be
addressed and managed by the management;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
updated report on substantiation of the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

formulated, reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual
review of the Connected Transaction Policies, the Related Party
Transaction Policies and Procedures, the Whistleblower Policy,
the Anti-corruption Policy, the Policy on the Disclosure of
Inside Information and the Code of Conduct and Compliance
Manual;

reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Group; and

reviewed and approved the scope of audit by the external
auditor in respect of the 2021 Final Audit, 2022 Interim
Results Review and 2022 Final Audit, as well as reviewed and
recommended for the Board's approval of the re-appointment
of external auditor,
engagement.

and their remuneration and terms of
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Executive Committee

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee consists of
four Executive Directors, namely Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman of the
Executive Committee), Mr. Chai Hongjie, Mr. Huang Yu and
Mr. Jiang Chaowen.

The Executive Committee is vested by the Board with all the general
powers of management and control of the activities of the Group,
save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision
and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the
Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to
discuss the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with
matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly
responsible for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day
management and is empowered to:

(i) formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the
Group as determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following a specific enquiry made by the Company, that
they had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the Year. Relevant employees who, because of
their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information have been requested to comply with the provisions of
the Model Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from the finance department of the Company, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The reporting
responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, BDO Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 123 to 131
of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control
. Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Through
establishing the Audit Committee, Risks Management
Committee and the risk management team (”Risk
Management Team”) under it, the Board reviews the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems and performs its obligations of
continuously supervising and managing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Risks Management Committee currently consists of four
members, namely Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack (Chairman of the Risks
Management Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and
Mr. Zhang Ruibin, who are the INEDs, and Mr. lJiang
Chaowen, who is the Executive Director.
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During the Year, the Group has engaged an external
consultant to assist the Group in the assessment of risk
management, performance of its internal audit function and
conducting annual internal control review according to the
requirements of the CG Code. The assistance facilitated
annual review of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the Year. The effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the Year was considered and reported by the management
to the Board.

Risk Management Process

The Group’s risk management uses a blended top-down and
bottom-up approach for identifying risks. Through identifying
the internal and external sources of risks in the existing
business of the Group (including pharmaceutical and fitness
businesses), the known possible risk events and their areas of
impact are assessed. The identified risks of the Group are
categorised into 4 main areas which
operational, reputation and human resources. A discussion of
the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included
in the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the Directors’ Report on page 101 of this annual report.

involve financial,

Risks of the Group are ranked as high, medium or low levels
under risk evaluation in terms of five categories of
consequence and five categories of likelihood of occurrence.
Risk level evaluates the residual risk levels based on the
controlling power of existing controls. The result from the risk
analysis is evaluated to determine whether or not identified
risks are within expected tolerance levels. Through the risk
evaluation, risks are transferred, shared, eliminated or
effectively controlled through proposed risk mitigation
measures. For each proposed risk mitigation measure based on
the results of risk evaluation, a risk owner is designated to
follow up on the risk treatment, and an expected completion
date of the relevant mitigation measure should be assigned to
ensure accountability for risk mitigation. The relevant
information of risk evaluation is documented in the top risk
records of the Group, which are put together and escalated to
the Risks Management Committee and the Board for
discussion and approval after the risk registers are being
provided by the operating subsidiaries and consolidated by the
Risk Management Team.
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The roles and responsibilities of operating su es,
Management Team, Risks Management Committee
Board in risk management are as follows:

Summary of the works of risks managements from operating
subsidiaries to the Risk Management Team:

o Preparing and updating the risk register of the operating
subsidiaries semi-annually

o Following up on the remediation status of the proposed
risk mitigation measure documented in the top risk

records semi-annually

o Identifying any significant risks from operating subsidiaries
semi-annually

o Real-time monitoring any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group

Summary of the works of risks managements from the Risk
Management Team to the Risks Management Committee and
the Board:

° Reviewing the remediation status of top risks annually

o Reviewing any updates to the risk universe annually

o Updating the risk management policy, including risk
assessment criteria annually

° Reviewing top risk identification including top risk
dashboard, risk universe and top risk records annually

o Real-time monitoring any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group
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Internal Audit

Internal audit plays an important role in internal controls,
which is to assist the Audit Committee in carrying out analysis
and appraisal of the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group's internal control systems. During the Year, the Group
engaged an external consultant to facilitate the internal audit
function of the Group. The Company set up a three-years
internal audit work plan according to the risk evaluation
results. The external consultant conducted the review of
internal audit projects for the Year in accordance with the
approved three-years internal audit work plan. The review
included understanding the operation processes of the
proposed scope of review through interviews with the
management and the responsible persons; performing
walkthrough testing for relevant internal control system
processes; identifying weaknesses of the design and
implementation of the internal control system; providing
relevant suggestions for improvement; making enquiries to the
management and person in charge of the process for
remediation; and reviewing relevant documents to understand
and analyse the implementation situation of review
suggestions stated in the 2021 internal audit report which
have yet to be rectified. The above scope of work and review
method have been confirmed and approved by the Audit
Committee.

Through the internal control review report and summary for
the Year provided by the external consultant and Internal
Audit Department/business responsible officers respectively, the
Audit Committee and the Board analysed the internal control
findings and suggestions; and assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal audit function. The issues raised
in the internal control review report and summary would be
promptly addressed and more strongly managed by the
management. The risk management and internal control
systems of the Company will be reviewed on an annual basis.
The Audit Committee and the Board are satisfied that there
are effective and adequate risk management and internal
control systems in the Company for the Year.
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Annual Confirmation

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than
completely eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. It has a key role in the management of risks that
are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. The
Board, through the Audit Committee and with the assistance
of the Internal Audit Department/business responsible officers
and the external consultant, has conducted annual review on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the Year and considered such systems to be
effective and adequate for the Year. The Board also
considered the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions as
well as those relating to performance and reporting of
environmental, social and governance to be adequate. The
management has provided a confirmation to the Risks
Management Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness
of these systems for the Year.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has a policy with regard to the principles and
procedures for handling and disseminating the inside information of
the Company in compliance with the requirements under Part XIVA
of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

o designated reporting channel for relevant officers in possession
of potential inside information to notify the persons
designated by the Board (the “Designated Persons”);

° designated Persons to assess the potential inside information
and provide advice, and where appropriate, to escalate such
information for the attention of the Board to resolve on
further actions so as to comply with applicable laws and
regulations; and

° restrictive access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Group’s external auditor in

respect of audit services and non-audit services for the Year is set

out as follows:

FERT
HK$'000

BAREERME 2R Services rendered for the Group
Z AR Audit services 2,361
FZRBRG (BEEHPHEER Non-audit services (including review of
Hih) interim results and others) 761
HEt Total 3,122
NREWE COMPANY SECRETARY
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ERRZBE
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BHASEZENEREBZRIEXRER
BERZ M BREPHRERFR 2ERE
Ko ZEBRMXHERKOBZAREHRK
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FREMERI  ARBZBERAGTIRHEE
ERERESTTHERR CHETERIERR

Ms. Si Tou Man Wai is the Company Secretary and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Ms. Si Tou's brief biographical
details are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” in the Director's
Report on page 111 of this annual report.

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules stipulates that an issuer’'s company
secretary is required to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. It is confirmed that
Ms. Si Tou has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Such published documents together with the latest
corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.

In addition to publication of information, the general meetings of
the Company provide important opportunities for constructive
communication between the Board and the Shareholders.
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The 2022 AGM was held on 10 June 2022. Th a
President, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the Risks
Management Committee were not able to attend the 2022 AGM in
person due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, but by means of
video conference. The chairman of the Audit Committee, who
attended the 2022 AGM in person, took the chair of the 2022
AGM. The aforesaid Directors and the representatives of the external
auditor of the Company were present thereat either in person or by
means of video conference to answer questions to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders. The attendance record of the
Directors at the 2022 AGM is set out in the section headed “THE
BOARD" of this report.

The chairman of any independent Board committee formed as
necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent Board committee)
should also be available to answer questions of the Shareholders at
any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meeting for each
substantial issue, including but not limited to the re-election of
Directors and the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the
independent auditor of the Company in the 2022 AGM.

The notice to Shareholders is sent at least 21 days before the
meeting in the case of AGM and at least 14 days in case of all
other general meetings. An explanation of the detailed procedures
of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The chairman answers questions
from the Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll
results are published in the manner prescribed under the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s shareholders and investor
engagement and communication activities conducted during the
Year and was satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholders communication policy.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company can request the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting according to Article 64 of the Articles of
Association by written requisition, with stated business proposed to
be transacted, which must be validly served at the head office and
principal place of business of the Company registered in Hong Kong
(the "Head Office”) or at Tricor Secretaries Limited, the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong (the “Registration
Office”). Besides, Shareholders may make a proposal at a
Shareholders’” meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board
at the Head Office or at the Registration Office in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the
proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s business
scope.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy. A
Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board to the Head Office
for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In
addition, Shareholders can contact the Registration Office for any
questions about their shareholdings. Shareholders and the
investment community who have any query in respect of the
Company, and comments and suggestions to Board or management
of the Company may contact the Company Secretary by email to
info@kontafarma.com.hk or serve a letter at the Head Office. In
addition, they may at any time make a request to the Company
Secretary for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

As regards a proposed election of a person as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company at
http://www.kontafarma.com.hk.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
posted its Articles of Association on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.


http://www.kontafarma.com.hk
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For the purposes of, among others

Company Name, (i) conforming to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Cayman Islands Companies Act, (iii) providing
flexibility to the Company in relation to the conduct of general
meetings by electronic means, and (iv) incorporating other
consequential and housekeeping amendments, the Company has
adopted the second amended and restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company by special resolution passed
on 24 August 2022 and effective on 29 August 2022. Details of
amendments were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 July 2022, 24 August 2022, 20 September 2022 and the
circular of the Company dated 2 August 2022. Saved as disclosed,
there was no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the Reporting Period.

Pursuant to the announcement dated 24 March 2023 of the
Company, the Board proposes to amend the existing memorandum
and articles of association of the Company for the purposes of,
providing that the Shareholders may by ordinary resolution, rather
than a special resolution, to remove the Company’s auditor in order
to conform to the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set out in
Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Bai Pingyan
Chairman

24 March 2023
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EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are
set out in note 55 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

The Group's revenue for the Year was derived mainly from activities
carried out in the Mainland China, Singapore and Taiwan. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the Year is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 132 to 134 of this annual report
and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
Year (2021: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of the
distributable reserves of the Company was approximately
HK$1,136.2 million.

Details of the Company’s reserves during the Year are set out in
note 54 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totaling approximately HK$71.2 million. Details of these and other
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” respectively from pages 6 to 8, pages 9 to
21 and pages 22 to 72 of this annual report and the paragraphs
below. The discussion and analysis in the “CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT”, "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and
“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT" form part
of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Pharmaceutical Business

The problems encountered by the Group’s pharmaceutical business
are still the uncertainties brought by the medical reform in
Mainland China. Facing the current situation, the Group’s
pharmaceutical business has always maintained a positive response
attitude and strives to give full play to its professional advantages in
new product research and development, market expansion and
capacity upgrading, so as to enhance its ability to resist risks.

Fitness Business

In April 2022, Singapore government has fully lifted community safe
management measures and border control measures, where lives
were slowly getting back to normal. The rebound was softer than
expected, with consumer confidence gradually improving but not at
a rate as anticipated, challenges increased from opening new
franchise shops in an already saturated market. Other than the
uncertainties of fully recovering the members we have lost during
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s fitness business is also facing
challenges arising from increased labour and operating costs,
sluggish economic conditions, inflationary pressures and rising
interest rates.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks. A discussion of
the policies and procedures on the management of each of the
major types of financial risks which the Group is facing is included
in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to the
relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal consultants of the Company and the company secretarial
department.

Details of compliance with relevant laws and regulations are set out
in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 22 to
72 of this annual report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Details of relationships with employees, customers and suppliers are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
22 to 72 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) as disclosed under note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares, or require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares, were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company has expired on
17 January 2022. The details are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remunerations offered to the employees of the Group generally
include salaries, medical benefits and bonus on a performance
related basis. The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board and are decided by the
Board, as authorised by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) at the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, the Directors’
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the second
amended and restated articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing Shareholders.



104

EEEHE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BERECBREELRZFE

AEEAR-—FAEEZRITEEDERAR
HEE FHEAKERTEEZERDNE
RAFREGE M EMRMES - REBRA
FELEREEEALANEZENOR
2,259,000/ 7T °

PMBHE

AEEBETREAMBFREZEEUNEER
BEMBENANFRE324E -

B R R

ARRLEFMERRARERATMAZE
EABBRE -

EE

RAFEARBEAREAHIEZERTNT :

HITES(HITESED

AFEREND(EmE)
SETRN S )
=R E (7T ABRE)
BHEXRE(BEEHTE)

BYFHTES(BUFHTEED

BREBIEE L
SRIm i e A
REERE

X

BE-ZR-_FOATABR  RERNEETHEE
EEXERIFEULAFELEECESEIRE B -

EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank borrowings of the Group which are repayable within one year
are classified as current liabilities. Repayment analysis of bank
borrowings of the Group is set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. The Group had interest
capitalized on assets constructed in progress amounted to
approximately HK$2,259,000 during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 324 of this
annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. Bai Pingyan Mt (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Hongjie Mot

Mr. Huang Yu (President)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (the
“INED(s)")

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

Note:

Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Bai
Pingyan has taken up the role of the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 19 April 2022.
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Pursuant to Article 109 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Bai
Pingyan, Mr. Chai Hongjie and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack shall retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2023
AGM") to be held on 9 June 2023.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Bai Pingyan, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on
27 September 2021 and 19 April 2022 respectively. He is also the
chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board. Mr. Bai has extensive experience in
corporate and finance management. He is currently the chairman of
the board of directors of Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management
Co., Ltd.* (FRYIMERMBEEETE AR AF]) (“Shenzhen Waranty”),
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and the chief accountant
of Shanxi Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (ILPEERKE
£ B AR AR (“Shanxi Construction”). Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Bai had been the deputy head of the finance department and
head of equity investment department of Huayang New Material
Technology Group Co., Ltd.* CGEG#HM AR EEGRQR)
(formerly known as Yangquan Coal Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.* (F5
REZE (£E)BREL AT, the chief accountant and director of
Shanxi Zhaofeng Aluminum Industry Co., Ltd.* (ILFEJKLIREFR
H{TAR]), the chief accountant of Yangquan Coal Industry
Chemical Group Co., Ltd.* (FREZ(ETEEABREFAT) and
the deputy general manager and chief accountant of Shanxi
Yangmei Chemical Investment Co., Ltd.* (IIPERS (L TIREBRE
fE£/2d)). Mr. Bai had also been the director of Yangmei Chemical
Co., Ltd. (BBE(L TIH B BR A F]) (stock code: 600691), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
chairman of the board of directors and general manager of
Yangquan Coal Industry Group Tian'an Industry Incubator Co., Ltd.*
(GREXEBRTEXZRRBMREMLAT) and the chairman of
the board of directors and general manager of Yangquan Coal
Industry Group Huaneng Coal Power Investment Co., Ltd.* (f% R &
¥EEFERHBIREBREMTAT). Mr. Bai obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree at the Nankai University in June
2009. He was qualified as a senior accountant* (IE = A& &&tET) in
December 2019.
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EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Mr. Chai Hongjie, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 3 September 2020. He is a member of each of
the executive committee and the share dealing committee of the
Board. Mr. Chai served as the Chairman of the Board of the
Company from September 2020 to April 2022. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience in corporate management and strategic
planning for business development. He is currently a director of
Shenzhen Waranty, a controlling shareholder of the Company, and
the director and the general manager of Shenzhen Huakong Seg
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000068), the issued shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chai held positions as chairman of the board, directors and
senior management in various companies and organisations,
including Changzhi Division of China Banking Regulatory
Commission* (FEIRITEEBEEEZEGRAFEES M), Jinshang
Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2558), the H shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), Shanxi Guoxin Investment Group Co., Ltd.*
(LR {EHEEBMAR A R]), Zhonghesheng Capital Management
Co., Ltd* (FEREAREEHFRAAE]), Shanxi Financial Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (LA @& EFERERE B R A F]), Shanxi
State-owned Capital Operation Co., Ltd.*(LLPEE R E B K ELHE
A A]), and Shanxi Guotou Sports Industrial Group Co., Ltd.* (ILPE
B BEEEEEARAF]). He had also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shenzhen Waranty and a director of several
listed companies, including Shanxi Securities Company Limited (stock
code: 002500), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and GuangYuYuan Chinese Herbal
Medicine Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600771), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Chai obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Economics from Department of Finance, Shanxi
Institute of Economics* (LA 42 FT) (now known as Shanxi
University of Economics* (ILUFAEFAEAER)) in July 1996. He was
qualified as an intermediate accountant* (&R EETEN) in May
1997.
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Mr. Huang Yu, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company and the President of the Group on 15 March 2014
and 3 September 2020 respectively. He is a member of each of the
executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Huang served as the Chairman of the Board of the Company
from July 2014 to September 2020. He is currently an executive
director and general manager of Shenzhen Aorongxin Investment
Development Co., Ltd.* OFIITEBEEIEEZERER QA and the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Penghua Fund
Management Co., Ltd* (JEZEHE TR BR A F]). Mr. Huang had
also been a director and senior management of several listed
companies, including the chairman of the Board and a
non-executive director of Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (stock code:
1868), the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, a non-executive director of Technovator
International Limited (stock code: 1206), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the vice
chairman and president of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* ([& 7 &%
BRA7]) (“Tsinghua Tongfang”) (stock code: 600100), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen Huakong Seg Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 000068), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Huang obtained a master’s
degree in Science from the University of Greenwich.
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Mr. Jiang Chaowen, aged 57, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, an Executive Director and the
Vice President of the Group on 11 December 2017, 23 January
2018 and 3 September 2020, respectively. He is also a member of
each of the executive committee, the risks management committee
and the share dealing committee of the Board. He joined the Group
in July 2016, and is currently the president of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* (R ZEEEHFR A F]) and the
chairman of Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEFE%E
BB PR A 7)), Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (BePas e RIEZEE AR A A]) and Huakong Innovation (Beijing)
Institute of Pharmaceutical Research Co., Ltd.* (¥FE#E&IH (4t 7)) &4
MR B R A 7)), all of which are subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Jiang has over 30 years of extensive management experience in
the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Jiang is currently a director of
Chonggqing Jewelland Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (8 i i B8 B5p0 2%
BRAR]) ("Chongging Jewelland”) and Si Chuan Jewelland
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (PUJIfERERIZEATR A A]) (“Si Chuan
Jewelland”). Prior to joining the Group, he held positions of
chairman and general manager in The First South-west
Pharmaceutical Factory* (PHF 2% — &) (Chongging Qingyang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEBHEXBRAF])), Chongging
Jiachen Biological Engineering Co., Ltd.* (EEERAWIREAR A
Al), Chongging Jewelland and Si Chuan Jewelland. Mr. Jiang
graduated from the School of Business Administration of Chongging
University with a postgraduate qualification. He further studied at
the Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Chongging City,
Tsinghua University, Southwest China Normal University, and
Chongging University etc. during working time.
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INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung, aged 53, was appointed as an INED on
20 December 2011. He is the chairman of the audit committee and
a member of each of the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee, the risks management committee and the investment
committee of the Board. Mr. Chan has been an independent
non-executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1073) since July 2019, the issued shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prior to joining the Company, he had acted
as the chief financial officer (from December 2009 to August 2010)
of Coolpoint Energy Limited (now known as Viva China Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8032), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, as the acting chief financial officer (from
September 2008 to March 2009) of Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical
Products Limited, the issued shares of which were previously listed
on the Stock Exchange, and as the vice chief financial officer (from
March 2009 to November 2009) of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (now
known as Nam Tai Property Inc.) (NYSE: NTPIF), the issued shares of
which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. During the
period from January 1993 to August 1997, Mr. Chan was employed
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and served as a senior accountant at
the time of his resignation. He graduated from the University of
Wales with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting and Finance in
July 1991 and obtained a Master of Arts degree in Accounting and
Finance at the University of Lancaster in December 1992. Mr. Chan
is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Besides, he is recognised as
a chartered financial analyst by the CFA Institute of the United
States of America.
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Mr. Zhang Ruibin, aged 50, was appointed as an INED on 24 July
2014. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of each of the audit committee, the
nomination committee, the risks management committee and the
investment committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang is an external
director of Moutai Group Company Limited* (FF B & /N3 & B E
B AREFEEAF]). Mr. Zhang has been (i) an independent director of
Guizhou Panjiang Refined Coal Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600395), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from 18 May 2013 to 23 March 2017; (ii) an independent director
of China Zhenhua (Group) Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 000733), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from 5 June 2015 to 17 December
2021; (iii) an independent director of Guizhou Qianyuan Power Co.,
Ltd (stock code: 002039), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from 12 September 2014 to
20 November 2020; (iv) an independent director of Poly Union
Chemical Holding Group Co., Ltd. (formally known as Guizhou
Jiulian Industrial Explosive Materials Development Co., Ltd) (stock
code: 002037), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 10 March 2016; and (v) an
executive director of Beijing Wudaokou Education & Technology
Co., Ltd* (GLRABOHERZAERAF) since 22 July 2016.
Mr. Zhang holds a doctoral degree in statistics from the Xiamen
University. He was a postdoctoral research fellow at the Renmin
University of China and The Finance Research Institute of the
People’s Bank of China* (Bl ARIRTTE B ZEFT). He obtained a
qualification of non-practicing certified public accountant in China.
He was qualified as a senior economist by the Human Resources
Department of Guangdong Province* (BHR& AEEE). He was
qualified as a certified treasury professional of The Association for
Financial Professionals. He has been awarded the research project
second prize by The Securities Association of China and the key
research project third prize by the People’s Bank of China.
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Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, aged 59, was appointed as an INED on
21 August 2015. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of the risks
management committee and a member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of teaching
and research experience in the field of economics, finance and
business management. He graduated from the Nankai University
with a bachelor degree in Physics in July 1983, and obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree in July 1986 and a
doctoral degree in the Department of Economics at the University of
Pittsburgh in the United States in August 1992. Since August 1992,
Mr. Zhang has taught in a number of renowned universities
worldwide, including The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
University of Dundee in the United Kingdom, National University of
Singapore and The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang served as a
vice president of the Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
from 2012 to 2018, and he is currently the dean of faculty of
business at Chu Hai College of Higher Education in Hong Kong.
From February 2013 to December 2019, he was an independent
director of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 9668), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange since
2020.

Senior Management

Ms. Si Tou Man Wai, aged 45, was appointed as the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of the Company on
7 November 2014 and the vice president of the Group on
3 September 2020. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. Si Tou has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financing and financial advisory services
including mergers and acquisitions, valuation and corporate
restructuring, gained from both professional firm and listed
company. Prior to joining the Company, she worked at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong for around 12 years. From 29 June
2015 to 26 September 2016, she was an independent
non-executive director of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited (now
known as China Hongbao Holdings Limited)(stock code: 8316), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Si Tou
holds a Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management and a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance from the
University of New South Wales. She is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.
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Mr. Zhang lJie, aged 39, was appointed as the Vice President of the
Group on 3 September 2020. Mr. Zhang is currently the deputy
secretary to the Communist Party Committee and the board
secretary of Shenzhen Waranty and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to that, he worked as the political
officer of Shanxi Guotou Sports, and an officer at Yuncheng
Municipal Party Committee of Communist Youth League* (k& E
B ™Z). Mr. Zhang obtained a postgraduate qualification (Ff7t4
EF) in Economics from the Party School of the Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China (FF £/ REK) in July 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

On 17 January 2022, with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the Board
approved the renewal of service contract of Mr. Chan Sze Chung as
an INED for a term of two years commencing from 18 January
2022.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INEDS

Mr. Chan Sze Chung was appointed for a specific term of two
years, which shall continue until 17 January 2024, subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.

For Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, their terms of
appointment shall be three years, which commenced on 24 July
2020 and 21 August 2021 respectively, and are subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.
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Name of associated corporate

HEEEER) £ ER AR ([HEED
SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (”SPF")
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Share(s)”), underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Interests in associated corporation

G B R E S
BHED L

Approximate

percentage of
Interest in the
514 associated

Capacity corporation

EnEAA 5.47%

Beneficial owner
Note:

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Jiang Chaowen owned 5.47% interests in the
registered capital of SPF, a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shenzhen
Waranty.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director
has declared interests in the following businesses (other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the
Group) which are considered to compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during
the Year:

Mr. Jiang Chaowen holds directorship in and has interests in the
share capital of Chongging Jewelland. Chongqging Jewelland
engages in the wholesale of chemical Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients and its preparations, antibiotic Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients and its preparations, biochemical drugs and proprietary
Chinese medicines. In addition, he holds directorship in Si Chuan
Jewelland. Si Chuan Jewelland engages in the production and sales
of tablets, medical technology development, and technology transfer
and consultations. The business of the abovementioned companies
is likely to compete with the pharmaceutical business of the Group.

As other members of the Board are independent of the board of
directors of those companies which engage in competing businesses
and no single Director can control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from the businesses of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (not being the INEDs)
had an interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the Year and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s businesses to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director or any entities connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year save for the
major and connected transactions announced by the Company on
6 April 2022 and the circular dated 26 May 2022, and the
continuing connected transactions announced by the Company on
6 April 2022 respectively.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors and every one
of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the Directors or any of them, shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty in their offices or otherwise in relation thereto provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year which provides appropriate coverage
for legal actions brought against the Directors.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate with the
exception of granting of share options to subscribe for Shares under
the Share Option Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or executed
during the Year.
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RREBHE

Name of Shareholders

hEEEEEREGRAR ([REREE])
China Health Management Investment Limited
(“China Health")

ERMREEER(FE)ARQA
(TERMBEE]

Waranty Assets Management (HK) Limited
("Waranty Hong Kong”)

RYNE R 2R
Shenzhen Waranty

ERRTR=-BERREREESCAREE
(ERaXE)([=FB#&K])

Ningbo Free Trade Zone Sanjin Guotou Private
Equity Fund Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)* (“Sanjin Guotou”)

IIpiijcE
Shanxi Construction

LA ELABREERRAEERF
(MUAmERE])

Shanxi Province Expressway Group Limited
Liability Company* (”Shanxi Expressway”)

AR BIERERABER AR ([ILUAKZRE]
Shanxi Transportation Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“Shanxi Transportation”)

EEFEREEER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES

At 31 December 2022, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
following Shareholders (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had 5% or more interests in the Shares or
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

"R
Long positions
BARERD L

Approximate
KR&OHAE percentage of
&5 Number of interest in

Capacity Shares shareholding

BEnEiE A 3,172,778,000 56.77%
Beneficial owner

SEHEE R 3,172,778,000? 56.77%

Interest of a controlled
corporation

RESEERER 3,172,778,000® 56.77%
Interest of a controlled
corporation

SIEHEE S 3,172,778,000¥ 56.77%

Interest of a controlled
corporation

RESEERER 3,172,778,000% 56.77%
Interest of a controlled
corporation

SEHEE R 3,172,778,000© 56.77%

Interest of a controlled
corporation

A B R S 3,172,778,0007 56.77%
Interest of a controlled
corporation
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"R

Long positions

BOREBD

Approximate

R&HEE percentage of

BRREH 514 Number of interest in
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shareholding

WAEBEBEERNEZEARA HEGEEER 3,172,778,000® 56.77%
(Félé@*‘*"ﬂ)(ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁé ETRS =N
KREELERRA)
Shanxi State-owned Capital Operation Co., Interest of a controlled
Ltd.* (“State-owned Capital Operation Co.") corporation
(Formerly known as Shanxi State Capital
Investment and Operation Co., Ltd.*)

WS ARBANBEEEEEBEELZES R EE R 3,172,778,000? 56.77%
(MPEEEEZE])

State-owned Assets Supervision and Interest of a controlled
Administration Commission of Shan Xi corporation

Provincial Government (“Shanxi Government
Commission”)

BERTEHEERERA ESEAA 513,994,000 9.20%
(BEERHEBE])
THTF Energy-Saving Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

("THTF Energy-Saving”)

Resuccess Investments Limited (“Resuccess”) TEEHLEEER 513,994,000 9.20%
Interest of a controlled
corporation

[ 75 B tn HEHDEEE R 513,994,00012 9.20%
Tsinghua Tongfang Interest of a controlled

corporation
B 5 Notes:

(1) HECFEIEPBRREEM3,172,778,0000% 8815 2 (1) The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interests of China Health
FREERERER in 3,172,778,000 Shares.

() ERFEEEAPEREESEHITRA100% (2)  Waranty Hong Kong owns 100% interests in the issued share capital

2w ARESARTEERESERZ of China Health and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
B AE#ERD - RIBZS REBEBRO - it Shares in which China Health is interested. The figure refers to the
HTEPBRERARRKRNER - same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

() AU EMFEREEMBARERRE S (3)  Shenzhen Waranty, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely

mEREREESEITRA100% 2 #ER - B Waranty Hong Kong, owns 100% interests in the issued share capital
IR AR RIEREEER 2 RIDTHE of China Health and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
s o RIBFEF RBERY - B FHHE Shares in which China Health is interested. The figure refers to the

R RN ER - same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.
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Sanjin Guotou owns 45.50% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Construction owns 46.38% interests in the registered capital of
Sanjin Guotou and 46.40% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty respectively and is therefore deemed to have,
including via Sanjin Guotou, an interest in the Shares in which
Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to the same
interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Expressway owns 46.38% interests in the registered capital of
Sanjin Guotou and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Sanjin Guotou is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Transportation owns 100% interests in the registered capital of
Shanxi Expressway and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shanxi Expressway is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

State-owned Capital Operation Co. owns 90% interests in the
registered capital of Shanxi Construction and 90% interests in the
registered capital of Shanxi Transportation respectively. State-owned
Capital Operation Co. is therefore deemed to have, via Shanxi
Construction and Shanxi Transportation, an interest in the Shares in
which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to the same
interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Government Commission owns 100% interests in the registered
capital of State-owned Capital Operation Co. and is therefore deemed
to have an interest in the Shares in which State-owned Capital
Operation Co. is interested. The figure refers to the same interests of
China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interests of THTF
Energy-Saving in 513,994,000 Shares.

Resuccess owns 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the
SFO.

Tsinghua Tongfang, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Resuccess, owns 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company or their respective associate(s)) of any
interest and short position in the Shares and underlying shares
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, each of the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers was less than 30%
of the Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details
of these transactions are disclosed in note 51 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. Certain related party
transactions as disclosed in note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements constitute connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules and the Company had complied with all applicable
rules under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Equity Transfer Agreement

On 6 April 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (as the vendor), Shenzhen Waranty, a
controlling shareholder of the Company (as the purchaser), and SPF,
the then direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical (being the target company), entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Tongfang Pharmaceutical has
conditionally agreed to sell, and Shenzhen Waranty has conditionally
agreed to purchase the sale share, representing 55.43% equity
interest in SPF held by Tongfang Pharmaceutical, at the
consideration of RMB159,675,300 (subject to interest).

Shenzhen Waranty is the indirect holding company of China Health,
which in turn holds approximately 56.77% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Therefore, Shenzhen Waranty is a
connected person of the Company and the transaction
contemplated under the equity transfer agreement constitute a
connected transaction of the Company and is subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the above transaction were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 April 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated 26 May 2022.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above non-exempt connected transaction.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Master Tenancy Agreement
Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 6 April 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical (as the landlord), and
SPF (as the tenant) entered into the master tenancy agreement,
pursuant to which Tongfang Pharmaceutical agreed to lease certain
factories and warehouses in Yanging District, Beijing, the PRC,
covering a gross floor area of approximately 14,080 square metres
to SPF for a term commencing from the 29 July 2022 and ending
on 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

Upon the completion of the transaction contemplated under the
equity transfer agreement, SPF became a subsidiary of Shenzhen
Waranty, which is a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, SPF became an associate of Shenzhen Waranty and
thus a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the master tenancy agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio
calculated based on the highest annual cap under the master
tenancy agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the master tenancy agreement are
subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 April 2022.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

During the Year, the actual amount of transactions under the
master tenancy agreement was RMB1,337,000 and was within the
annual cap of RMB3,500,000.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction discloseable under the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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Annual Review of Continuing Connected
Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed and approved by the Board, including the INEDs.

The INEDs had reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties conducted in
accordance with the terms of the tenancy agreements; and (iii) in
accordance with the tenancy agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2023 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 9 June 2023. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 5 June 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order for the Shareholders to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2023 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited of 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 June 2023.
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately HK$0.2
million during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 73 to 99 of this annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the
Year and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2020, 2021 and the Year have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Bai Pingyan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023

* For identification purpose only
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BYZHETRE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE 1 +852 2218 8288 HFARATHEEP115R
{8H : +852 2815 2239 JKZH>254&

www.bdo.com.hk
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KONTAFARMA CHINA
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kontafarma China Holdings Limited ##FEZREBARAF (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 132 to 323, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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HREREE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

AREZFHERERMAIERHE  HX
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

AREXEE
Key audit matter

BEMzER N AR ERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBHEZRIE  —HEEARAARREMERE AR ZEHRGEEER ((RHUEEEHE] FME
Expected credit losses (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables, amount due from an associate and
amounts due from other related parties

B EKE SHRIE - —HEERAARRREMAR AR RMEEEKRESRIE - —EiE A5 KRR EHE RS
RZEHEEBERTGINAEREZETE  DHARASR AR CEREEBEETHACEFEE

Y BEEENGAYBRKIEBEBEA - BRFEIREHRM Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment of trade
ERENTEHEESER SR EE A N EEEMEr o receivables, amount due from an associate and amounts
We identified ECL assessment of trade receivables, due from other related parties included:

amount due from an associate and amounts due from

other related parties as a key audit matter due to the o  EEHEEEFZREZIEF (BIEFAEEERE)H
significance of balances to the Group’s consolidated TR

financial position and the involvement of subjective Obtaining an understanding of management’s process

judgement and management estimates in evaluating the
ECL at the end of the reporting period.

AR ISR R4 RASFTIEE W_E=——F+=
A=+—H E5ENEKREZRIE  —[HERFRX
HREREMBEBRIRAR(NEREEEBEERE) 2RO A
123,644,0007%8 7T * 139,222,000/ 7T }292,634,000/% JT ©
As disclosed in note 4 and 48 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s trade receivables,
amount due from an associate and amounts due from
other related parties, net of allowance for credit losses,
amounted to approximately HK$123,644,000,
HK$139,222,000 and HK$92,634,000 respectively as at 31
December 2022.

of assessing the impairment including the use of
provision matrix;

FBREHOMPREIEE EAREE RS  HERE
REBARLEBCHEEE  HEBER B EHDE
R BB EREROE S B AE M E TR
Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix and
individual assessment, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and historical
settlement record of debtors;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERE()VREREGEER EER T EIEBANSR
EEAOXRAEMEERE  BAARUBEEXNEBA
ETHE MK ESRENTRBEEREE  EA
BEEEREZEBARERNZEF GREBEEEHE - G5t
FIREDEANEBRERZ BRI ERFRANBRAFE
SELHE - RBAIREEMEHRR « R>NBBEEBAN
BRI BRE 1B RIMNEME BERT R R R st — & R RIR
FREMBAEARR  DEEEERARIEERERS
RGN - EMmIBIZATIE L E R AR ENERNBREEX -
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
ECL of (i) trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns after considering historical default rates and
forward-looking information of respective debtors, except
for debtors with credit-impaired which assess expected
credit loss on individual basis. Estimated loss rates are
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information; and (i) amount due from an
associate and amounts due from other related parties
based on individual ageing profile and external credit
rating proxies of debtors to determine whether there is
significant increase in credit risk or credit impaired so as
to project the individual loss rate after adjusted with
forward-looking information.

TEHEEEE CFBIHNGE P IEHRERM 548 -
Details of the ECL are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

s BTHEEEAETNR-_T__F+-A=+—HZE
WESHIEEEEERESMRANEERAE &
REREENBREERESEEWNE S HRESHEE TR
RIEEIEMN - U RERRBEERESRRINTEHEE
REE(WRERTENERAEEER) ;
Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2022, including the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
trade debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information);

s BHEREAEBEENR-TE-_—_Ft+=-A=t+—HzZ2—
T & 1 AR R B B At A B 7 RO BB R B B S P
RANEERAE BF BXEBEFTREREREZE
ERERESCEREEM REZSEBHAZRBKFIEA
EAHREERENEEERERBRNSEE &
BERREEBR AT TERREINIBIEKIRZ 2
o
Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance of amount due
from an associate and amounts due from other
related parties as at 31 December 2022, including
the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
whether the debtors have significant increase in
credit risk, whether the receivables from these
debtors are credit-impaired and reasonableness of
significant assumptions, checking to estimation
methodology of ECL and checking the parameters to
external data sources;

J BRABEBEEFEZ2EHREEBENERE &
Testing the accuracy of management’s calculation of
the expected credit losses; and

. S B RAR S B mA N 48 2 TR A E BB BT 2
WEREIE -
Evaluating the disclosures regarding the ECL
assessment in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REREFORBEHEENREZARBRELERTEBMESRIREUA(REXK ) FESREE ZBER

i

Impairment assessment of goodwill allocated to the operating fitness centres and providing consultation
services for fitness and health activities and operating the franchise business for royalty fee income

("Fitness business”)

HREEEZHEBRERI S RERHE  wEMAKY RMABRIETREXGZHERENGZETFEE

RTREXB HBRENGRESEREREE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill of goodwill allocated to the Fitness business included:

allocated to Fitness business as a key audit matter due to
the complexity and significant judgments involved in the
management’s assessment process.

BINERE SRR FES - 20 R 22F7TH R - ZHERZE
T CF T A=+ BZERHE{EXR138,426,000/8TT ©
ErREREREERERFGME R ECReELS
([ReEEEM]) 2 KBS -

As disclosed in note 4, 20 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of such
goodwill, was approximately HK$138,426,000 as at 31
December 2022. Determining impairment of goodwill
required the management’s estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU") to which the
goodwill has been allocated.

B hEMER e REBI
Evaluating the competence, capabilities
objectivity of the independent valuers;

and

w2z EEEZEMEBTEFERAIRRRS
MERRARE FEXHURRERELE 2R
R(BEBEER AEHERANRLEERX)
Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, including growth
rates, budgeted sales and operating expenses
through assessing the reasonableness of forecasted
future cash flows by reference to the latest business
plan of the Group;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rt ReELEMU AN E R (EREEEREBE Y
HEMBYTECREENEE) R FRAZEFERRE
FUHREERE ReELABUHEHEEREERX
AREMBAZRERARBERER - B RLFEERE
B2 RBEBRRYREXNEEH G NG -

In estimating the recoverable amount of the CGU which
management determined based on value in use
calculation with assistance from independent valuers, key
assumptions used include discount rates, growth rates of
budgeted sales and operating expenses and their related
cash inflows and outflows patterns for the CGU.
Significant management judgments and estimates are
required to conclude whether there is impairment loss of
goodwill need to recognise.

BBR TS BUR REEBIBETHI - STREERE
AEERMRAZHEAXRERSIE
Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rates
applied in determining the value in use by
benchmarking against market data;

RS TERI R R IR B B ARF B R AR
RY THREMEREZEZNREA  FERAIRRRS
mMERATREER &

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the forecasted
future cash flows by comparing them to the actual
results in the current year on a sample basis and
understanding the causes of any significant
variances; and

bR e M MR 228 @i & X B EmERIER
EH R ER -

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of goodwill of Fitness business in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FHP2HMER

BERREFAREMBERAERT HiWE
HEeE BEXRFHAEER  EFreREs
BRI LR REZ ZBREDRE

BHEGEEMBBRRZBERLNREEME
B BTN A HEMERBEREATA 2%

12 g 1A
RBEE o

BERAMBHRER2ERNE  RAZEER
BIEEMEN  WHIBES TREMER
ELREFEMBRERIRMAEFTZEETH
THRZERAEERER HEUFEENE
AR - EREMATHITZTHE - MRERFIR
REMEMAEAHERRL  HHFEWNE
HERE - RERFLBEEMAREEE -

ESHAEUBRRAREZER

BERAREZAREREBTEGHMASRM
ZEBUBHREENRIRBEE R AEDZ
BREREREAEEM AT RO E B
Blk YBE BERREFIARMEREEGS
MBEBRMEBLB2AMEE  AEHES
BRI FEENAGFRERMERCE
KRR -

RSB HHRERE - EAREFAEN
it BERERELLE RN  YEERBERT
BREASBEEFMZEE  UREAFE
RERGTER K BELAREFHE
# BEEEBRIJUFLLE  HPIEELMER
ZERITR-

BERRESENARREE EREZMKE
HiBE - EnAERZES ([ERZEE))

U EEEITHERE -

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process. The audit committee of the
Company (“Audit Committee”) assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities in this regard.



BB BB RGRE M RRAERE
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Bz ER EHERGAVBBRRIE T
FHEARAFFHRERMER . EAERER
RARSEEERE THABSHMERZ
ZEEN R E o NREERBEEAZ R GHK
[ ETNEBEEL - Ritzsh  AREHIER
B RMUTERAEEZ AT AIERE
AL 8 FEEEMEE -

BERBIEKFEZRE  BIERERE
BEMENETZERNE —EAHERR M
TFHERARERABITEN - #HRRA A A H
WEFskEERREIE - WERN X ERAESERAS
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TEHZEERTE - BB BSERBA R EE
* o

ERRBBEEENENETERZ 8D &
RERZEET - HIAER T EXHE - R
TEEEREE - B

o BRMFHEARAGFHERMEBEE
MBEBEREFEERFERRAZBR - &
AARMITEREFAREZERR - A
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wRoRE BERER ERRL - RE
BRABES 2 £ - Fit ReeBIREAR
AR BB EA R R R 2 B B BUR BE
HBRFERM G2 EAF R <

THRERZABE I AEIES - UK E
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B BEREARENZAERERRER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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H BAREFRARELESER
ZIREMELER - REMB2EZE
EOREREFEREHUBREBEZ
BEXRTHEEN MAel BEEEIBE
REZENBREREE - IREMR
REFEERTHEEN  BELEEZE
A& IR A E LS E M B RRA
HEREEN 2L -BREEEIHE
BERAR  RIBMABELAFEREER

2B RE R EREEREBE
REEM S LG 2 BRORE -
AWM REEHHBERAELEH BEE

HESEMBHRRZERI®RAN &
BUAT BRNEER  UR&EEM
BHREAREAARBBBEIHMEHE -

P BEEERNERIEBEB2HMBKE
BERZED - BE ZEZEE - YR
BMBHRERERER - RMARESE -
EENMATEEEZ - RAIUBEZER
EEREEL -

BPMEEZZBEQERTIE2EEE -
RRZH EAEZEREER  BRELMAE
2 IR R A B ) 2 (R KR BA o

BfEMEZZBERIER SHBHMCD
NEeEMBLEZHBEEXERER TR
I aRMEEEERRETERMEL
2 BEMEMER - UREERZERT
FALASHRR B BO1T B Sk ER X A [ #0457

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors of the Company,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate Number P0O5309

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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RERERAEMEEKRER
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HEZZ-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—s-= =E = —%E

2022 2021

Bt FE T FHET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
(s =71)

(Re-presented)

HREKEEK Continuing operations
A Revenue 5 894,062 803,267
$HE N AR A A Cost of sales and services (387,841) (407,091)
£ Gross profit 506,221 396,176
PN Other income 7 37,928 74,596
Hith Uk 25 K E5 18 Other gains and losses 8 4,907 24,456
JEHEEEEERIE N2  Impairment losses under expected credit

REEE - kD £ R loss model, net of reversal 9 (55,718) (24,942)
DEKIEEEA Distribution and selling expenses (443,355) (329,155)
1TIRE A Administrative expenses (115,331) (127,655)
HEihE A Other expenses (29,110) (34,331)
& KA Finance costs 10 (23,278) (33,610)
B 75 A B 18 Loss before taxation (117,736) (54,465)
785 Taxation 12 7,992 (1,830)

BEQEEEAREZEIE  Loss for the year from continuing

operations 13 (109,744) (56,295)
ERLEREEL Discontinued operation
EARIEE B AT E G Profit for the year from discontinued
operation 14 56,942 51,742
REEZEE Loss for the year (52,802) (4,553)
Htt2m (ZH) Wi : Other comprehensive (expense)
income:
T EEF P EZIE2 0 Item that will not be reclassified
ZHEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
HBBYEBELEZEN  Exchange difference arising on
=% translation to presentation currency (55,991) 16,871

BEE T BEEF 7 Z 1825 Item that may be reclassified
BRZIEA - subsequently to profit or loss:
HIEINEREL ZIEN,  Exchange difference arising on
=% translation of foreign operations (2,114) 2,936
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—E_—_—F —E-—
2022 2021
THET THETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(FeE5)

(Re-presented)

AEEHMEME(ZE) Other comprehensive (expense) income
Was - MBRTEIE for the year, net of tax (58,105) 19,807

AFEE2E () WZEE Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (110,907) 15,254

ANEE (FE) mFEMN A+ (Loss) profit for the year attributable to:

ZAN/NE )35 Owners of the Company

— REBELEER — from continuing operations (84,878) (47,713)

— REERIEREET — from discontinued operation 43,332 32,665
(41,546) (15,048)

PR 5 Non-controlling interests

— REFERKEE — from continuing operations (24,866) (8,582)

— REERIEEEER — from discontinued operation 13,610 19,077
(11,256) 10,495

NEFEEEE Loss for the year (52,802) (4,553)
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HEZZ-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—E-_—F —EF-—
2022 2021
Bt 5% FTET FHEIT
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
(#eE7)
(Re-presented)
REERHE(ZH) Total comprehensive (expense) income
W BREFE(E TT for the year attributable to:
— ARARIKRR — Owners of the Company (90,911) 217
— FEIERRE S — Non-controlling interests (19,996) 15,037
(110,907) 15,254
AL AL
Sk (B51E) BF (Loss) earnings per share 15 HK cent HK cent
(FeE%))
(Re-presented)
BN Basic
— REFEREER — from continuing operations (1.52) (0.86)
— REERIEEEED — from discontinued operation 0.78 0.59
(0.74) (0.27)
e Diluted
— REFELEED — from continuing operations N/A (0.86)
— REERIELEXEE — from discontinued operation N/A 0.59
N/A (0.27)
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RZZZ=F+=F=+—H At 31 December 2022

—_E_= —E-—
2022 2021
B 5 FET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
W - BB k&E Property, plant and equipment 17 382,158 520,681
FREEE Right-of-use assets 18 419,007 589,242
KEMEHE Investment properties 19 41,911 4,704
EES Goodwill 20 301,257 358,782
mRAE Intangible assets 21 267,902 277,795
N DN R Interest in an associate 23 — —
EEFIE & E Deferred tax assets 40 162 232
Meke Rental deposits 17,652 25,747
B KK AR Contract costs 27 892 908
1,430,941 1,778,091
REEE Current assets
EYEE Biological assets 24 — 17,044
rE Inventories 25 111,736 112,146
FEWE 5B Trade receivables 26 123,644 139,946
B KRR A Contract costs 27 5,536 5,048
HMEURHRIE ke Rk Other receivables, deposits and
T8 1~ 3R IE prepayments 28 73,114 75,632
HMig& Other investments 29 20,000 16,000
R ERR A B R Amounts due from intermediate holding
companies 50 1,021 290
— R & R R RFK Amount due from an associate 50 139,222 145,803
H{th BE B 5 R R Amounts due from other related parties 51(d) 92,634 94,608
PR | $RIT 17 =X Restricted bank deposits 30 — 6,205
RERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 30 122,595 167,962
689,502 780,684
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—E_—_—F —EF-—
2022 2021
B 5 FHET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
REBAE Current liabilities
ERE S HIEREE Trade and bills payables 31 21,398 39,269
HiEMFEREWIEZS  Other payables and deposits received 32 133,084 119,905
R—EFRNERARFIE  Amount due to an intermediate holding
company 50 — 2,446
R B Ath BE B 5 K08 Amounts due to other related parties 51(d) 25,280 113,035
MIBEE Tax liabilities 29,677 28,089
—FAREEZRITEE Bank borrowings due within one year 33 158,772 226,705
IEIEYA Deferred income 34 221 242
ABHAE Contract liabilities 35 72,467 92,995
HEBE Lease liabilities 42 63,808 79,879
504,707 702,565
RBEERE Net current assets 184,795 78,119
BEERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,615,736 1,856,210
B2 & & Capital and reserves
% < Share capital 36 11,177 11,177
R i (B K & 1 Share premium and reserves 39 1,089,930 1,180,841
RNAEI R B (L R 2= Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,101,107 1,192,018
IEFE AR = Non-controlling interests 55,174 145,766
B Total equity 1,156,281 1,337,784
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—E_—_—F —E-—
2022 2021
Bt 5% FHET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
—FRIBZRITEE Bank borrowings due after one year 33 103,153 17,097
EAETRIA Deferred taxation 40 55,143 67,257
18 JR B AN B Provision for reinstatement cost 41 13,336 14,252
IR IEYA Deferred income 34 22,834 14,550
HE&AE Lease liabilities 42 264,989 405,270
459,455 518,426
1,615,736 1,856,210
FI132BEF32E L HBEVBHRERS The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 323 were
—ZFZA-tNBRESEeHEREET approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
Z WA PNIEERKREE - March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:
H¥EE BRI
Bai Pingyan Jiang Chaowen
EE EF

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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——F+=-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

KRAREEL
Attributable to the owners of the Company
ARG SABA
gRitE  BERZ
A ROEE HEZRD EEREEE EXRE RABE  AREE  AtER  RIERN 28 FEREE ERER
Shares held Employee
for share  share-based Non-
Share Share award compensation  Translation Special Capital Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total  interests equity
T FEL TEL T FEL TEL T AL T T FEL FEL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(B3E39() (B339
(note 39(i) (note 39(il)
At 1 January 2021 1,177 1,523,949 (4,854) 1,038 3713 (392,735 28457 (65,104) 108,545 1,214,186 139571 1,353,757
AFE (BR) £ (Loss) profit for the year = = = = = = = — (15048 (15048) 10495 (4553
REREM2ENS () : Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year:
— RBRRIIERELVENZE — Exchange difference arising on translation
to presentation currency - - - - 13,091 - - - - 13,091 3,780 16,871
— RREIEBEETLEN 2R — Exchange difference arising on translation
of foreign operations = = = = 2,174 = = = = 2,174 762 2,936
RERREME (L) B8 Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - - 15,265 - - - (15,048) 217 15,037 15,254
BRUZ BRE Share options lapsed = = = (1,038) — - - - 1,038 — — -
ARTHEREEZRE Dividend distribution to non-controling
interests = = = = = = = = = = (14,669) (14,669)
HE-BHBAR (HH430) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 43(c)) — — - — — - - - - — 16767 16767
Wi — R B 2% AT MRS (P £E39(1) Acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary (note 39(ii)) - - - - - - - (22,385) - (22,385) (109400  (33325)
W=2=-F+-A=t-H At 31 December 2021 1,177 1,523,949 (4,854) = 18978  (392,735) 28,457 (87,489) 94535 1,192,018 145,766 1,337,784
KRRRREE
Attributable to the owners of the Company
BRf
#Witd
B RORE KEzRE  EXGG  RERGE  EARE  RERE  REEA BE FEREZ  BRAE
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award  Translation Special Capital Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
TiEn TR TEn TiEn TR TEn TiEn TR TEn TiEn TR
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(RiE39(0)) (RfE39(ii)
(note 39(i)) (note 39(ii))
¥ At 1 January 2022 1,177 1,523,949 (4,854) 18,978 (392,735) 28,457 (87,489) 94535 1,192,018 145,766 1,337,784
AFEBR Loss for the year = = = = = = = (M586)  (41546)  (11.25) (52802
TEFEBRER M Other comprehensive expenses for the year
— HRBZIIEREL RN AR — Exchange difference arising on translation
to presentation currency = = = (47,946) = = = = (47,946) (8,045) (55,991)
— RREIERELZERER — Exchange difference arising on translation
of foreign operations = = = (1.419) = = = = (1,419) (695) (2,114)
TEERERMAE Total comprehensive expense for the year = = = (49,365) = = = (41,546) (90,911) (19,996)  (110,907)
HERBAF (HiE430) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(a)) - - - - - - - - - (70,596) (70,59)
W-2--F+-F=t+-H At 31 December 2022 MA77 1,523,949 (4,854) (30,387) (392,735) 28,451 (87,489) 52,989 1,101,107 55174 1,156,281
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—E-_F —E—_—
2022 2021
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&=751)
(Re-presented)
EEXB OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REARFELEEB 2RI Loss before taxation from continuing operations

4R (117,736) (54,465)
READRIEEEER 2T Profit before taxation from discontinued

Ail 4 7 operation 80,697 54,139

Br T A B 18 Loss before taxation (37,039) (326)
BLTHIIEE B Z A% Adjustments for:
B RITE Amortisation and depreciation 130,745 145,133
2R E B 1R Impairment losses on goodwill — 46,358
SRMEEREEIE - HBR#  Impairment losses on financial assets, net of

] reversal 56,112 26,075
HEMBAR,—RHKEZA  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries/a subsidiary

Az e (24,035) (51,415)
KT 47 B K f7 B Government grant and subsidy (230) (20)
A& B Finance costs 23,779 34,175
FE A Interest income (5,221) (3,353)
HERMBEYE  BEKE  Net loss on disposal and write-off of property,

B2 BB F plant and equipment 4,941 1,188
HEBMNEHTE2WE  Gain on lease modification and reassessment (3,337) (7,841)
FMB=RIEAFERKE Y Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value

EREE A FERZE through profit or loss — (15,243)
EMBEEZ AT ERS Fair value gain on biological assets (4,927) (8,540)
FEEIBHEERSESR COVID-19-related rent concessions (6,885) (29,169)
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—E_—_—F —EF - —
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
LEESEHA 2L EES  Operating cash inflow before movements in
mA working capital 133,903 137,022
FEEm Increase in inventories (9,458) (19,394)
EWYE E (3B n) R (Increase) decrease in biological assets (49) 4,401
FEUE 5 FIE (38 00) B > (Increase) decrease in trade receivables (92,972) 36,332
Hih U RIA « & & Increase in other receivables, deposits and
FRIAE N prepayments (17,545) (18,251)
B HIRRAS (B2 1) I3 (Increase) decrease in contract costs (453) 1,722
— FEI Bt & 2 | R SR3E N Increase in amount due from an associate (37,938) (34,553)
BHEERD Decrease in contract liabilities (11,732) (17,013)
ENESFEREERD Decrease in trade and bills payables (3,421) (21,450)
H e RIE K B W IR S B N Increase (decrease) in other payables and
CRL) deposits received 51,745 (1,441)
i JE UG A 38 A0 Increase in deferred income 10,129 14,590
BIRAARREAE Ol A) 18N (Decrease) increase in provision for
reinstatement cost (940) 1,117
CEELECES Cash generated from operations 21,269 83,082
SANIIR=E Income tax paid (23,434) (8,014)
BEXK (TA)ELZHE  NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
B OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,165) 75,068
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—E-fF —E-—4F
2022 2021
FTET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
REXH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEWE  MEREZEZFS Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
B equipment 1,405 274
RELFERERI S 2 Proceeds from refund of deposit for land
KIE use right — 15,471
BEVE WERZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (51,679) (67,193)
R FR 17 A 2 Release of rental deposits 7,735 —
FHEET& Placement of rental deposits — (1,569)
NEEFEE Addition of intangible assets — (23,774)
NEFEAEEE Addition of right-of-use assets — (33,416)
ERT—HEHEAR Loan to an associate — (14,260)
—EE & R RIEK Repayment from an associate 4,300 =
BEEMKRE Purchase of other investments (20,000) (16,000)
ELEEIBRRIRAFERE Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at
Z e R EE 2 TS RIE fair value through profit or loss — 23,744
FE B A Ath % & 2 FT 1S 308 Proceeds from redemption of other investments 16,000 20,468
FiEB IR R R ESRITF 38 Placement of pledged and restricted bank deposits — (6,205)
R DI R F R HE1T1F 5K Release of pledged and restricted bank deposits 6,205 —
HENBAREEZ Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
BemAFE 154,205 80,397
ERERERZFABHRIE Proceeds from novation of novated loans — 42,348
B U F B Interest received 3,360 2,958
REXBELE RS FH NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 121,531 23,243
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—E-fF =l =
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
& K FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EAFLE Interest paid (26,038) (32,790)
MERITEE New bank borrowings raised 333,100 216,490
BRETEE Repayments of bank borrowings (270,642) (174,001)
EEHEaBE 2RSS Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (64,640) (41,645)
B IEIERER 2 RE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests — (14,669)
RE—REHRNIER AR 25K Advance from an intermediate holding company 15,181 39,200
) — i AR AT 42 §@7 BN Repayment to an intermediate holding company (17,513) (72,874)
2R B H h BA B 77 25K Advance from other related parties 748 317
) H fib B8 Bt 75 38 5K Repayment to other related parties (107,528) (19,830)
RMEXBARSFE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (137,332) (99,802)
RERESEEYWRAFE  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (17,966) (1,491)
FUIzHEeRRASEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 167,962 165,819
MERSE) w8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (27,401) 3,634
FERZESRESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 122,595 167,962

P Represented by
RITHEBRERE Bank balances and cash 122,595 167,962
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 21 March 2011 under the Companies
Law, Chapter. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 January 2012. Its
substantial shareholder is China Health Management
Investment Limited, a private limited company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate beneficial
owner is State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Shan Xi Provincial Government* (IL78& AR
BFEEEEEEEHEELZE®) of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of prescription drugs in the PRC and the operation
of fitness centres and provision of consultation services for
fitness and health activities and operating of the franchise
business for royalty fee income. The Group was also engaged
in the manufacturing and sales of laboratory related products
which was discontinued in the current financial year as
disclosed in note 14. The Company acts as an investment
holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 55.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"”) which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB”), as the directors
of the Company consider that HK$ will facilitate analysis of
the financial information of the Group.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time,

which are mandatorily effective for the annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October

2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2022)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2022)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2022) (Continued)

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these
terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at
31 December 2022, and the related terms and conditions
stipulated in the agreements between the Group and the
relevant lenders, the application of the amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group's liabilities.



—Z - _F 3] ANNUAL REPORT 2022 149

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

FERAEEBHBHREER (&8
,\M%iﬁ%-'%EUJH% (&)

C MM E 15 RAE M2 #E] &2
BHREER BB B REER
CHENS Y

EREHENEIRREBYBRE

REBAEE2RBITARNE #ﬂ%Zﬁ’
#|

FREEEUNE IRLETTUIERESR
BERER BRI EZ R HER] —FAH
AR - HERBRBMBERERARM
BR—HEE  SFHREERAINEE
BHerEBRPHREANEIERRE
REBEZFMBERRAEL ZRE - BlZ
EATBREMBENK -

ZERTTEE - B R AL T E
K 1B%EA$HF§*%’I‘ET£ C HibFIEK
SERHRREBDABEKN - R
ﬁﬁ I[#ﬁﬁ“ﬁiﬁék?&% C HibEIE
BRABHEZEtRRENAGABE
7( H—HERERENEFREREAK
RER  AFRENTHEEEREK
REF

BEMBRELENERRAEFR 2RI E
AMEELAITEHRE]D FEE
7] AR PR — R E R an{al #5 [ 10 25 R
HEAEREIEAREFBERRE R
A BB —RE A BRI B R E M
BRELEBEK - BEHHRESEMEE
BERRER -

&R RZ1E 7] A TA B I & 3 AN 5 B 75 5A
MXEKBRELBEARE AR EAR
SEERSHTBRRIHEE - FRARRAT
2 (B BRAEE B RNGES MR
RETARKE -

2.

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
"significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application, if
any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.
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F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and biological assets that are measured at fair values and fair
value less costs to sell, as appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics of
inputs, as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
(including any goodwill) and liabilities of that subsidiary at
their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost and
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them) (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018.

liabilities assumed must meet the

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and

EEEIRATERER  HTIEER the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
Ah except that:
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related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and



—Z - _F 3] ANNUAL REPORT 2022 157

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEZSTBUR ()

EREOHREERE (B)

s HEAGRINKBEEFRE(EERER
BRUHMEERFE 165%) MBRE
BRRE  HUORENEER
WERSHMEE  H@EEHR
PUEE B HR1218 A WA R ¢+ 3k(b)
HEEEREEBENHERN -
EREEERRERBREEREM
R BERLTE  WETH
BEURBETSHRFELEERD
B M ARG

BERMERNE M IFHERERER
WHE 77 o 2 2 8 M B 77 A TE T RF 4R
Wi IR AR 2 A FE (IE) Z 48
FBE I Y R B B P RS AT 8 Rl B B B P
AEREFBRIEHTE - MEBER
% PRWRER BRI E EEPTAERGES
EeREERNE  EIHERERER
WHE 77 o 2 2 8 M B 77 A TE P RF 1R
W #E 2 AFEE) 2@ - Al
BHBRBNGNESRERSRERE
Yoss o

BEBEERERENFERETRE
ANEMRLL ISR B AR EEE
ZIRPRR R R - )R R s IR A
WEBE L ABAFEE RS R
FIRAFEFE - FAEERERFBER
SmEHEE

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating units (“CGUs") (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU). Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent period.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

— Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

— Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

— Step 3: Determine the transaction price

— Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

— Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the
Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a
significant financing component, the Group applies a discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received and the transfer
of the associated goods and services are accounted for on the
same basis as other borrowing costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the
contract cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of
its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

3 any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

3 an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”. If an right-of-use
asset becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, the
carrying amount at the date of change in use is transferred to
investment property.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset
is transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and
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F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

3 the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

3 the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BESIBE (&) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

AE(E) Leases (Continued)

AEBEESEMB A (B) The Group as a lessee (Continued)

HEBEH Lease modifications

BAEBHERT SEISHEEESERY Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the

FRERET 7N S IE TSR Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for

REEBHEBHREABIHEEAR a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o &2 38 0 A{E F§ — A sk LA 48 o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
BMEEZENEAEESE:: & adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

. HEREE N BNz ES U the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
NEEEAYIEEBERES commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
RS TA L BERE RS Z increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
BB ERET Y EMEEHE - that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

HREAEBEEAEHEE SN For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
S AERKRERFEREREMNEBH 2 separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
& =TAEIE SR ALIE S ST S 2 7 48 any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the
ERAEHAPEYE=HEaE W modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
{F{a] jE UK 7R & i B 7k 18 - using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
ANEEBBEABERELSELE{TAE The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
HE PHAEaBEETEHTE - by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant

right-of-use asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

3 any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if
the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or
waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect
the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
structures owned by the Group and held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose, and other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation the
carrying amount at the date of change in use is transferred to
investment property.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than construction in progress, less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

3 the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives and
contract costs to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or group
of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the CGU or group of
CGUs.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwiill
(Continued)

The assets capitalised as contract costs are then included in
the carrying amount of the CGU to which they belong for the
purpose of evaluating impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of CGU. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwiill
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Biological assets

Biological assets represent laboratory mice which is measured
on initial recognition and at each end of the reporting period
at their fair value less costs to sell. A gain or loss arising on
initial recognition of biological asset at fair value less costs to
sell and from a change in fair value less costs to sell of a
biological asset is included in profit or loss for the period in
which it arises.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as
short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
difference. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in associates and joint ventures except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.



—Z - ZHF 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 187

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEZSTBUR ()

BERAE

W ZEREEREREEATE
A ERERMBERAREREHIEL
ENEE)ERBEZEERES &1
AERFEBEZKAN  BERFEEK
HICERUERARLREREREE
ALk

FrE Mg Bk AR EE 2 SF AR
ARTERR o

S

RIFRZERSEERE 2 S mRE
INZE BRI EE AN B8 (HNE) #E

TZRGERGEA 2 RBITERBE S
RN EE (AR EREEEMEEE
REIRE 7 S FER - RNIREHIR -
LAGNESSHE 2 E¥TH B 1R B 2 B1TIE
KRENRE o AINEFHEM AR FER
ERFEBEBREEATFESE BHB
TEREFIRE - UINEFENIZES
RAFTE 2 EEEIAE TMEEMBRE o

REEREHBE ,\’%IEEWFEZE
REREREL 2 HREEERER

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

—Z-_—F+=FA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, (i) the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$); and (i) the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations denominated in RMB are also translated
into HK$, using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). The accumulated exchange
differences arising from translation into presentation currency
will not be recycled to profit and loss.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group's net assets in Singapore Dollars and Renminbi to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there s
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund and state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the
plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as expenses unless other
HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provision for reinstatement cost

A provision for reinstatement cost is made for the estimated
costs of dismantlement, removal restoration of plant and
equipment arising from acquisition or use of assets, which are
capitalised and included in the cost of plant and equipment
and recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets, estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(ili)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment to
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee
share-based compensation reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the employee
share-based compensation reserve. For equity instruments that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
equity instruments granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding;

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
("OCI") if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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EEGTEHE (&) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SR TR (&) Financial instruments (Continued)

LREE (&) Financial assets (Continued)

PHEECSERBEE (B) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

B TAER  BepEELAIBIEES A financial asset is held for trading if:

. BASRHEEZTEENARE o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
B in the near term;

. RAETERE EEKAERS U on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
HEBZEHNERTAESGZ financial instruments that the Group manages together
—5{n BMEHIZIREREHE and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
MERK 3 profit-taking; or

° SMEBEARBITARI AN . it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
ER¥HMITAZITAETA- a hedging instrument.

AN o 7N 2 B 5k & O 1] D) 8 4 In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

SRR AN SR B A E fh 2 T UR IR A B B asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost

By AR ECEREERTEANE SR or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

BHREBEIRATERE HFIGTE IR significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

A REE DB SRR A S FTEE AL ©
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(CONTINUED)
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)
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Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

income is
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in OCl and
accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(iii)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
an associate, intermediate holding companies or other related
parties, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular,
account when assessing whether credit
increased significantly:

the following information is taken into
risk has

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, and forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into

consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from other related parties and
amount due from an associate where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these debt instruments.
Such amount represents the changes in the FVTOCI
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset, after
reducing gross carrying amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other
payables and deposit received, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, amounts due to other related parties and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Determination of lease term of contracts with renewal
options

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease term for
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal
option, specifically, the leases relating to offices and fitness
centres. The assessment of whether the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise renewal options impacts the lease term,
which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised. Re-assessment is performed
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of lessee and that affects the assessment.
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4.

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Determination of lease term of contracts with renewal
options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives/penalties for exercising or not exercising the
options. Factors considered include:

o contractual terms and conditions for the optional periods
compared with market rates (e.g. whether the amount
of payments in the optional periods is below the market
rates);

3 the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by
Group; and

° costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g. relocation
costs, costs of identifying another underlying asset
suitable for the Group’s needs).

Method of measuring progress for performance
obligation satisfied over-time

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised by a single method for each performance
obligation satisfied over time and the method should be
applied consistently to similar performance obligations in
similar circumstances. The Group has considered that the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of services transferred to the
customers to date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, would faithfully depict the Group’s
performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. Accordingly, revenue recognised from provision of
membership packages in fitness centres is based on output
method.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, amount due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties

Except for debtors with credit-impaired which assess expected
credit losses on individual basis, the Group uses provision
matrix to calculate ECL for trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The Group assesses ECL for amount due from an associate
and amounts due from other related parties by taking
reference to individual ageing profile and external credit rating
proxies of respective debtors to determine whether there is
significant increase in credit risk and whether credit impaired
so as to project the individual loss rate. At every reporting
date, these loss rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group’s trade receivables, amount due
from an associate and amounts due from other related parties
are set out in notes 26, 50 and 51(d) respectively.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, amount due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$123,644,000 (2021: HK$139,946,000) (net
of credit losses of HK$3,270,000 (2021: HK$2,355,000).
Details of the allowance for credit losses are set out in note
48.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of amount due
from an associate is HK$139,222,000 (2021:
HK$145,803,000) (net of credit losses of HK$72,120,000
(2021: HK$30,246,000)). The carrying amount of amounts due
from other related parties are HK$92,634,000 (2021:
HK$94,608,000) (net of credit losses of HK$21,007,000 (2021:
HK$12,351,000)). Details of the allowance for credit losses are
set out in note 48.
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F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill, trademark, franchise
agreement and customer relationship are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to which
goodwill, trademark, franchise agreement and customer
relationship have been allocated, which is the higher of value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the present value of
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
containing goodwill, trademark, franchise agreement and
customer relationship using suitable discount rates, growth
rates for budgeted revenue and operating expenses and
related cash inflows and outflows patterns. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of
growth rates for budgeted revenue or upward revision of
discount rates or budgeted operating expenses, or change in
related cash inflows or outflows patterns, an impairment loss
may arise. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount
rates are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties
due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve, including potential disruptions of the
Group's fitness business. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are set out in note 22.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of goodwill,
trademark, franchise agreement and customer relationship are
approximately HK$301,257,000, HK$92,876,000,
HK$158,966,000 and nil (2021: HK$358,782,000,
HK$92,876,000, HK$165,476,000 and HK$1,452,000)
respectively. Details of the impairment of goodwill, trademark,
franchise agreement and customer relationship are disclosed in
note 22.
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REVENUE

(A) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

AN AE FE N B [ 4 48 AR A TR An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from
BIMAZDITOTF : continuing operations is as follows:
HEgeER Continuing operations
—E--fF —E--F
2022 2021
BEXY RE%K EoH BEEK 5 %% it
Pharmaceutical Fitness Pharmaceutical Fitness
business business Total business Business Total
TER TERT TET TRT ThAT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(m5750) (B=5)
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
EAMBFHREERE155RE  Revenue from contracts with
BANRBEEGHZ customers within the scope of
KA HKFRS 15
RIZERDRBEAS Disaggregated by major products
or services lines
HERHER S Manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs 722,903 - 722,903 641,985 - 641,985
MERFROREREZAME  Operation of fitness centres and
R HARY provision of consultation services
for fitness and health activities
— RLAGGRRE — personal training classes = 58,380 58,380 = 58,273 58,273
— BEER — membership packages - 74,976 74,976 — 65,213 65,213
BRI RERRE 2 EEE  Royalty fee income in relation to
BERA fitness and health activities = 37,803 37,803 = 37,79 37,796
k] Total 722,903 171,159 894,062 641,985 161,282 803,267
BARREE Timing of revenue recognition
F-HHEY Point in time 722,903 58,380 781,283 641,985 58,273 700,258
R Over time = 112,779 112,779 = 103,009 103,009
waE Total 722,903 171,159 894,062 641,985 161,282 803,267
HETE Geographical markets
HER Mainland China 714,922 — 714,922 623,668 — 623,668
£ % Singapore - 133,356 133,356 = 123,486 123,486
A Taiwan 974 37,803 38,777 691 37,796 38,487
it Others 7,007 = 7,007 17,626 = 17,626
k] Total 722,903 171,159 894,062 641,985 161,282 803,267
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Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

For manufacture and sales of prescription drugs, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been delivered to the
designated location (delivery). The normal credit period
is 30 to 180 days upon delivery. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits.

For provision of personal training classes in fitness
centres, revenue is recognised at point in time when the
customers obtain the services. For provision of
membership packages in fitness centres, revenue is
recognised over time when the control of the services
have been transferred to the customers. Trade
receivables mainly represent receivables from financial
institutions in relation to the payment settled through
using credit cards by individual customers of which the
settlement is normally 15 days from transaction date.
Transaction price is always received in advance in full for
prepaid membership packages or personal training
classes and this will give rise to contract liabilities in
which revenue has not been recognised. Royalty fee
income in relation to fitness and health activities is
recognised over time when the control of the services
have been transferred.
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(C) Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

eS8 —E-—4F
2022 2021
FE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 90,608 91,232
—F A FETEBBEME  More than one year but not more
than two years 15,004 16,215
MFEA EETHBBASF  More than two years but not more
than five years 932 4,508

106,544 111,955
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company,
being the chief operation decision maker (the “CODM"), for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on business units. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group disposed of its interests in SPF
Group (note 14), subsidiaries in the pharmaceutical business
segment which was presented as “discontinued operation”.
The Group reorganised its internal reporting structure which
resulted in changes to the composition of its reportable
segments. The following segment information of the Group's
business units does not include the discontinued operation.
Prior year segment disclosures have been re-presented to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Segment revenue, result, assets and liabilities

The Directors have chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services. The Group is principally
engaged in pharmaceutical and fitness business.

° Pharmaceutical business — manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs.

° Fitness business — operate fitness centres and provide
consultation services for fitness and health activities and
operate the franchise business for royalty fee income.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products or services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.
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HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable and
operating segments.

Continuing operations:

BEER REEK g
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
B —FT-—F ZB--F —T-—F —ZB--F —T-—fF

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

TET TR TET TR TET T
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000

(&E751) (&E731)
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
fhEEE AL A Segment revenue from
external customers 722,903 641,985 171,159 161,282 894,062 803,267
DEEE Segment results 8,349 10,667  (101,310)  (101,768)  (92,961) (91,101)
N TN Unallocated corporate
income 4,708 79,040
KOO %R Unallocated corporate
expenses (29,483) (42,404)
BB A EE Loss before taxation (117,736) (54,465)

RN B S AT BRI R 3 At
MASENSFBRMER - D&
RERADRERXLERRAMEA
SRR B 2 BB ERER A A1 (B3R
MER) - LWRRAKREEEES
REBEREN L AMEERD
FEMKRIRFIERE -

BE_ZTE_—_Fhk=_F=—
+-—A=+—BItFERATES
EBEISHE o

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by (loss from)
each segment without allocation of certain corporate income
and expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM of
the Group for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

There was no inter-segment sales during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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6. ZHEEHR(A) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) ?PPBEEREE (ii) Segment assets and liabilities
AT B 1R 0] 2 AL & 5 20 A The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
SENEERBENDN liabilities by reportable and operating segments:
FEREHER Continuing operations:
BREEYR BEEK ot
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
8- f —E-—F ZE--F —T--F B —E-_—F
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

TET TRT TER THT TER TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

AHEE Segment assets 1,117,520 1,346,899 941,384 1,110,506 2,058,904 2,457,405
ERTEAE Deferred tax assets 162 232
AAMEEBE Unallocated corporate assets 61,377 101,138
BEAE Consolidated assets 2,120,443 2,558,775
BEEK BEEK okl
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
—E-Cf —E-—F 8- —T--—F ZB--Ff —E-_—F
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

TET TRT TET THT FET TRT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

HHEE Segment liabilities 392,394 506,720 473,616 600,029 866,010 1,106,749
HEARE Tax liabilities 29,677 28,089
ERFEERE Deferred tax liabilities 55,143 67,257
APECEERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 13,332 18,896
REAE Consolidated liabilities 964,162 1,220,991
MEIEDERI LR B S5 AL For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
BRmE : allocating resources between segments:
. FMBEENEELEDEL - o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
B IFRERIRE E R AR deferred tax assets and unallocated corporate assets as
SEECEEE  REAZS these assets are managed on a group basis; and

BERENEEEE R

. FIBERESEERLED T - 0 all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
HTBEERBAE  RIER than tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and unallocated
BHEERRPELEAE - corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
FRRRZS A ERERNEE group basis.

B -
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other segment information

HEQSEEK: Continuing operations:
LEES REEH ROE @t
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Unallocated Total
—®--f -T--% CZB--f -T--% CZB-C —“E-—% CZB--f -ZI--fF
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
TR THT TR THT Ti#n Tin TR THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(m=30) (m=30)
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
SIARHEES S FEENE  Amounts included in the
ZEE: measure of segment
results or segment assets:
REFRDEE Addition to non-current
assets* 46,581 211,408 6,425 9,959 3,421 31,184 56,433 252,551
BHERTE Amortisation and depreciation 31,699 27,936 87,728 104,621 2,915 642 122,342 133,199
EHEEHEEABET ZHMAR  Impairment losses under
B NREREE expected credit loss
model, net of reversal 987 3,233 49,738 19,010 4,993 2,699 55,718 24,942
AEREER Impairment loss on goodwill = = = 46,358 = = = 46,358
TFEMR (P ASHE RFRFAA)  Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales
and services) 469 = = = = = 469 =
HERMENE  BEREEZ  Net loss (gain) on disposal
B (k&) F8 and write-off of property,
plant and equipment (872) 146 5813 1,042 — — 4,94 1,188
HENBAR/—FEMBARZ  Gain on disposal of
e subsidiaries/a subsidiary (3,042) - = — = (51,415) (3,042) (51,415)
FSMA Interest income (3,642) (2,507) - = (1,537) (800) (5,179) (3,307)
MER% Interest expenses 8,201 8,609 14,476 22,566 601 2,435 23,278 33,610
TEHRATFEELERRERL  Amounts reqularly provided to
IR HRETENEE the CODM but not
included in the measure
of segment results:
Fifadi (He) RE Income tax (credit) expenses (2423) 3,884 (5,569) (2,054) — — (7.992) 1,830
BRERERATERE SR  Fair value gain on financial
BEZATENRE assets at FVTPL - - - — - (15,243) - (15,243)

* FRBEETEREMEEK

LR AEE

The non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax
assets
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6.

7 EHER (&)

(iv) EREERF &SR

(v)

HE-_Z_—_FR-_ZFT_-_—F
+_A=1t—RBIEE BEIH
HEFERMAEE10% A L
WA e

b & & ¥

AEEZZEMUNPEARN 3
MR EE - BEAASEIFRD
BEMEMDENREE 2 RN
B2 -

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(iv) Information about major customers

None of the external customers contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

(v) Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the Mainland
China, Singapore and Taiwan. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

EREBEE

Non-current assets
=== T4
2022 2021
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
el A Mainland China 693,490 873,724
Hhnig Singapore 706,220 865,482
BB Hong Kong 13,417 12,906
1,413,127 1,752,112

Mz ERBEETERELCHREBELR
EXemTHE-

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and
financial instruments.
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H i A 7. OTHER INCOME
—E-_—F —E=—
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000
(&&E3)
(Re-presented)
HERKEEK Continuing operations
KERITZFBWA Interest income from banks 2,657 2,515
RE—REFR MR AT ZFE  Interest income from an intermediate
WA holding company 1,066 —
REHK T —HE#E AT ERZ Interest income from loan to
MEUA an associate 795 395
REHEMEE ZFERA Interest income from other investment 661 397
5,179 3,307
X #e0 B K02 B Government grant and subsidy
— IREH AR D (FzE34) — release from deferred income
(note 34) 230 20
— BB (M) — related to expenses (note i) 8,009 6,987
— E{E B (BT — related to employment (note ii) 2,800 20,311
FREEEEESES COVID-19-related rent concessions
(B i) (note iii) 6,885 29,169
e A Rental income 1,603 757
AR 75 A Service income 1,044 334
FETRWA Sundry income 12,178 13,711
37,928 74,596
izt SERAEECEEENAXZAR Note i: The amount represented financial subsidies received for
N5 (B 32 2L BB BA BRR B B B MR B compensating expenses already incurred or giving
T2 R o 0 £ 75 A Bh ) R AR IR immediate financial support to the Group. There are no
ks A S IR - 6 BY I AR B R AT unfulfilled conditions or contingencies in relation to the
HEZENERT - grants and the grants were determined at the sole
discretion of relevant government authorities.
Pietii: SRR SAG B BUR 6 B) £ Z B 31 0 Note ii: Government grant related to employment mainly arose

3 AT S FE S0 5 7 5% 17 T 4 A9 Bt
¥ (T EIFTED KB
L E At 2 ((HRERETE])E
A 0 #)751,568,00008 TT (—ZF = —
% : 18,215,000/ 7C) ° BLEL #Hit
SERTIREFSED B E
BREMWEE G ERKKARE
R) - REREHEYHEITHEE
IR c AEEDREREBEZAE
WHFHEBEBE27 AIE MU
A m3ERDHEBRAY - BX%S
S Bh I EE T 78 R M R MR s E
HAEIH -

from the Job Support Scheme (“JSS”) and Job Growth
Incentive (“JGI”) introduced by the Singapore
government in response to COVID-19 pandemic of
approximately HK$1,568,000 (2021: HK$18,215,000).
The JSS provided wage support to employers, helping
enterprises retain their local employees (Singapore
citizens and permanent residents). The JGI supported
employers to expand local hiring. The Group has elected
to present this government grant separately in profit or
loss as “other income”, rather than reducing the related
expense. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies.

225
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7. HgA (8) 7. OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)
Patiii: ANEBEEEEFHEHAESHESH Note iii: The Group has negotiated with landlords to obtain the
% AEEREEZEEAARBHER rental relief which the Group has elected to apply the
HERFIRHAITERFE - T practical expedient in HKFRS 16 by not assessing
AEEERHNEREMELENES whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
BEESRAEEREN  UNERA consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
RIEREEREERER I RE modification, and derecognised the part of lease
AT E K liabilities that have extinguished as negative variable
lease payment in profit or loss.
8. HWERER 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
—_E_— —E-—F
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(FeE5))

(Re-presented)

HEKEXER Continuing operations
b 5 Wz (B548) JF 58 Net foreign exchange gain (loss) 4,024 (2,902)
BRERREAFEREEZ  Fair value gain on financial assets at
TRIEE RN T ERE FVTPL = 15,243
HE RMIEmE - BEK&ZME Net loss on disposal and write-off of
Z BB property, plant and equipment (4,941) (1,188)
HEHB ARz W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(K4 5£43(b) & (0)) (note 43(b) & () 3,042 51,415
PR EEE (ffsE22) Impairment loss on goodwill (note 22) — (46,358)
HEERREFFEH2WE  Gain on lease modification and
reassessment 3,337 7,841
H At Others (555) 405
4,907 24,456
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9. FEHEEBEERETNZREME 9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

E518 - HIBREE S5 CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL
eS8 — T —4F

2022 2021

Fisi FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

(&)

(Re-presented)

BERSEEK Continuing operations
AT B BEERZBERE :  Impairment losses recognised on:
— EWE 5 FIE — Trade receivables (2,832) (2,741)
— HibhprWRIBE R IES — Other receivables and deposits (2,994) (601)
— —HBE R RK — Amount due from an associate (41,129) (14,514)
— HAaREE 5 RPN R — Amounts due from other related
YNCIDSEN parties and intermediate holding
companies (8,763) (7,086)
(55,718) (24,942)
BB AT i 5 15 8 BT 5248115 B = Bz Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 48 under
A ° “Credit Risk”.
10. BE KA 10. FINANCE COSTS
—E__—F —EF=-—
2022 2021
FET T
HK$'000 HK$’000
(#eE5)
(Re-presented)
BELSEEK Continuing operations
MERER Interests on:
— RITERK — Bank loans 11,117 10,499
— RE—BEFRNERARZ — Loans from an intermediate
BN holding company — 2,382
HESBENE Interests on lease liabilities 14,420 21,726
25,537 34,607
B EREIREEREEE Less: Amount capitalised under
construction in progress (2,259) (997)

23,278 33,610
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11.

EE - BRETBRAR - EER
EBREBAEME

REFZES RaRTHRAE - EER
SREBAEMERE FTHRANEEER
NAMEBIFT R TE 2 @ AR E B R E
™

F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,
EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Emoluments of directors, chief executive, employees and senior
management for the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance are as follows:

BEENBETHRAEMS Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
ENENER (ZEZ—F: \R)E The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2021:
ERERERTESEZMEHT : eight) directors and the Chief Executive Officer were as
follows:
HE-R--E-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
§¢/BEE BRERTE BIKEA
E=He REMER 2T HE A Hess
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of
REAEEES (FRAXAR a person’s services as a director, whether Salaries/service Retirement
FHNEARER) BREAR of the Company and its subsidiary fee and other Performance  benefits scheme Total
EH#He undertakings Directors’ fees benefits  related bonuses contributions emoluments
FET FET T FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEGTERBTES: Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director:
BEx L Mr. Jiang Chaowen 10 1,698 910 170 2,788
HTEE: Executive Director:
bk Mr. Huang Yu 10 1,706 11 187 2,014
ERAGE Mr. Chai Hongye - - - - -
HYER4E Mr. Bai Pingyan — - — — -
BUFYTES: Independent Non-Executive Directors:
REBELE Mr. Chan Sze Chung 10 108 - - 118
R £ 4 Mr. Zhang Ruibin 10 108 = = 118
REEEAE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 10 108 - - 118
50 3,728 1,021 357 5,156
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=17

BA
é@ﬂ%(

:luf e

£ fEEX  11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,
SRE ) EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

)IJIIIH ’

>- :lnr

EEREETRAEMS (&) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
BE-Z--H+t-A=t-AL%E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
%/ R5E RERRHE RRET
Ea- 20k REAER 2 TRl ol
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of
REARTES (FRARAHA a person’s services as a director, whether Salaries/service Retirement

SEMBARES) BBEEHR of the Company and its subsidiary fee and other Performance  benefits scheme Total
Efffme undertakings Directors' fees benefits  related bonuses contributions emoluments
ThAR TR TAT ThAR TRET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEYTERUTES: Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director:
BELE Mr. Jiang Chaowen 10 1,432 1,098 63 2,603
HiTES: Executive Director:
BaEE Mr. Huang Yu 10 1,664 119 2 1,885
BIRE LA (M ) Mr. Wei Bingzhang (note a) = = = = —
ERNEE Mr. Chai Hongjie — — — — —
BYE%4E (FiE b) Mr. Bai Pingyan (note b) — — — — —
BUFYTES: Independent Non-Executive Directors:
REBELE Mr. Chan Sze Chung 10 105 = = 115
Eimwri Mr. Zhang Ruibin 10 105 = = 115
REERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 10 105 — — 115
50 3411 1,217 155 4833

Zl»"&ﬂ%%&?%ﬁﬂ/\%iﬁ’ﬂ%?%m%ﬁ
MEzBeEE  ETERMEARELD
BBE -

AT EARGELEEE  BARR
FBUNSEIRETE

BE_Z-_—_FR-_ZFT-_—F+_H
=t HLEFE BERAXRFEEX
N (ERTSIMAREELRIA
AEBRAER - EQBEBMOME -

The remuneration of directors and the chief executive of the
Company were determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and market
trends.

Bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

No emoluments have been paid to directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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11. EE - BE1THAE - EER
EREEAESME (&)

EERESTBRAENE (A)

MsE -

@ FEREEER-_FT=_—FhA=+*
AEHERNTES -

by HBFEEER-T_—FAA=T++
FEZEARTES -

BEMWS

AEERERSFMALTFEME (=
E_—F MB)R/RARAEEZRER
TR REZMEC R EXEE - 2
B=H(CTE_—F: ZR)RSFMA

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) Mr. Wei Bingzhang has resigned as an executive director on 27
September 2021.

(b)  Mr. Bai Pingyan has been appointed as an executive director on
27 September 2021.

Employees’ emoluments

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2021: two) were the directors and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosure above. The emoluments of the

+oMEwmT remaining three (2021: three) highest paid individuals were as
follows:
—==-= - —F
2022 2021
FET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e kEMmBER Salaries and other benefits 3,550 3,348
BRI E 2 L4 Performance related bonuses 507 303
RORAE FIFT 8 5% Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 201 182

4,258 3,833
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11. EE - BE1THAE - EER
EREEBEAESME (&)

EBEM< (&)

mEZMENFRTHNAR

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,
EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

S —E-—F

2022 2021

EE&A EE#H

Number of Number of

employees employees

%% 1,000,000/8 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 s 1
1,000,001 %7 % 1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 1
1,500,001 % 7L £ 2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 — 1
2,000,001% 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 —
3 3

BHE-Z K- —F+=A1
=+ HLEFE AEEHERAZR
SE AT ERBME - AEARS]
HEMAKRINAREE % 2 2Rk B
BRfE(E -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an incentive payment for joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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11.

EE - BES5THRAE-{EEN 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,

EREEAEME (H)

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

EREEAEME Senior management’s emoluments
AREBSREEBAE (BIEES)HhAN Among the senior management (including directors) of the
Z(—EBE-——F UZ)BAATES Group, four (2021: four) were directors of the Company
BECHELER IYBERE - HE—Z whose emoluments are included in the disclosure above. The
——E+ A=+ —HILEE EB®H emoluments of the remaining two (2021: two) individuals for
Z(ZEZ—E RB) ATZBET: the year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:
—E=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
FER TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e kEMmBER Salaries and other benefits 1,696 1,598
BRERBGE AL Performance related bonuses 238 227
RIRARR T8I R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 924 89
2,028 1,914

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

—=-= T4

2022 2021

EEEE EEEE

Number of Number of

employees employees

£ 21,000,000/ T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
1,000,0017%& 7T £ 1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — =
1,500,001% 7C £ 2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 = 1
#83%2,000,0007% 7T Above HK$2,000,000 1 —
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Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

—=E=-= —E -4
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(FeE3)
(Re-presented)
HEREER Continuing operations
BN AR IR Current tax
— PRGN — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 1,252 4,366
— N EMEH — Singapore Corporate Income Tax — (33)
— REREMEN — Taiwan Corporate Income Tax 5,722 5,669
6,974 10,002
BAFE GBEEEME) BETZ (Over) under provision in prior years
— PRDEMRSH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (3,937) 187
— N RS — Singapore Corporate Income Tax — (422)
(3,937) (235)
IEIE IR (M 5E40) Deferred tax (note 40) (11,029) (7,937)
(7,992) 1,830
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12. $iE (&) 12. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

HE BB

PEEEASRIER T B ARMES 2 {4
FHRERRT s M P 2 I - BRE T B
BRAZAEEREI AEBEFTH
A EEN B LR F —REFAHE D
EFABRZMER25% °

HRNEH

BEFNSHEMAES  GEKEEERS
28 B8 T m A 45 128.25% /Y 7 K 8%
o RHBBE2E BB T A E A&
16.5% M T R G o TS M RHFE
MEBRZEBERBZ 2N BEER
16.5% 2 &) — R EBUKFLTE - ARF AN
AN 6 B 12 F/ S A B AT (] B R B R
F - A\ AF ERHR BB ISR
B ZEZ—F:&|)-

03 4 2 P 18 B

B 11 5% b 2 BRS04 2 fi
BERFIR17%HE -

BEBEEREHR

BB XISV MIE S E 2 fEH R
Bim MR 15% 5 & »

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax represents tax charged on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Mainland China. In
general, the Company’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
25% except for certain subsidiaries which are entitled to
preferential tax rates.

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong profit tax
was made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2021: Nil).

Singapore Corporate Income Tax

Singapore Corporate Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Taiwan Corporate Income Tax

Taiwan Corporate Income Tax is calculated at 15% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.
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12. $iE (8) 12. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Htt R 2= Others jurisdictions
BIEHEMERRBRELHE ([REE
ZHE )RR RBH - ANEEHBA!

MHASHERABRXEHESHNEMFAE

Pursuant to the rule and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

B o

AEERAXHEFABRaEMEE
WaERAZBRBATEIRE RN T -

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

—_EF_-__ —E-—4F
2022 2021
FHET T T
HK$"000 HK$’000
(geE5)
(Re-presented)
BREREEER Continuing operations
B 6 A 5 18 Loss before taxation (117,736) (54,465)
HEATERHFEE25% (== Tax at the domestic income tax rate
Z—F : 25%) T E 2 HBIE of 25% (2021: 25%) (29,434) (13,616)
AT H 2 BT E Tax effect of expenses not deductible 1,598 11,590
BERBWMAZHIELE Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose (2,276) (16,665)
FERREBEZREFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 19,497 17,850
BEMERIBTE Tax effect of preferential tax rate (737) (3,189)
RER A HIBEGR =2 2 FiI8 Tax effect of deductible temporary
o differences not recognised 517 445
EEMBNEEE ZTRBEZ Effect of different taxation rates in
TE other jurisdictions 8,717 7,183
BEFEBERE Overprovision in prior years (3,937) (235)
HABEARERZFIERE  Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (1,937) (1,533)
RNEZRIE (GTA) X Taxation (credit) charge for the year (7,992) 1,830
M BARERERTELEZERRER Note: The domestic tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of the

2 EEBE o

major group companies operating in the PRC.
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13. AFEFR 13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
REFFHBRLEEEE BTN (G Loss for the year from continuing operations has been arrived
A) TNF B IBEZER : at after charging (crediting):

—E-C T
2022 2021
THET FTHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(=5)
(Re-presented)
BEREER Continuing operations
BIA(RREEERSREEEM Staff costs (including Directors’ and senior
%) management’s emoluments)
— e kHEMEKAR — Salaries and other costs 148,537 148,608
— RIKBFIF B — Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 15,045 15,012
#E TR Total staff costs 163,582 163,620
W BERNMEZFEREER Less: amounts capitalised in inventories (14,322) (24,194)

HWETHRA GEABEERRBKA + 5 Total staff costs (included in cost of sales and

HRHEBERERTHER) services, distribution and selling expenses and
administrative expenses) 149,260 139,426
BiERITE Amortisation and depreciation
— EREESEGIATTHER) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in administrative expenses) 8,648 10,734
— REMENE GFATHER) — Depreciation of investment properties
(included in administrative expenses) 955 166
— FREEENE GEAMEE LR  — Depreciation of right-of-use assets
BERARITRER) (included in cost of sales and services and
administrative expenses) 76,524 86,401
— W% BERH 1%?)?&(#)\% — Depreciation of property, plant and
ERBRBEAE - DERHEER equipment (included in cost of sales and
HITRER) services, distribution and selling expenses
and administrative expenses) 36,215 35,898
BHERITERE Total amortisation and depreciation 122,342 133,199
ZER B 2 Auditors’ remuneration
— REBR% — Audit service 3,815 4,282
— IEBURTS — Non-audit service 924 1,406
BRAX L ZFEKE Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
(B IEF ' MM 469,000/ T (including write-down of inventories
(Z2=—F:THn)) amounting to HK$469,000
(2021: HKS$Nil)) 193,206 219,910
X (Was) B8R Net foreign exchange (gain) loss (4,024) 2,902
MERSWA  HBZTELHEER  Property rental income, net of negligible
outgoing expenses (1,603) (757)
EERNERE Gt AE iz skEE)  Impairment loss on goodwill
(included in other gains or losses) = 46,358
MrkFREERGIAEMER) Research and development expenses (included in
other expenses) 29,110 34,331
WEHREER GIADHRMEEM) Sales promotion expenses (included in distribution
and selling expenses) 428,680 313,178
REEEEZHETIE Lease payments for low-value assets 108 563

RPHE HERE Lease payments for short-term lease 1,320 2,109
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14. CRIEEEEK

RZE__FWANH  ARalzzxE&
MEBARIR T EEEEERAR ([REA
B )  ARR) 2R R RYI TR
REEETEARAR (RIIZEmZE]) &
HERAER)EMHEM AR AT ([H B
&) RIS IR iR i - R - [R5 B2
FHEBEHERE LS MRYIZERZR B B4
AEBEEHEERD HERHTER
55.43% IXHE - R BRI FE43() °

HEFHR(HESFR)ER=-FT ==

tAZ+AB (B K - X
RERHBRELENESTEFHIELELZ
FRBEERERUEREXHITHE
RUIEEZEXT RRARHTARREZE
MEBARSTR®E (BMN) EMEMAR
AR (RETHREEE]) 2 X RAE
BHEKIR - GEBEEREMEEK
BRNEBEFCEFNZ2IHMBEREEE

B/ FRAKRAERILEEEL 2 HF 5
rar

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 6 April 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.*
(R #xEEAR A7) (“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Waranty
Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (RIITTERFEEESHEARA
Al) (“Shenzhen Waranty”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company and SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (7B &
(bR AT ABR A F]) (“SPF”) entered into the equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Tongfang
Pharmaceutical has conditionally agreed to sell, and Shenzhen
Waranty has conditionally agreed to purchase the sale share,
representing 55.43% equity interest in SPF. Details of the
transaction is set out in Note 43(a).

The disposal (the “Disposal”) was completed on 29 July 2022
(the "Date of Completion”) and constitutes a discontinued
operation under HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” as the operation of the SPF and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, SPF (Suzhou) Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd.* (Hr B8 (M) £ E M B R A R]) (collectively, the “SPF
Group”) represents a major line of business of the Group. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income have been re-presented
the operation of the SPF Group as a discontinued operation.

Profit from discontinued operation for the period/year is
analysed as follows:

BH-E——
—HA—RE BE_T=-_—F
EXBEH +=-A=+—8
Z B IFFE
Period from
1 January 2022

to the Year ended

Date of 31 December

Completion 2021

FHET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ANERRE, 1 FE i A Profit for the period/year 35,949 51,742
HENRB AR 2 U Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

(Mi5E43(@)) (note 43(a)) 20,993 —

56,942 51,742
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14. SR ULEKEEK (B) 14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED)
BRI EEBSNEEZ DN Analysis of the results of the discontinued operation:
BH=-ZE_——
—B—HZ #HE_ZT_—F
SERBEH +-—A=+—H
Z Hi HFE
Period from
1 January 2022
to the Year ended
Date of 31 December
Completion 2021
TH&xT FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
A Revenue 115,442 157,822
L= 3= Expenses (76,226) (103,683)
B 75 B A Profit before tax 39,216 54,139
18 Taxation (3,267) (2,397)

HFRRBERIEELET Profit for the period/year from

Z i Al discontinued operation 35,949 51,742
EERS ORH) R Operating cash (outflows) inflows (6,720) 27,012
KERS R Investing cash outflows (14,359) (19,394)
BMERERA Financing cash inflows 8,030 (454)
B (Rt mRAFRE Net cash (outflows) inflows (13,049) 7,164
EREERNEEEHNEERBER The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of SPF Group

HER M 5E43(a) 1 55 © at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 43(a).
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15. 8K (B8 BF 15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
RAFIREEM 2 BRRER R E (& The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
B)BATERATEIRTE - share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

—s-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
FHET AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(5EE5))

(Re-presented)

AT E AR A B R E(G S (Loss) profit for the year for the
ARG EE (E18) BFIZEF  purposes of basic and diluted (loss)

JE (E18) &= A earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company
— REFELEER — from continuing operations (84,878) (47,713)
— REERIERE B — from discontinued operation 43,332 32,665
(41,546) (15,048)
—F=-= T
2022 2021
B 17 & 15
Shares Shares
&% EE Number of shares
RAGESRERK#E Weighted average number of ordinary
(E18) BF @R shares for the purposes of basic and
FHE diluted (loss) earnings per share 5,578,713,777 5,578,713,777
TRz E AR N T 5 2T R HIBR The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown
AR EI A B A & (AR =BT 31 ]) above has been arrived at after deducting the shares held by
B 2R IEZER - the share award scheme of the Company (the “Share Award

Scheme”).
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15.

16.

BR(EE) B (&)

HREE—T-_—_F+=-A=+—H1
FEWHEBEEDRITLER  HUES
NEEZT-_—F+A=+—HIF
ERSREE (BB) B - t8&#E5=
T —F+-A=+—BHULEFEENER
B8 (5FR) BT EREARA R ERE
BITE RRAAZEERENTEES
RRDEFHTHE -

iR 2

BEEefEZERNEBEE S -_—F1+=
A=+ HUEFEZRHEKRBE(ZZ
——F )

ARBIREBE_E_—_F+_A=1+—
BIEtFETES RSRMNEMBEE (=
T —F )

15.

16.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

No diluted (loss) earnings per share is presented for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as there was no potential ordinary
share in issue for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
computation of the diluted (loss) earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s share options as the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price for shares.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No dividend was declared or paid by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B £E
BEREEN HEEE HEREE ERIR EL RE BERE ag
Furniture,
Buildings and Leasehold Plant and  Construction  fixtures and Motor Fitness
structures improvements machinery  in progress  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
TEx TR THT THEx T THT TEx TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BA CoST
W=Z--%-H-A At 1 January 2021 197,652 112,785 74,673 34,248 44,145 9,471 8,487 481,461
ERER Exchange differences 5,529 925 1,495 1177 956 343 3,796 14,221
RE Additions 2,182 8216 20,218 155,385 12,673 1,365 1,004 201,643
ELiT Reclassification 29 19,675 9,348 (29,099) 47 — — —
HERHMH Disposals and write-off (115) (3,274 (1,826) = (1,061) = 2,721) (8,997)
WZZZ—F+ZA=F—H At 31 December 2021 205,877 138,327 103,908 161,711 56,760 11,179 10,566 688,328
EHEE Exchange differences (17,459) (115) (6,274) (16,336) (3,198) (1,140) (11) (44,533)
NE Additions 320 21,040 1,150 41,781 6,672 40 213 71,216
HERMH Disposals and write-off = (15,840) (848) (5) (2,187) (174) (7,359) (26,413)
ENN R Reclassification 5,485 = = (5,485) = = = -
BRERENE (H3E19) Transfer to investment properties
(Note 19) (42,608) - — - - — - (42,608)
HEHBAR Disposal of subsidiaries
(WzE43() R (b)) (Note 43(a) & (b)) - (65,615) (36,178) (9,714) (26,936) (3,342) = (141,785)
WZZZZF+-A=F—H At 31 December 2022 151,615 71,197 61,758 171,952 31,111 6,563 3,409 504,205
HERBE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
W=Z--%-H-A At 1 January 2021 27,865 46,825 16,783 - 20,753 4,595 6,122 122,943
ERER Exchange differences 1,246 2,849 563 = 480 118 158 5414
REERE Provided for the year 8,851 19,193 7,975 — 6,698 1,443 2,665 46,825
& R Disposals and write-off = (3,215) (1,603) = (800) — (1,917) (7,535)
“E--F+=-F=1+—H At 31 December 2021 37,962 65,652 23,718 - 27,131 6,156 7,028 167,647
ERER Exchange differences (5,946) (160) (1,544) - (2,086) (365) (1,255) (11,356)
rEERE Provided for the year 10,563 16,333 8,429 = 5,936 1,020 2,338 44,619
HERMEH Disposals and write-off — (10,574) (784) — (1,752) (166) (6,791) (20,067)
BRERANE (H7E19) Transfer to investment properties
(Note 19) (9,756) = = = = = = (9,756)
HEREAA Disposal of subsidiaries
ﬁﬁ&ﬂa( ) K (b)) (Note 43(a) & (b)) - (25,470) (10,808) - (10,842) (1,920) - (49,040)
WZZZZF+ZA=F—H At 31 December 2022 32,823 45,781 19,011 - 18,387 4,725 1,320 122,047
REE CARRYING AMOUNTS
WZZEZ=%+-A=1—H At 31 December 2022 118,792 32,016 42,747 171,952 12,724 1,838 2,089 382,158
“E--F+=A=1+—H At 31 December 2021 167,915 72,675 80,190 161,711 29,629 5,023 3,538 520,681
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17. Y% - BERRE (&) 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
Y BmERSEE(EEIRRERIN) The above property, plant and equipment other than
TN BEREIR T ERITE - A E construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
RoEEHROERERARNNEREE: method to allocate their costs to their residual values over

their useful lives, which are the following rates per annum:

EEREEY 2.5%—-9% Buildings and structures 2.5%-9%
FERE 4.5%-18% Leasehold improvements 4.5%-18%
[ 5= F M 22 59%-9% Plant and machinery 5%-9%
Bl KERRE 9%-20% Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20%
a1 18%-33.3% Motor vehicles 18%—-33.3%
B 14.3% Fitness equipment 14.3%
NE@BZEFMNDEAELH - The buildings of the Group are situated on the leasehold land
in the PRC.
REEYE @ HERIEK\BEBEHN Details of the pledge of the Group’s property, plant and

Miz¥a9 o equipment are set out to note 49.
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REEE °

18. EAEEE 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
THERE RBERE  BHRO i NS RE BE By
Land use Fitness Fitness Motor
right equipment centres Offices vehicles Plant Total
TR THT T TR THT T FTHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZB=-=F
+=A=1+-H As at 31 December 2022
RAEE Carrying amounts 121,274 5,712 268,473 23,548 — — 419,007
R=B=-F
+=A=1+-H As at 31 December 2021
RHEE Carrying amounts 143,064 6,914 402,793 32,879 12 3,580 589,242
Bz-Z2-—F For the year ended
TZA=t-HLEE 31 December 2022
TERL Depreciation charge 2,917 1,285 66,037 5,620 — 665 76,524
HIEEEEEFANAS  Expense relating to
low-value assets 108
HEHEERRNRY Expense relating to
short-term leases 1,320
HERSTLEE Total cash outflow for
leases 88,955
{2 R & = s pn (P 2E) Additions to right-of-use
assets (note) 1,604
BE-E=--f% For the year ended
+tZA=t-HLEE 31 December 2021
RERX Depreciation charge 2,962 1173 79,341 2,847 78 1,007 87,408
HEBEEEBMMAZ  Expense relating to
low-value assets 563
HEHEERRNAY Expense relating to
short-term leases 2,109
HEReMLARE Total cash outflow for
leases 105,578
fE A E g () Additions to right-of-use
assets (note) 64,390
M : SEREARMIIHEMELENG Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases.
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18. EAEEE ()

RREFEE AEEEAESERER
H fEHEhd  RAERSEAFHE
Z MHEAYNETHRABIFETF
BB - REBERE S MK BHTE
HEGAERETFEERERE - HE
TR CFRE—F+ZA=+—
BIEFE @BBERAENETHE
ARIIERMERE  EFENT5%=
16% ° FEER TR RBEBI BRI E
BEZBIEMGEREAEE - REBTE
e E AR HA R R N R S HA R B R
B HIRIEZ I FEE A #0] 08 01T A H
M °

AEEREEETHERATHER
BoRFEERDVARNEEEASEE
EBFREE T AEERSEEERE -

ETYUHERERSAEE R A
BH BB RAT — FITE R TR IERE -
EATBAT  AEBEKkNFHEES
BEHEERE  NIRHEEE T -
FIis B A 12 RE(E v A A& B i JE
HFATE - AEBRHE R IRRTG
EEAEWEITFEHEERE - MR E
THIEENEEEASMFRBERALRE
REE  AEBSEHTHESLESE
WE/TEHRRIERE - TR WERS
FLZ A RGEA AEE Em - St B A
REBEHRBERRARNES - AEERE
T8 3E HR I 1 e A L A R o i fi
G o RSB OME PR IERED
ZERbE A E E#%E50,830,000%
TTERIBERILER - FR - AEERE
HAEBRMERIBRIRR EFERA B
FRLE—HMBRAENFERAEEE
22,613,00078 7T ©

—Z-_—F+=FA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For both years, the Group leases various fitness equipment,
fitness centres, offices and motor vehicles for its operation.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 7
years, but may have extension. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. Certain leases of fitness
equipment and motor vehicles were accounted for as finance
leases during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
and carried interest ranged from 5% to 16%. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has extension options for certain leases in Hong
Kong. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations.

Some property leases contain extension options exercisable by
the Group up to one year before the end of the
non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Group
seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide
operational flexibility. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The
Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The
Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise
the options if there is a significant event or significant
changes in circumstances within its control. During the year,
two of the fitness centres’ non-cancellable contract period
have expired and due to unsatisfactory performance related to
pandemic, the Group has decided not to exercise the
extension option and to cease the operation of these two
fitness centres. The remaining balance of capitalised
right-of-use assets relating to the extension period for the
right to use the fitness centres amounting to HK$50,830,000
has been derecognised in profit or loss. During the year, the
Group also derecognised right-of-use assets relating to fitness
centres and an office amounting to HK$22,613,000 in profit
or loss as a result of lease modifications.
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18. EHEEE (&) 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
THFEAERERREAE T cPEEE Land use rights comprise prepaid lease payments for the
T2 TS EFRIB - W FIERE B A leasehold land in the PRC under medium-term lease and is
REGERR ° released on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of

leases.
THE eI A N 224 - R R The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
EANFBEHEERE 2 BIFERRI - the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
HEEETAIGEEENAEERR - lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

AEEFEAEEERRFBIHNM T Details of the pledge of the Group's right-of-use assets are set
49 o out to note 49.
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19. REWF 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FHT
HK$'000
2N COST
RZE=——F—H—H At 1 January 2021 5,464
bE W =% Exchange differences 152
MRZTZ—F+-H=+—H At 31 December 2021 5,616
PE 7 =58 Exchange differences (477)
EBEmE - BEKF
(FF=E17) Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 17) 42,608
ERaEREEE Transfer from right-of-use assets 6,864
MRZZT__F+-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2022 54,611
e DEPRECIATION
R-ZZTE=——F—A—H At 1 January 2021 724
ME W =5 Exchange differences 22
NG ]G3 Charge for the year 166
RZZT-_—F+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2021 912
bE W =% Exchange differences (114)
HREWE  BEREZE
(PfF7E17) Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 17) 9,756
ERaTERREEE Transfer from right-of-use assets 1,191
AR E R Charge for the year 955
MRZZE__F+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2022 12,700
BRTEE CARRYING AMOUNTS
MRZZT__F+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2022 41,911
MRZZT_—4F+-H=+—H At 31 December 2021 4,704

FRAREMERBELERECRFHE
HEZAXN HENZHRBER=
EAF(CE_—F:+F) A&
BRAIRENEFMEGRAERRER
HE -#SiEHEESTEHEMNR -

The above investment properties are located in the PRC under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 3 to 20 years (2021: 20
years.), with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the lease
includes variable lease payments.
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REWME (&)

REBREMER T -_—_F+_A4
=t+—BWAFEH AE46,279,000/5
T AFENIREER AREEESE
&% B BN 5 B 30 4 B E A B S (S (B R
ETHHESD -

RFEDRBERAEETE - EHWEN
mZHSRREEH BN ENRET
Bl R ETHERME - mHEHEE TS
DEMRSHEE R IERUYEOE
o AR B ETTRE - BB ERTDH2ED
TRELAEYERZEHNRERME
E W EEYEREENTISESEL
HE - URRAREREMENRFER
E-MERBEFHBEREARNNT S K
8 - BURR R 15 Al 6L A0 1A 3 & NOR
8 ERKEE T E AR NREE M -

EREFMENRTER  ENESH
AEERER/REERNRE -

RBERR - AEBREMENFBR
NFESEHNERDT

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$46,279,000. The
fair value has been arrived at based on valuations carried out
by independent valuers with recognised and relevant
professional qualification not connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the income approach,
where the market rentals of the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved as well as other lettings of
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The discount rate is
determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the transactions of similar commercial properties and adjusted
to take into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties. The ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in
greater market volatility depending on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve, which has led to higher
degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

—E-=
2022
ALEZER
BREE -
Fair value at
Carrying level 3
amount hierarchy
THET THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R EIE R TR Industrial zone located in Beijing,
the PRC 37,760 41,847
MR BRI ERE  Land use right located in Shannxi,
the PRC 4,151 4,432

b EMEERERNRE R AR
e -

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.



248 HEZEEREEERAT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

20 B8 20. GOODWILL
T T
HK$'000
SREE CARRYING AMOUNT
RZTE=Z—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 404,265
RAFERRZBEERE Impairment loss recognised in the year (46,358)
ME H =5 Exchange differences 875
MZZFEZ—F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2021 358,782
HE B E AT (MizE43(@)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(a)) (55,351)
P 5 =R Exchange differences (2,174)
MZZTEZZF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2022 301,257
7R 2 R E (A FE B E M FE22 o Details of impairment assessment on goodwill are set out in

note 22.
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25
1. BEEE 21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
eHEE ERYTUR BE  KEHE  EFEE HRER £ E @zt
Club Product Franchise ~ Customer Development  Computer
membership license  Trademark  agreement relationship expenditure software Total
THT TiEx THR THT TR THR THT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Mg a) (M7 b)
(note a) (note b)
2% cosT
“Z--%-f-H At 1 January 2021 278 6,945 92,876 195,316 17,422 50,747 1,740 365,324
EiES Exchange differences — 245 — — — 343 (40) 548
"E Additions — 3411 — — — 18,313 2,050 23,774
HE—FMB AR (K F43(0) Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 43(c) = = = = = (56,728) = (56,728)
WZE--§+ZRA=1+—-H At 31 December 2021 278 10,601 92,876 195,316 17,422 12,675 3,750 332,918
ERES Exchange differences = (898) = = — (850) 38 (1,710)
HERBAR (f43a) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 43(a)) — — — — — (3,152) — (3,152)
RZE--F+-fA=+-H At 31 December 2022 278 9,703 92,876 195,316 17,422 8,673 3,788 328,056
B AMORTISATION
K-Z-—-%-f-H At 1 January 2021 - 1,983 — 23,330 12,485 6,275 38 441
BHERE Exchange differences = 67 = = = 175 36 278
REFMR Charge for the year = 719 = 6,510 3,485 — 20 10,734
W=E--f+-fA=1-H At 31 December 2021 — 2,769 — 29,840 15,970 6,450 94 55,123
ERES Exchange differences = (260) = — - (332) 6 (586)
RAFEENR Charge for the year = 659 = 6,510 1,452 — 27 8,648
HERB R (fi:43a) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 43(a)) - — — - — (3,031) - (3,031)
RZZBZZF+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2022 = 3,168 = 36,350 17,422 3,087 127 60,154
REEfE CARRYING AMOUNTS
RZBZZf+ZA=1+-8 At 31 December 2022 278 6,535 92,876 158,966 - 5,586 3,661 267,902
RZEZ-5+ZA=t+-8 At 31 December 2021 278 7,832 92,876 165,476 1,452 6,225 3,656 277,795
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21. B EE (&)
P& -

@@ AFEZEFABHABIEENR.

HER] 0 B B AR K A A B A
ARBPEERE AEEERHELE
BENABERESR - At "ARES
SEEREEERAIEAFENY  FE
HEReHRe R A FREEERY
AR - AEERFHEHENAERF
HegsEma  AEEERAEASE
HFHEBEEAEE - WBSE A
] {2 R F HART (b R IR B S A RIZ AT
EEEEAR - BRE T EEE B
2R ERFERRTERERALL - B
Mz BEREFREEETRE
7R A B2 R RUE RS VR E DRI - R E
B IE I EE M RE22 -

(b)  PATERUEETFKT True Holdings ([True
Cayman]) X K B 2 & ([True
Cayman# [ ]) 2 51% % 4 ([ Truelds
BEE]R® AfEER2EHINZER
BRARREKNBAF ([True Yogate
B ) B RIRER A S R
ZHEBREN BT —tFHA
—+NBRAHZ304 - MTrue Yogate
EHETRAZNFTEE ARAES
BRI m A A F R R
BEAGZENANEER  YE&H#
TEE R A 370 A F BT -
REBEE-T-_—_F+=-HA=+—HL
FE EBEHRRABFHFEE KA
37,803,000 L (=& = — % :
37,796,000/ T) ©

REAERAERFHZEMERERER
SN - BB ERE SR A T HAf #5H

EmaaE 5-74
Bt 304
BEEBE Bfe=
HEER 10-184F
BN 3%

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) The Group's trademark has a definite legal term but is continually
renewable upon expiry at minimal cost. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group would renew the
trademark continuously and has the ability to do so. As a
result, the trademark is considered by the directors of the
Company as having an indefinite useful life because it is
expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
useful life of trademark with indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis. The trademark will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing
are disclosed in note 22.

(b) Upon completion of the acquisition of 51% equity interest in
TFKT True Holdings (“True Cayman”) and its subsidiaries (the
“True Cayman Group”) (the “True Acquisition”), the Group
grants and provides True Yoga Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary (“True Yoga Group”) with non-exclusive rights to
operate the franchise business in Taiwan for a term of 30 years
commencing from 29 May 2017 and True Yoga Group shall
pay a monthly franchise fee. The directors of the Company
determined the useful life of the franchise agreement to be
same as the contractual period of the franchise agreement and
an annual review has been performed to support the useful life
assessment. During the year ended 31 December 2022, royalty
fee income of HK$37,803,000 (2021: HK$37,796,000) is
recognised.

Other than the club membership and trademark, which have
indefinite useful lives, the intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Product license 5-7 years
Franchise agreement 30 years
Customer relationship 5 years

Development expenditure 10—18 years
Computer software 3 years
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. BERELEEREMNN 22. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BEEEEZRE - K202 mERR For the purposes of impairment assessment of goodwill, the

BESDREEMMERSEEEMAT carrying amount of goodwill in note 20 have been allocated

to two groups of CGUs as follows:

—E=-= —F-—
2022 2021
FER FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERIEER LK EREM Manufacturing and sales of prescription
BEm([ERA]) drugs and laboratory related products
("Unit A") 162,831 220,356
R B R AR & FfE  Operating fitness centres and providing
REBARSARCERFFFE  consultation services for fitness and
BLAES R EERA health activities and operating the
([#84zB)) franchise business for royalty fee
income (“Unit B") 138,426 138,426
301,257 358,782
REENENES  TEBEEARESR For the purpose of impairment assessment, assets mainly
BEZME BMELRRE BREELE include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
REEE (BECEEESER) - ERE right-of-use assets (including allocation of corporate assets)
BREEANZEE Tt ARBRBREEE that generate cash flows together with the related goodwill
EBMNHEE are also included in the respective groups of CGUs.
B 5E21 Pl 2 AN & B EE qm 3T ) 78 I B Product license and development expenditure of the Group as
B BEEF A TEERENEH set out in note 21, certain production facilities and related
T Mo AR R AR AR E W R T land use rights in the pharmaceutical business and goodwill
ZEEERAA(TRIFEZE]) 260%K arising as a result of the acquisition of 60% of the equity
ERMEANEEEIRETEEREA interest in Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd
SEEBAMHHRMEESREMA - ("Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) in prior years are allocated to

Unit A which management expected the Group would benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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22. BEREFEERENE (F&)

3521 8L 2 A R BRE R -
ERBHRECME  REEHIET
HERAARSRERERBEEES
RTrue B EBMELNABEE SRS
FRBENAEE NG A A AN
HE B -

AYXEEEEEERN T _—_F+_-A
—t+—BHRESELBMMAR AT RE S
B OARBRIEB I BEGEMETS
E-EBE MReEEBEMAR KD
SHEMEERFEHEBRIBALT

FREEEEMBE 2B SR )
ERERAEENEEET - ZatE &K
BAEREMBMARAREF ZHEEE
AERZBHRESRETEN - mEAMA
NEBEMNMBZ AR ED A A14.57% K
19.65% (= ——F : B ARBENBY
B A14.62% 5 18.69% ) o BEfi1 AEA B {if
BRERAFHREcFHFERAERE
DEAE193% (=T =—F : 19.8%) &
10.6% (ZF = —F : 9.0%) - BEfIAHE
BMBEBAFHE 2R REHFER
BEERERI% (T - —F : BAR
BAIBHY A3%) HE - ZFIERE
BTEER AR AT S BBHABT
¥Z2FHRERBERER - FHEETES
ZEBWEERILBEEEHEEREE
A A RBERESRARRHEL - T)
AENZEBU s BRERALREEES™M
BEREZERE  UERFTETERENF
%E .

I

22.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark, franchise agreement, computer software and
customer relationship of the Group as set out in note 21,
certain leased and owned fitness facilities in the fitness
business and goodwill arising as a result of the completion of
True Acquisition in prior years are allocated to Unit B which
management expected the Group would benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

To support the management to determine the recoverable
amount of groups of CGUs as at 31 December 2022, the
Company engaged independent professional
perform the valuation. The basis of determining the
recoverable amounts of the above groups of CGUs and their
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

valuers to

The recoverable amounts of the above groups of CGUs have
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses expected cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a
five-year period, and discount rates for Unit A and Unit B are
14.57% and 19.65% respectively (2021: 14.62% and
18.69% for Unit A and Unit B, respectively). The average
annual income growth rates for the first five-year period are
19.3% (2021: 19.8%) for Unit A and 10.6% (2021: 9.0%)
for Unit B. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2% for both Unit
A and Unit B (2021: 3% for both Unit A and Unit B). These
growth rates are based on the forecasts of the relevant
industries and do not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industries. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations included budgeted operating
expenses and their related cash inflows and outflows patterns,
estimated based on the units’ historical performance and the
management’s expectation of the market development and the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic.
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BEKEFEERERNM (&)

AEEBEEERE  RBEE=-ZT=_—
N—E-—FE+-_FA=+—HItFEE
EEESHEEAZENARMERE R
AEBEMAR-_ZE-_—F+-_fF=+—
B &9 7] Ug [B] 4 2B 49642,994,0007 JT(—
T — — 4 :1,083,787,000 T) & R H
FRAERTER © 8 49163,568,0007% 7T
(ZZ=——% : 370,256,000 ) - &2
EBiE  FAEEREZEMNEERA
REEE) N2 EHEMAZ A UK E 558 Rk
EERAREFEASE -

HE_Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEF
B ARREZCRERIDINES
I 2K 40 T8 A A% VR 18 B BB AIBAY R 1B 38
T HEN T -_—_F+_A=+—HB#
TZE BUBR-ZE-__F+_A8
Tt BB EBEE ALY
440,289,000 L (=& = — F :
557,461,000 7T) * mARAEHEREE/NTE
BB & %8#30,959,0008 L (=T =—4F:
54,730,000/ 7T) - BEEREE(E - EE

DREMERESER EEH BT EEH

EMBM A WEISE NKREERNERTA
=

22.

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Management of the Group determined that there were no
impairment on Unit A containing goodwill during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the recoverable
amount of Unit A as at 31 December 2022 of approximately
HK$642,994,000 (2021: HK$1,083,787,000) is higher than its
carrying amount with headroom of approximately
HK$163,568,000 (2021: HK$370,256,000). Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any key
assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of Unit
A to fall below its carrying amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of
the Company have identified the performance of fitness
segment has not been recovered as expected as impairment
indicator for Unit B. Based on the assessment performed at
31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of Unit B as at
31 December 2022 is determined to be approximately
HK$440,289,000 (2021: HK$557,461,000) which is higher
than its carrying amount with headroom of approximately
HK$30,959,000 (2021: HK$54,730,000). Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any key assumptions
would not cause the recoverable amount of Unit B to fall
below its carrying amount.

253
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

—_E:__ ==
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
WEKA  JELET Cost of investment, unlisted 21,640 21,640
FEAG Wi 1% (1 Share of post-acquisition reserves (21,640) (21,640)

REERFEHRZBEQARRE AR
HeHEFMR I z2ERIIERAR
NAE] c EEBEIIERER AR Z29%M%
AERER_ZE—+tERA -1+ NBH
ANEBUEE © True YogalE BE QBN =
AL B R AR L B AN R A AR
%o 2EBMINERBR AR ZFBAT

The Group’s investment in associate at the end of the
reporting period is True Yoga Holdings Limited which was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. 29% equity interest in
True Yoga Holdings Limited was acquired by the Group on
29 May 2017. True Yoga Group is engaged in operating
fitness centres and providing consultation services for fitness
and health activities in Taiwan. Details of True Yoga Holdings
Limited is as follows:

AEER T B R BREMER RRIE FEERGEERRAESE TEXH
Place of Place of Paid up registered Effective equity interest
Name of company registration operations capital Voting power attributable to the Group Principal activities
—E--F -—BE--—&F Z—EB--EF —E-—F
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % % %
RERMERERART  HEHES = 165,245,000% & % 29 29 29 29 HEAERRK
True Yoga Holdings Cayman Islands Taiwan New Taiwan dollar Investment holding
Limited 165,245,000

AEBEHAEREZEBMINIERER A A
BE-_T-_—Ft+-RA=1+—HIEE
Z 833,725,000 Tt (& — — F :
22,230,000/ 7L) MR =T ==
TZA=T—HBZ R REREGEE
Al £81,072,0008 L (=T = — 4 :
48,641,0005 7T) ©

The Group has not recognised loss for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounting HK$33,725,000 (2021:
HK$22,230,000) for True Yoga Holdings Limited and the
accumulated unrecognised share of loss as at 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$81,072,000 (2021: HK$48,641,000).
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AEEEREER I BEARBEESE
B eomBEZZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H
I - REB D M43 it HE
FIEEMEE - GHAEBMEIRAT -

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

24. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group was engaged in breeding and selling of laboratory
mice. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed all of the biological assets as per stated in Note
43(a). Below is the reconciliation of movement for the
balance:

FHET
HK$'000
WN_ZE-_—%F—H—H At 1 January 2021 12,846
EZ A Increase due to breeding 63,991
HEE SLTm Decrease due to sale/mortality (68,391)
EBRE S BN FEMIE Gain arising from changes in fair value less costs to sell
P 7N 5 i 72 AR Y W e attributable to price change 8,540
X Z5 Exchange difference 58
R-ZB_—F+-_HA=+—H
22— —#—H—H At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 17,044
EHEEE M Increase due to breeding 39,458
EEE ST Decrease due to sale/mortality (34,482)
& I B A B (Mt 5E43(a)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(a)) (21,856)
PE & Z & Exchange difference (164)

R-ZZE-_—_F+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2022 —

EDEARKA BEEEFHIEER
WA —FRHE Ao EAREE
2 fgi%ﬁJ B2 AFEREMSLEEA
HERNFESERFE=F o (HERME
E—FEFAELEEE - NAFTED
BENATER  £EMEENGTS K&
ERBRERAE -

qN-:
1k
=
o)

Mice are classified as immature until they are ready for sale
and classified as current assets if they are to be sold within
one year. The fair value of laboratory mice is categorised into
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy under market comparable
approach. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value
of the biological assets, the highest and best use of the
biological assets is their current use.
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25. & 25. INVENTORIES
—_E:__ ==
2022 2021
TET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R % Raw materials 17,302 29,502
=2 H Work in progress 23,902 35,687
BLAK om Finished goods 70,532 46,957
111,736 112,146

FA - FEKZA D 193,206,000 7T
} 51,376,000 (=& = — 4 :
219,910,000 Jt X 53,165,000 JT)E
BRARISELCEEB RO R IELE:

BHRX BE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=1+—
HIEFE BARAETELERZAER
FEKEERKDN  AEBERFEL
BESHERT ER#H469,0008 T (==
——F T

During the year, cost of inventories of HK$193,206,000 and
HK$51,376,000 (2021: HK$219,910,000 and HK$53,165,000)
are recognised as expenses for continuing operations and
discontinued operation respectively. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group has recognised an allowance
for inventories of HK$469,000 (2021: HK$Nil) for continuing
operations due to drop in net realisable value below cost of
certain aged products.

26. EWE Z 1B 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E-_—F —EF-—
2022 2021
FH T FHE T
HK$°000 HK$'000
fEU 2 5318 Trade receivables 126,914 142,301
B EEEBERE Less: Allowance for credit losses (3,270) (2,355)

FEUNE 5 I ERE Net trade receivables 123,644 139,946
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26. BWE 5 FE ()

RERREXBEFSEBRERREHE
R YR HRIAIN - NE B2 BER
RETHEESEP RN F30E180K
ZEEH - RBSHPRENBEZAHZ
52 FEWE 5 308 (MR EE B REE)
ZHREB DT

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Other than the trade receivables in relation to the payment to
be settled through credit cards for customers in fitness
business, the Group has a policy of allowing its trade
customers credit periods normally from 30 to 180 days. The
aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit
losses, is presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period as follows:

—=E__ —=EF—
2022 2021
TET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$’000
0ZE90K 0 to 90 days 79,150 85,918
912180k 91 to 180 days 33,925 25,617
181 £ 365K 181 to 365 days 7,004 21,791
Bia1E Over 1 year 3,565 6,620
123,644 139,946

N-B-—F+-_HA=+—08'B:tA
JEWE ZHIEREARAEERFARE
g 2= 481,504,000 T (ZF = — F
6,364,000 7C) ' ERRGEEENE 5
B2 A - REBRIRERREERR
H2ZREAEE - TERKZEZE RS

BEREWE 5 EREF G2 FEBEHD
M 5E48 o

As at 31 December 2022, included in total trade receivables
are bills receivable amounting to HK$1,504,000 (2021:
HK$6,364,000) held by the Group for future settlement of
trade payables. The Group continues to recognise their full
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. All bills
receivables are with a maturity period of less than one year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 48.



258 HEZEEREEERAT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. EHRAK 27. CONTRACT COSTS

—_E:__ ==
2022 2021
TExT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEfR Current 5,536 5,048
JEENHR Non-current 892 908
6,428 5,956

AEEHRENS A S RAAIIER
REARARE D02 EEANELEY
ERZEHEBERS -

BHRANEREE S EHE RAAG
MABRWABER GG ESREMEMA
WERERAEDHLEEER 2 — 2
BTN RNIBEEFEERZENEEL
7R 4 %8 452,609,0008 T (— T = —
F 13,138,000 70) ° BAR(LE KKK
2 FEEERKFRNE LG KK A 8
A - TREIE R —FNERZ A LKA
ENEARBEE -

MASEREEAZEESFENR—F
HAR - AIAEEERBEREE XA
RIS EEESRERLANIRREZA
M2 BRRIER AR ELR R R

The Group incurred incremental sales commission to
employees in connection with obtaining contracts with
customers for use of fitness centres, in the form of monthly
membership and personal training classes.

Contract costs are recognised as part of distribution and
selling expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which
revenue from the related membership sales and personal
training classes are recognised. The amount of capitalised
contract costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was
HK$2,609,000 (2021: HK$3,138,000). There was no
impairment in relation to the opening balance of capitalised
contract costs or the costs capitalised during the vyear.
Contract costs that are expected to be recognised within one
year have been classified as current assets.

The Group applies the practical expedient and recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining contracts relating to the sale of
membership and personal training classes as an expense when
incurred if the amortisation period of the assets that the
Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.
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28. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

b | PREPAYMENTS
eS8 —E-—4F
2022 2021
FH T FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MR R At 2 2K Advance to suppliers 41,329 41,425
[=ENE s Deposits paid 6,228 7,313
TE FIE Prepayments 3,035 5,821
E {th e U 5RI8 Other receivables 21,764 21,029
& UL F B U A Interest income receivable 758 44
73,114 75,632

H fth fE U TR IE K 3R & 2 B RS R B A
R M 748 ©

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set
out in note 48.

Hihin& 29. OTHER INVESTMENTS
—_=E_-_ —=EF
2022 2021
FET T T
HK$"000 HK$’000
HBirRE (M) Other investments (note) 20,000 16,000
MieE : RIBAMBRITRIL CMIEE Note: Amount represented two fixed interest funds set up by

BET ETHNHRRER
NEAR+—EAEE - ATk
B AR & K B E A8 o AN EH
REESHEZIH IHER
HERET—_M@AR -

two banks. The funds will mature in six months and
twelve months from its subscription respectively with
fixed return of principal and interest. The Group
intends to hold the funds until maturity which is within
twelve months after the reporting period.
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30.

31.

ZRELTFER HE&REE  30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND
ZEY CASH EQUIVALENTS
ZRFEITFER Restricted bank deposits
RZZEZ—F+-HAH=+—8 ' #4 As at 31 December 2021, bank balances of approximately
& W RFRMITES2(b) AT BR - MIFTERIE HK$6,250,000 were frozen by two of the financial institutions
EXRRRNBRR 2 LBEERTEH which were related to the Shanghai Legal Proceedings against
MEmMERE RETRITEHEKD a Company’s subsidiary as disclosed in note 52(b) of these
6,250,000;8 7T ° consolidated financial statements.
ReRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents
RNEBFE ZRITERR TR IS H K 5T Bank balances held by the Group carried interest at market
B FHENTF0.00%E2.60%(ZF rates which range from 0.00% to 2.60% (2021: 0.00% to
——%F :0.00%%0.35%) ° 0.35%) per annum.
BREIRITERRIRIT AR ET (h 7 Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank deposits
1EE A T 5E48 © and bank balances are set out in note 48.
ENESREARREE 31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RRERRENEZBHEN 2 AKE An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables,
BNESHREREEZRESITAOT : presented based on the invoice date, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
—_E_-__ —=EF_—
2022 2021
S FHIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
0E90K 0 to 90 days 9,879 16,262
91£180k 91 to 180 days 8,565 17,021
181E365K 181 to 365 days 598 687
FE 814 Over 1 year 2,356 5,299
21,398 39,269

BEERIMRENEEHA30E180
Ko ANEEXREUBRBRERREK +
BRATEENFERNEEHRREE -

The credit period on purchases of goods and services is 30 to
180 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.
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HtEAFFERERZRE 32. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED
—_E:__ B =
2022 2021
T35t T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEWE WMEKMKRMEEN  Payables for acquisition of property,

HIE plant and equipment 10,472 8,329
HAth R IR Other tax payables 20,019 8,324
HAh FE A 5RI8 (M EE) Other payables (note) 41,206 43,606
HMmEtKEER Other accrued operating expenses 17,451 14,752
FEFS MKESE Rental and utilities payables 43,064 44,038
BEtESER Accrued expenses for advertising 686 687
& F 2 Interest payable 186 169

133,084 119,905
Mer: RZZTZ—_&F+-_HA=+—8 " & Note: As at 31 December 2022, included in other payables mainly
AH M ER RIBH 258 21558 42 represented the quality guarantee deposit of approximately
75 4919,476,0008 (& = — HK$19,476,000 (2021: HK$24,026,000) for pharmaceutical
F 124,026,000 7T) K & B R & business.
RITEE 33. BANK BORROWINGS
—_ZT—— —EF-—
2022 2021
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$’000
RITERK Bank loans 261,925 243,802
BHEM Secured 206,555 167,046
EEMA Unsecured 55,370 76,756

261,925 243,802
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33. SRITIEE (&) 33. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
FARITEEZEBHERAT The maturity profile of the above bank borrowings is as
follows:
—_EFE__ T
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BITERZRMSRAEE  The carrying amount of bank loans

W are repayable as follows:
—F A Within one year 158,772 226,705
—F LA F BT BB F More than one year but not
exceeding two years 15,857 6,933
M LA BB R R F More than two years but not
exceeding five years 57,127 10,164
AEE More than five years 30,169 —
261,925 243,802
W —FEREESIRESR K Less: Amounts due within one year or
STAREBEZHRIE on demand and shown under
current liabilities (158,772) (226,705)
—FREPRFAERBERE Amounts due after one year and shown
Z I8 under non-current liabilities 103,153 17,097
AEBAESRITERMKIE L EEFF Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank

IEE M FE49 © loans are set out in note 49.
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33. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

borrowings are as follows:

TEE 2R The exposures of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable-rate bank

—=E=-= T —4F
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR TS HEEEZE R Fixed-rate borrowings repayable:
BE :
—FE N IR Bk Within one year or on demand 141,403 226,705
—F U BN BERME More than one year but not more
than two years 15,857 6,933
M LA BB R R F More than two years but not
exceeding five years 57,127 10,164
AEE More than five years 30,169 —
AR T3 HREEE 2 A Variable-rate borrowings repayable:
BE :
—FR Within one year 17,369 —
261,925 243,802

REBEE_ZE_—_FR-_F_—F+_H
=+ —BLFE AEEBETEEZE
RFNE(JREB L F EER) £ E

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) of the Group’s bank borrowings
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as

T follows:
—=E=-— —E-—4F
2022 2021
B = Effective interest rate:
EERITEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings 3.00%-5.00% 2.70%—4.65%
FERITEE Variable-rate bank borrowings 2.69%—6.24% —

(FF=2.1% hnFr hn
WER 1T R IR B
([SIBORI))

(2.1% per annum above
Singapore Interbank Offered
Rate (“SIBOR"))
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34. EFEW A 34. DEFERRED INCOME

BT B

Government

grant

FHT

HK$'000

R—ZE-_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 —

bE H, =R Exchange differences 222

NE Addition 14,590
RiEzRFER (FI7E7) Recognised in profit or loss (note 7) (20)

MRZZTZ—F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 14,792
PE W =% Exchange differences (1,636)

NE Addition 10,129
RIS (MsE7) Recognised in profit or loss (note 7) (230)

MRZZTZ=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 23,055
AT AR BHREEL 2 BERA DT : The following is the analysis of the deferred income for

financial reporting purposes:
—_E:E__ —=F=-—

2022 2021

FET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

EREEE Non-current liabilities 22,834 14,550

mEN B & Current liabilities 221 242

23,055 14,792
REBERFRNE WA B A During the year, the Group received government subsidy of
10,129,000 L (=& = — F : approximately HK$10,129,000 (2021: HK$12,783,000) towards
12,783,000 7T ) 1B 4 = 3% it 1Y 2 & K the cost of construction of its production facilities. In 2021,
RoRZEZ—F  AEETE YWEK the Group also received government subsidy of approximately
¥ 48 B) 491,807,000/ TL A BB B & T &% HK$1,807,000 towards the purchase of certain equipment.
18 © 5% 517 B E T TR A IR AT UL A 3 8 % These subsidies have been recognised as deferred income and
EHBEEMGIERAFHzEEERT transfer to profit or loss as “other income” over the estimated

M EMW AL - useful lives of the relevant assets.
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AR ITREDATESR - FREAERE
TREEEZBRAHEMEE R EIE S
F oo GERERBUN AN E Z KT
BEIRABRAEBEANEBRETKREE
RIBEETIE o

BRERE

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

34. DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUED)

No transfer to profit or loss for the government subsidy
relating to the construction of production facilities during the
year as the construction is still in progress. The primary
condition for qualifying this government subsidy is the
completion of construction of production facilities which
management consider there is reasonable assurance the Group
would comply with.

35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

—s-= —E-—F
2022 2021
FTHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
wEEem L RIEEF ST Operation of fitness centres and
fi& FE a6 7R AR 75 provision of consultation services
for fitness and health activities 53,415 35,985
BERIHE MEEBE  Manufacture and sale of prescription
M E m drugs and laboratory related products 19,052 57,010
72,467 92,995
k) Current 72,467 92,995

/5

puli2

A ZZDT :

SREZIMAVIRRIZX
%ﬁﬁﬁ 7 B I B i == AR R om WU A B2
BRERRENAE

Contract liabilities represent advances

EK/\
advances are
transactions are completed.

received for the
membership packages or personal training or for sales of
prescription drugs and laboratory related products.
recognised as contract liabilities until the

These

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:
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35.

BREE (&)
e PLRRERBENEE
w o BR %%

BNEREZILAIRREZIRZE
RIBESCWR SR - E RSB AR
AZBHAEE-

RENFEERLHERERZHR
Em

AEBERETEPRHEMPZRE -
NE BRI EE AR ERE - R
BHHNEBHAMNARE EEHBEYH
FER B BIRE S5 -

BT TEEASEERSERHNESE
ZEMARRBASERTEFEEE M
IR RFEETDERRB RIERE
BE-

FUFAGHNEBEREE-_S-__F
+ZA=+T—HLEFENEERK=EA
92,995,000t (=& = — & :
108,709,000 7T ) ©

35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Operation of fitness centres and provision of
consultation services for fitness and health
activities

Transaction price is received in advance for prepaid
membership packages or personal training classes and this will
give rise to contract liabilities in which revenue has not been
recognised.

Manufacturing and sale of prescription drugs
and laboratory related products

The Group requires certain customers to provide upfront
deposits. A deposit received before the goods have been
delivered to the designated location will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of
the deposit.

Contract liabilities that are not expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
and non-current based on the Group’s earliest obligation to
transfer goods or services to the customers.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022
that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year is HK$92,995,000 (2021: HK$108,709,000).
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g A< 36. SHARE CAPITAL
o E EE
Number of
shares Value
FABT
HK$’000
HREE0.0028 T2 E B Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each
EE Authorised
R=ZF=——F—H—H =Z At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
——%+=-F=+—HKE=  and 31 December 2022
TZ-_—H#+-A=+—H 100,000,000,000 200,000
EETRAR Issued and fully paid
R-ZT-—F—HF—H —Z At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
——®+=-A=+—HBKE=  and 31 December 2022
T+ - HA=+—H 5,588,571,777 11,177
R=FE=—_=—F+=—A=+—H ' BKH As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated number of shares
HENRT 845 B 2 IR 1D 48 £1/59,858,000 held for the Share Award Scheme was 9,858,000 (2021:

f% (=Z = —4% : 9,858,000/%) ° 9,858,000).
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37.

38.

B RS

RNAaElz BT S ([MEARERTE]) »
—ET——FMA -+ )\HEH  §E-
B2EEAAEBELER @ WEASE
ESNBERGEAEE U S ®#ZE
B UARBPRBEAEBMEEZ AN
BR -EFSFEAEBERIBERER
BERRKER  REFHEHAEEED
EHBEEE  KERTIEER - 7%
MEHEEEMEEARERARASEE
EANBRZERMEBIAL AL
TAKERARIZEES S&BE R
B ERRR(BEAEEEAKE
RNAEZEMMITHIENITES) BT
AR AR T I 2 BB - BBARAERT
= ——F—A+/\BRFHE=Z
——F—A+tHLE+TFRABER - R
Z—RELA-+=-A BT3B
EEE NG AT 2142 & ££148,500,00017
FILATIE(E /50.6878 TT ) B A HE T 7 3%
A UAERBRARAAKRAS S X
148,500,000% A8 2 7] & A% E{E0.002 75
THERER BE_ZE-—F+_A
=t+—B FA%SERLBRECSS
Bk FAEZERETENR_-Z
——F—AttHEmL BERHK
B R Rk B8 R o

47 52 By =1 &

R-ZZE—RNREAA-TB(XEHKAB
1) ANRFIRMRD RS BE
LT EERE (BREES]) EE - LK
BREHGHAEEFELERER T
AAEBEZEENE—SERERBEEE
AT - EESAREIRGD BB S 21§
o AETEES (BEETRRESS
TREBHMNERASEIHTHAREER
E¥BBERENERZASBEEEKER
BIZEE 1THAE  SABEREM
BB (TimE Bk BEA QAR
15 - M0 BB RT 25T 2| 5 B4 B B
BRRES  BETF IR
FAATNALBER -

37.

38.

F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 28 April 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentives to participants to contribute to the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract and retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The board of directors may grant an
option to subscribe for the shares in the Company to any
individual being an employee, officer, agent, consultant or
representative of any members of the Group (including any
executive or non-executive director of any member of the
Group) who, as the board of directors may determine in its
absolute discretion, has made valuable contribution to the
business of the Group based on his/her performance, years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource of the
Group based on his/her working experience, knowledge in the
industry and other relevant factors. The Share Option Scheme
was valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
from 18 January 2012 to 17 January 2022. On 22 July 2016,
the Board resolved to grant a total of 148,500,000 share
options with exercise price of HK$0.68 each to the grantees
to subscribe for a total number of 148,500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each of the Company in the share capital
of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31
December 2021, all of such granted options have already
been vested or lapsed. During the year up to the expiry of
Share Option Scheme on 17 January 2022, there was no share
option granted or lapsed.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 20 September 2016 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted the Share Award Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives to selected employees (the “Selected
Employees”) in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personnel for the growth and further development of
the Group. The board of directors may award shares of the
Company, pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme,
to the Selected Employees including without limitation, the
Directors, executives, officers and other employees, whether
full-time or part-time, of any member of the Group from time
to time who the board of directors considers, in its absolute
discretion, has contributed or will contribute to the business
development of the Group. The Share Award Scheme shall be
valid and effective from the Adoption Date for a term of ten
years and expire on 19 September 2026.



38.

—Z " " FF3# ANNUAL REPORT 2022 269

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i SR B E & ()

WMEFSREM A REYET SR Rt
Z BRENR D ([EREA D |) BB IR
MBHEEITRIN B Z10% - AIESE
BT EH EE — P 2R

RIEE D ZRF BT —2EERE
ZREBENESHE T FEBNEMAB
HEETRNEREZ1% -

HRERMBEPZERTRMDEE S
4,950,000,000 % 815 + BUR IR I 15 228
ETEE 2RO ESEHE A
495,000,000/% & fn + i Al &% F — R i#
TREREZEBDBROD&E HE B
49,500,000 % f% 15 °

REBEEZZE-_—FR-_F-_—F+=A4
=+ —HLFE  BERERGZE
MR E R B BEEM KD c EEER
A BIRMNERE ERE 2K
MIBETHERR R -

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The board of directors shall not make any further award of
shares which will result in the total number of Shares
awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and approved by the board
of directors under the Share Award Scheme, to be in excess
of 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares as at the Adoption Date.

As the total number of Shares in issue was 4,950,000,000
Shares as at the Adoption Date, the maximum number of
Awarded Shares that may be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is 495,000,000 shares and the maximum number of
Awarded Shares that may be awarded to a Selected Employee
is 49,500,000 shares.

No share was awarded to Selected Employees under the Share
Award Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. The acquired shares was recognised and
accumulated in equity under the heading of “Shares held for
share award scheme”.
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39. RO RERHE

AEEMBEFREARE RN EE M

BzeENRARDRGA ESRDE
REXTE
() BAEEEARASHTROE ()

(ii)

F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

BEERENBEFEABHBAR
IR B X P E T AT 2 A
AEEMBANBRARRNEE

39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and
the movement therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The special reserve represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of the shares of subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a corporate reorganisation in the
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on

the Stock Exchange in previous years.

ZEFE o

RZBE-_—_F+-_HA=+—HZ (ii)
HMFEERFEUTEA -

1. FE#EES46,591,000/8 T 1.

— %~ —% : 46,591,000
AIT)  TITRRIEmMARZ
BEET  BEREREBE
B REESTARNEER
BHRER T REWRR ZEB

8

2. R-ZTE—+tFt+t A K& 2.

EEER_ZT—+tFFH
REFTZEE Wi —
# [ TFKT True Holdings
¥ & 5,000,000 7T (1HE
38,750,000 7T) °
It R E B R TFKT True
Holdings < #7 A% & 151 % &
INZE54% o JEFE iz AR
© REE AR (E IR — R
ARFEIMER ZEAFRER
{8 2 Z%82,666,000/%8 JT
B E At 15 8 I B R
2 Bl s A2,104,0008 7T &
562,000 7T

Other reserves as at 31 December 2022 comprise the
following:

reserve fund of HK$46,591,000 (2021:
HK$46,591,000) which is used to expand the
enterprise’s working capital. When the enterprise
suffers losses, the reserve fund may be used to

make up unrecovered losses under special
circumstances;
in July 2017, the Group further injected

US$5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$38,750,000) in
TEKT True Holdings pursuant to the sales and
purchase agreement signed in May 2017.
Consequently, the Group’s shareholding in TFKT
True Holdings was increased from 51% to 54%.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests and the fair value of
consideration paid in relation to the deemed
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary of
HK$2,666,000 has been credited to the other
reserves and translation reserve at the amount of
HK$2,104,000 and HK$562,000, respectively;
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39. R unEBERHE (&)

iy (%)

3. RZIZE—N\F—F ~5H
WEER 7 S £ E AR AT
HERA0% IR AN M 2R - FEIEAR
e BRE £ %8115,215,000
BT HER K ESHEENRE
A {E 2 Z=%6231,179,000
7SI B RS E Ath R M B R
B 5 BRI FIER 113,799,000
BT 82,165,000/ 7T ¢ &

4. WM =—_ZZT = —F — A
ANEBEWETFKT True
Holdings 10,000f% A% 15
(4918.77% P AN #E25)
{8 /&4,300,0003 7T (10
& 33,325,000/ 7T) °
it - AN E B AATFKT True
Holdings < #7 A% &€ 154 % &
INZE73% o FEIERREZIRE
SHHEENREQAFEZ
EFERNEMFEEREANR
22,385,000/ 7T °

TR B B S22 P B 2 B 8 4R B8 g A BE L
REZAERGH D R 2B - WRET
ZEMBARIAEERREZINERT
5

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

(i) (Continued)

3. in January 2018, the Group acquired the remaining
40% equity interest in Tongfang Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd*, the difference between the
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests of
HK$115,215,000 and the fair value of
consideration paid in relation to the Acquisition of
HK$231,179,000 has been debited to the other
reserves and translation reserve at the amount of
HK$113,799,000 and HK$2,165,000, respectively;
and

4. in January 2021, the Group acquired 10,000 shares
(approximately 18.77% equity interest) in TFKT
True Holdings with a consideration of
US$4,300,000 (equivalent to HK$33,325,000).
Consequently, the Group’s shareholding in TFKT
True Holdings was increased from 54% to 73%.
The difference between the carrying amounts of
the non-controlling interests and the fair value of
consideration paid has been debited to the other
reserves at the amount of HK$22,385,000.

The remittance of retained profits of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC outside the PRC is subject to approval
of the local authorities and the availability of foreign
currencies generated and retained by these subsidiaries.
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40. EEBIIE 40. DEFERRED TAXATION
RMERARNANRRAFERBEFE At the end of the reporting period and during the current and
A R EEERAZELERIEARE prior years, deferred tax liabilities (assets) were recognised in
(BEE)BENTEIARE : respect of the temporary differences attributable to the

following:

ES 38
MERKHE CEFERE LQATLERE Hity wE

Fair value

Accelerated Allowance  adjustments

tax for credit  on business
depreciation losses  combination Others Total
TAT TAT THT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=E-—%—f—H At 1 January 2021 5,767 (3,663) 76,120 (2,251) 75,973
ERER Exchange differences M = 683 (84) 710
REREFA Credit to profit or loss (876) (4,270) (3,083) (1,429) (9,658)
RZZE-—%+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2021 5,002 (7,933) 73,720 (3,764) 67,025
ERER Exchange differences @#17) (6) (2,300) 143 (2,580)
&I B 2 Rl (P 7E43(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(a)) = 18 = 1,547 1,565
RERE (GFA) k% (Credit) Charge to profit or loss (71) (8,426) (2,607) 175 (11,029)
RZZE-_—F+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2022 4,414 (16,347) 68,813 (1,899) 54,981
AR GERITEN AR IEEE Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
ERENEATS IR B B - MBEERTIS AR are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
A —BA BB R AR B - IR PRSI & B current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the

RIS A ER T - deferred income tax relates to the same fiscal authority.

AN Rt B mEEL 2 RERIEE E The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets and
BB ETEEHIBEEHR —/E liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax assets against
AR ERARLEHIEA EEER) DT deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial

reporting purposes:

—_E__ === —
2022 2021
FHET AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RERIAE E Deferred tax assets 162 232
REMIEE & Deferred tax liabilities (55,143) (67,257)

(54,981) (67,025)
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AR ARICHEA R EHAE - B
MEEERREFELCEEENETR
E) F B 18 55 48270,096,00058 7T (= =
——%F : 199,856,000/ 7T ) FERIE LT
HEE AERVEEEBEEBEELD
8,883,000 L (=% = — F :
66,819,000/ T) r HAI B H & B #BA
FEHELSHAETF - EHRAERH
THBIE ] R H 4 8E -

BIBCEMSHERERMA - PEAT
SHRENREANEMIEREERD
¥ | EHE (B ENF BRI ST E
XM (ERVE BB L EM
2 BEBRA BRI IFEZIS Tk E
X BAERE) WA B RRE - HZE A
B EREFEEN - RZEBMR
T AFBENBARREEEEEES
K B RS B ZE 3R 10 % sk B R A 177 7 7 SR A0
MIEMEL 474 B TE R R A0 & 5 AR B BT
BRI EM R & T 6 TR EE
309,285,000 (=& = — F
289,799,000 7T ) aHRIRERIIE - XA
AEERATERENBARNBE T _—
FRZFE—FF+_A=1+—HHRD
IRBFERARIERER - At ANSEE I
R AEE R FHEE KD IREFEFEH
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

40. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
certain unused tax losses of group entities from continuing
operations of HK$270,096,000 (2021: HK$199,856,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$8,883,000 (2021: HK$66,819,000) that may be carried
forward for a period of five to ten years from their respective
year of origination. The remaining unrecognised tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law and Implementation Regulations, PRC
withholding income tax is applicable to interest and dividends
payable to investors that are “non-tax resident enterprises”,
which do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC, or which have such establishment or place of
business but the relevant income is not effectively connected
with the establishment or place of business, to the extent
such interest or dividends have their sources within the PRC.
Under such circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries to off-shore group entities shall be subject to the
withholding tax at 10% or a lower treaty rate. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$309,285,000 (2021: HK$289,799,000). The
directors of the Company considered that the undistributed
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries as of 31 December 2022 and
2021 will be set aside for expansion of operations, and
therefore the Group has not provided for the deferred tax
liabilities in respect of withholding tax on the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC entities as the Group is able to
control the timing of reversal of such temporary difference
and it is probable that such temporary difference would not
be reversed in the foreseeable future.



274

HEZEEREEERAT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T-_—F+=-FA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

41.

42.

— =

BREAEE 41. PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COST
FHET
HK$'000
R=—ZE=——F—A—H At 1 January 2021 13,254
bE W E%E Exchange differences (119)
REOMNEE Additional provision 2,770
)R B Utilisation of provision (1,653)
MRZZ_—F+_-_H=+—H At 31 December 2021 14,252
ME H = Exchange differences 23
EHOMNE AR Additional provision 1,016
B Utilisation of provision (1,231)
B 5 Reversal of provision (724)
MRZT__F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2022 13,336
RIEEEF R 2B ERZE IER - R Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
SEENEBEEERZED BB RRE landlords, the Group should remove and re-instate the rented
RiEHHLSMEENEESISI - BA premises for fitness centres or office at the Group’s cost upon
RSB AE - Bt - RIS ERER expiry of the relevant rental agreements. Provision is therefore
TZEAR  AEBEEMREAELEZE made for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement
[REEAFTE 2 S E bR aT IR B4 o costs to be incurred after 12 months from end of the
reporting period.
HEEE 42. LEASE LIABILITIES
—E-_—F —EF-—
2022 2021
FTHExT FHEIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ENHEERE : Lease liabilities payable:
—F A Within 1 year 63,808 79,879
—FUEFEREA After 1 year but within 2 years 58,053 81,074
MEN EBERFEA After 2 years but within 5 years 150,762 218,888
AFE After 5 years 56,174 105,308
328,797 485,149
W T (B AR HEEZERKIE  Less: Amount due for settlement with
FIARE B &) 12 months shown under current
liabilities (63,808) (79,879)

+ A AREHEERR
GIAERBAR)

Amount due for settlement after
12 months shown under
non-current liabilities

264,989

405,270
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42.

43.

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Rent concessions

During the year, the Group received rent concessions in the
form of a waiver on fixed payments during the period of
severe social distancing and travel restriction measures
introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic, which met all of the conditions in
HKFRS 16.46B, the Group applied the practical expedient not
to assess whether the changes constitute lease modifications.
Accordingly, rent concessions totalling HK$6,885,000 (2021:
HK$29,169,000) have been accounted as negative variable
lease payments and recognised in the profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the lease liabilities.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@ On 6 April 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co.,
Ltd.* (AAFZEEXEBEBERLDA) (“Tongfang
Pharmaceutical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management Co.,
Ltd* (Rl ERFTEEETEBRAF) (“Shenzhen
Waranty”), a controlling shareholder of the Company
and SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HrB#& (4t
) EWEMBMRAF) (“SPF’) entered into the equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Tongfang
Pharmaceutical has conditionally agreed to sell, and
Shenzhen Waranty has conditionally agreed to purchase
the sale share, representing 55.43% equity interest in
SPF at the cash consideration of RMB159,675,300
(equivalent to approximately HK$192,264,000). SPF
Group is principally engaged in the sales of laboratory
related products. The disposal was completed on 29 July
2022 (date of disposal of SPF). Upon completion, the
Group ceased to have any beneficial interest in SPF
Group. Details of the disposal could refer to the
Company’s circular dated 25 May 2022.
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43. HEME LT (&)
(@ (&)

REEER BERHTEREEH

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) (Continued)

The aggregate amounts of assets and

liabilities

MEERBEABNET : attributable to SPF Group on the date of disposal were
as follows:
T
HK$'000
HE Total consideration:
HeRE Cash consideration 192,264
EREEFIEZEEREE DM ©  Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
Y - B kA (BFaE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 92,655
FREEE Right-of-use assets 2,836
2 (FfsE20) Goodwill (note 20) 55,351
mREE (KYsE21) Intangible assets (note 21) 121
EIERIEE ZE (M7E40) Deferred tax assets (note 40) 1,565
A& E (K sE24) Biological assets (note 24) 21,856
T8 Inventories 5,456
FEUE 5 7R Trade receivables 85,136
HEWFIA e KFBRFKIE  Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 9,598
H B Bk 5 ROR Amounts due from other related parties 553
ReERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 18,163
ENESREREE Trade and bills payables (11,608)
HEMEMREBEREKEZS Other payables and deposits received (18,129)
A< L A B B 5 FR0E Amount due to other related companies (7,193)
HIBEAE Tax liabilities (785)
RITIEE Bank borrowings (26,334)
EHEaE Contract liabilities (5,591)
HEESE Lease liabilities (3,394)
BEHEEEFR Net assets disposed of 220,256
& B A Bl 2 W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
B WK E Consideration received 192,264
FEREHECEER KA Transaction costs directly attributable to the
disposal (21,611)
BHLEEEFH Net assets disposed of (220,256)
FEFE IR HE 2 Non-controlling interests 70,596
&z e (FisE14) Gain on disposal (note 14) 20,993
HEEEZRERAFE: Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
AR & W B 2 (R AB Consideration received by cash 192,264
B EHEZIRERIEESEEY  Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (18,163)
MRS HHRF KA Transaction costs paid in cash (21,611)

152,490
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43. HEMB AT (&)

(b)

RN-ZE_—_F_A+HB A&
BEEERABMEZMEEEGR
RAZEERET —BBILE =
7 BReREAARM2,600,000
7T (}EE 73,185,000/ 7T) © WA
BB RARRK - TKIE A&
ETHERARMETEZERA
AP AR E S Em o FEMN
SHBEBR NG EER]D IO
HwE AR (FisEe) Ms st AREE
BT o

REE%R  BERERKES
BEERARNMNEERAEAE
mF -

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

On 15 February 2022, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Tibet Linzhi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
(FEEME B EARAR]) to an independent third-party
at cash consideration of RMB2,600,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,185,000) with waiver of amount due from the
subsidiary. Upon completion, the Group ceased to have
any beneficial interest in Tibet Linzhi Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.. The operation of Tibet Linzhi Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. is included in the Group’s pharmaceutical business
for segment reporting purposes (Note 6).

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities
attributable to Tibet Linzhi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. on
the date of disposal were as follows:

FHE T
HK$’000
HE Total consideration:
ReRE Cash consideration 3,185
D S NN NG Less: Waiver of amount due from a subsidiary (6,617)
(3,432)
BREZFIEZEEREE DM ©  Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
W - BB R (HaE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 90
FEWE 5 FIE Trade receivable 461
H b pE U 5K I8 Other receivables 1,284
BB SRIERERE Trade and bills payables (96)
HEAREREKEZS Other payable and deposit received (8,152)
AHARE Contract liabilities 61)
BEHEBEFH Net liabilities disposed of (6,474)
HE—BMHE ARzl s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
B K e WA (E Consideration received and receivable (3,432)
BEREBEFE Net liabilities disposed of 6,474
HE 2 zs (M5E8) Gain on disposal (note 8) 3,042
HEEEZRERAFH Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
VAR & WER 2 (B (B 5F) Consideration received by cash (note) 1,715
B EHEZIRERIEESEEY  Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of —
1,715

e FRERRESABARE
1,400,000 (M & R
1,715,000 7x.) - T &k 45 &
A K #1,200,0007T (8 E R
1,470,000 70) R = F
T=ERN

Note: Cash consideration of RMB1,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,715,000) was received during the year, and the
remaining balance of RMB1,200,000 (equivalent to

HK$1,470,000) will settle in 2023.
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(VEERg M B En Em L -
BRAARNEZIEZENBE A
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([Apros]) & #EaT &I NMREMFTA
BHHEET BEAEKERE
LEREFBKHEREREE
9,500,000f% A X 3| 1B % & %
([AprossH & &2 ])  HE R
AprostE BT RR AN 4979.83% : &
(VZRER R BHEIKER
BERERFEE(ERERA) R
Apros (1ERIEF ) IRIEMN A€ 48
%8 /55,000,000 TH ERE K E
BERF(EBER]  mMEAEK
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i

F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

On 22 October 2021, Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P. (the
“Seller”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Swiss Talent Group Limited GE/REEBRAF) (the
“Buyer”), an independent third party and the Company
(as the guarantor of Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P.),
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Apros
Sale and Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which (i) the
Seller conditionally agreed to sell and the Buyer
conditionally agreed to purchase 9,500,000 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock (“Apros Sale Shares”) of Apros
Therapeutics, Inc. (“Apros”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, representing
approximately 79.83% of the issued share capital of
Apros, on an as-converted and fully diluted basis and
assuming that all the shares reserved under the equity
plan of Apros have been issued; and (ii) the Seller
conditionally agreed to procure the novation of, and the
Buyer conditionally agreed to purchase, the loans
(“Novated Loans”) for an aggregated principal amount
of US$5,000,000 provided by Tongfang Pharmaceutical
(as lender) to Apros (as borrower) to be novated to the
Buyer pursuant to the novation agreements, at a total
consideration of US$16,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$124,000,000). The disposal was
completed on 25 November 2021 (“Date of Disposal of
Apros”). Upon completion, the Group ceased to have
any beneficial interest in Apros.
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c) (Continued)

All conditions in the Apros Sale and Purchase
Agreement have been fulfilled and the transaction was
completed on the Date of Disposal of Apros. Apros is
included in the Group’s unallocated business (Note 6).

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities
attributable to Apros on the date of disposal were as

follows:
FHIT
HK$'000
HE Total consideration:
BB Total consideration 124,000
B ERERZARE Less: Consideration for the Novated Loans (42,348)
81,652
BREZFIEZEEREE DM ©  Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
m g E (MFsE21) Intangible assets (note 21) 56,728
HMEWRFIA He KIBRFKIE  Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,063
RehB2EEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,255
FEETE A Accrued expenses (3,228)
RS AR E B R R Amount due to the Group (42,348)
BHEEEFHE Net assets disposed of 13,470
HE—BHE LRzl E Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
B E Consideration received 81,652
BEHEEEFH Net assets disposed of (13,470)
FEFE AR 5 Non-controlling interests (16,767)
HE 2 zs (M5E8) Gain on disposal (note 8) 51,415
HEEEZRERAFEH Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
AR & WE 2 KB Consideration received by cash 81,652
B EHEZIREREESEEY  Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,255)

80,397
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THIZESADHAZE  c RZENBA
AR BREZENB R IR 2R
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AEENRAREHKBFEREEFT
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BYE2RRESE a2z EER
AEBZEENRARE  FERBEE
AEHlzEE - BERAEEZ TS
REESAEBRAZS%E - &
BEMELR - SEEZBAEAHETE
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BB RAR RO BN B BRI -
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F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

44, RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The PRC employees of the Group are members of
state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local government. The Group is
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a
defined contribution scheme operated by Central Provident
Fund board of directors in Singapore. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds under the control of
trustees. The expenses recognised in these subsidiaries
represent contributions paid and payable to the plan by these
subsidiaries at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). All qualifying
employees in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Both employees’ and the Group's contributions are calculated
at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant income with the
mandatory cap, and the Group will make 5% top-up
contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary exceeds the
mandatory cap.

The Group’s contribution to the above retirement benefits
schemes are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
under the applicable laws and regulations.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are stated in note 13.
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45. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of about 3
to 20 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following undiscounted lease payments
receivable on leases:

—_E_-__ —EF_—
2022 2021
FE T FHIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—F A Within 1 year 3,367 399
—FIRERFEN After 1 year but within 2 years 3,367 417
MERE=FK After 2 years but within 3 years 304 417
= FEENFR After 3 years but within 4 years 304 417
MEZERFR After 4 years but within 5 years 279 417
AF& After 5 years — 382

7,621 2,449
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

REEF AT EARAE The Group had the following capital commitments:
—E—_— —EF_—
2022 2021
FE T FHEIT
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BET4ME RN A B T53REX A  Capital commitments contracted for but
2 BAERHE - not provided in the consolidated
financial statements:
— BEWE  BENEE — Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 93,075 118,572
EXEEERE 47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

REBEBHEEKR  UBERAERZE
BABECE  WEBEBLEBkER
BBRABADNAREHRFALR - A&
B EERSE F—FERFRE o

AEBEZEREBEBRRER (T ERHE
MIRE33FTIMEE < RITEE) RAR AR
REG#EZ  BREREBETERAN  #ER
RERN  c EFBFRIEAGEHE - F
Rz —#  EEGEEELAKAE
REEXRERRBAZAR BRREZZ
2E - ARBREBRITHRN BB
Bt R BEITH B S E mIR A B IAF
MEEBEANGEE -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners of the Company through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
mainly includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 33 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits. The
Directors review the capital structure on an annual basis. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through issuance of new shares and
share buy-back as well as the issuance of new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.



—Z - _F 3] ANNUAL REPORT 2022

283

e MR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

48. €T A 48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERMIAEZER Categories of financial instruments
—==-= - —F
2022 2021
FBT FHETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
TREE Financial assets
BB BERRREATFEEREE
ECEREE Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Hin & (H5E29) Other investments (note 29) 20,000 —
WE K AGTE 22/ EE  Financial assets measured at
amortised cost
FEW B 5 1A (FiEE26) Trade receivables (note 26) 123,644 139,946
H b EUGRIARE e Other receivables and deposits paid
(FFAE M R A « #7 (included in other receivables,
& R IERTFRIAE) (M 5E28) deposits and prepayments)
(note 28) 27,992 28,342
JEUS F B U A (B A H b e Interest income receivable (included
WERIE - e MR R in other receivables, deposits and
18) (Pff7128) prepayments) (note 28) 758 44
R A RIRFR (Bf5E50)  Amounts due from intermediate
holding companies (note 50) 1,021 290
— e B & A B R R (MisE50)  Amount due from an associate
(note 50) 139,222 145,803
H bR R E (MiFE51(d))  Amounts due from other related
parties (note 51(d)) 92,634 94,608
H & (f7E29) Other investments (note 29) — 16,000
X R HISRITF K (M 5E30) Restricted bank deposits (note 30) — 6,205
Re MRS EEY (H5E30)  Cash and cash equivalents (note 30) 122,595 167,962
HEZS Rental deposits 17,652 25,747
525,518 624,947
545,518 624,947
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48. €M T H (&) 48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI A ZER (&) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)
—=E__ —=EF—
2022 2021
THBxT FB7T
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEAE Financial liabilities

REEXR AT EZERAE

FENE SRIERERE (H7E31)

HEMNRERERIES
GTAHMEMNREBERE K
o) (MIEE32)

BEME  BERZEEMNK
B (FFAEMEMFRERE
Wiz s ) (15E32)

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
Trade and bills payables (note 31) 21,398 39,269
Other payables and deposits received
(included in other payables and
deposits received) (note 32) 84,456 87,813
Payables for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (included in
other payables and deposits

received) (note 32) 10,472 8,329

R—REHR N ERR A B
(Bt 5E50)
R LA BB 75 2R IA (BisES1(d))

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company (note 50) = 2,446
Amounts due to other related parties

(note 51(d)) 25,280 113,035

RITEE (H5E33) Bank borrowings (note 33) 261,925 243,802
403,531 494,694

HEEE (HE42) Lease liabilities (note 42) 328,797 485,149
732,328 979,843

TRIEREERBERBUR

AEEZITEZESRITAHN X - %%
TR TAFBREBMNEANRE - AR
ZEEMTAZRERBREMSER (X
ZRNERRMINERR) - EERR
Fon R o ARMAREZ SRR
ZBRENTX - ERESEENRER
ZERRR - DARER R B B A BUE IR EUE

ALk 4 L
&= 18 b °

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed above.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (mainly interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
certain fixed-rate lease liabilities and bank borrowings (see
note 33 for details of these bank borrowings).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowings (see note 33
for details of these bank borrowings).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its
exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
necessary actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest rates on bank balances and on the fluctuation of
Singapore Interbank Offered Rate from the Group’s bank
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rate. The Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Singapore. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has bank balances, amount due from an associate and
amounts due from other related parties (2021: bank balances,
amount due from an associate and amounts due from other
related parties) denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary
liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities are as follows:

BE =R
Assets Liabilities

2o F - T =B —ZT-——%

2022 2021 2022 2021

FE T FHIT FE T FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ETT us$ 70,996 112,029 — —

BT HK$ 11,078 25,222 — —
273 T

(T#r sk l) Singapore dollar (“SGD") 51 21 — —

82,125 137,272 s =




—Z - _F 3] ANNUAL REPORT 2022 287

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. £ T A (&)

TREREEBRERBER (B)

™5 E R ()
S ()

TRHINAKERAREER R
EHBEINE T R T 5% 2 8
B -5%RERBNEINEER2AE
AREZFRRACBBEL R - RRE
DM ERARBEINETEZEREER
TR EE XN RS BRASNEE X
5% HENFEBLE o N XHIRIEHE
BHRTAKEER ZINEEH S8R
SN £ TH5 % AN 2 B R ORL A 3 iR
e ERNAKEERBZIETH LM
RSN NERS%E - AFEXESHR
REMERTE -

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
Group’s entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
sensitivity rate represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes the financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in the relevant foreign currencies, and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive or negative
number below indicates a decrease or an increase in loss for
the year where functional currency of the Group’s entities
strengthen 5% against the relevant foreign currencies. For a
5% weakening of functional currency of the Group’s entities
against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the result for the year.

—_E__ T

2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000

RNEFEE Result for the year
ETT us$ (3,550) (5,602)
BT HK$ (554) (1,261)
#1032 T SGD 3) (1)
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, amount due from an associate, amounts due
from intermediate holding companies, amounts due from
other related parties, rental deposits and bank balances and

cash.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount of the
in the

respective recognised financial assets as stated
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to be responsible for the determination
monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts, guarantees or pledges of assets provided by
them on a needed basis. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model under HKFRS 9 on

of credit limits, credit approvals and other

trade receivables based on provision matrix.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Bank balances and cash

The credit risk on liquid funds are limited because the Group's
bank balances are deposited with banks of high credit ratings
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Singapore.

Amount(s) due from an associate, intermediate holding
companies and other related parties

The Group regularly monitors the business performance of the
associate. The Group's credit risks in the balance is mitigated
through the Group’s power to participate in the relevant
activities of the associate.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on amount due
from a non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiary amounted to HK$63,105,000 (2021:
HK$71,830,000) and amount due from an associate amounted
to HK$139,222,000 (2021: HK$145,803,000) representing
12.0% (2021: 11.5%) and 26.5% (2021: 23.3%) of total
financial assets at amortised cost, respectively, as at
31 December 2022. The Group monitors the level of exposure
to ensure that follow up actions and/or corrective actions are
taken promptly to lower the risk exposure.

Other than concentration of credit risk mentioned above, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.
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48. £Ei T A (&) 48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

TREREEBRZERBER (B)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

EERk () Credit risk (Continued)

AEBENAMEERBRFREIE TR

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

Al the following categories:
N B85 A EF AR it W E 5 IA Hih & @EE
Internal credit rating  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
1K= B2 RHBFENERRE  BEEMRE 2FEHRHEEEE 2@ EHREEEE
e — EBERRE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
BR2E EBAKLBEIHNAKER BB 2GENEHNEERE 2@ARMEEERE
PHEE — EERRIE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired
] &t BEAANBABENERASIITERY 2HFEPRACEESE 2FEHNHENEEER
FHERIAK - 5 A A B EIE N — EBERARE — BEARE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
B8R FREBEXRPEEREGERE 2FEREHEEEE 2FENRBEERE
— B EARE — BEARE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
is credit-impaired impaired impaired
i EBERAEBARNBRENMBR FKIAS M IR M
5 - AR & B E) YR AT S T B
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group's financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

—E-CF —T-—F
2022 2021
NRERAHEFEHRES
B SNBERTR  NEBERTR  FEBAR REARE REesE
External credit  Internal credit Gross carrying Gross carrying
Note rating rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount amount
FTET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBHRAGENSREE
Financial assets at amortised cost
— B E R EIRRK 50 @R (1) 2FEHEHEEER 211,342 176,049
Amount due from an associate N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
HibBE A R 51(d) @R (1) 2FENEHEEER 82,925 82,925
Amounts due from other related parties N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
REAESEEER 30,712 24,034
12m ECL
st 113,637 106,959
Total
RNER D AR 50 @A (1)  12ERBRHEEER 1,025 290
Amounts due from intermediate holding N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL
companies
RBRHRITER 30 AAZBBB (H&3) 1REARMEEER - 6,205
Restricted bank deposits AA to BBB (Note 3)  12m ECL
RITEH 30 AAZBBB (f3¥3)  12EARREEFR 122,595 167,962
Bank balances AA to BBB (Note 3)  12m ECL
Hi KA  BITRE REKFSHA 28 TERNA (1) 2FEBEHEEER 3,459 3,779
Other receivables, deposits paid and interest (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
income receivable 12 R EBEERE 32,458 29,160
12m ECL
#@ar 35,917 32,939
Total
BKEZRE — BmRRE 26 N ER (fis¥2) 2FEBEHEEER 126,914 142,301
Trade receivables — goods and services N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL
Hi R & 29 A- (fi:¥3) 12EARBREESSE = 16,000
Other investment A- (Note 3)  12m ECL
HERS @R (1)  1R2EARBEESSE 17,652 25,747
Rental deposits N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL
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48. €@ T A (&) 48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
cREREEEERBEK (&) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

FERR (&) Credit risk (Continued)

P EE Notes:

1. ERBEERBREREIE  NEEFE 1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
AafERTEaVERERE TS uses past due information to assess whether the credit risk of
MEEGEERREDEZEM - following financial assets has increased significantly since initial

recognition.
—E-C-F 2022
REE,
B JMETERS #Et
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
FHET FET FET
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
—MEEE R AR Amount due from an
associate 208,149 3,193 211,342
Hh BE B 75 R R Amounts due from other
related parties = 113,637 113,637
—MRNIE/RARXFE  Amounts due from an
intermediate holding
company — 1,025 1,025
HiEWFIE « EfF#EE  Other receivables, deposits
R FE W B A paid and interest
income receivable 3,459 32,458 35,917
HEZS Rental deposits — 17,652 17,652
—T=—F 2021
RinHy
BH EEEENEH @t
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
FABT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
— B E R RIRAK Amount due from an
associate 157,352 18,697 176,049
H B EE 5 R Amounts due from other
related parties o 106,959 106,959
R IERR A R R K Amounts due from an
intermediate holding
companies — 290 290
HEUWTRIE - BfF#EE Other receivables, deposits
&F’ﬂﬁlﬂ BIA paid and interest
income receivable 3,779 29,160 32,939
HEZS Rental deposits — 25,747 25,747




—Z - _F 3] ANNUAL REPORT 2022 293

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. £ T A (&)
tREAREEREEERBE(E)

B

E-T-_—F+=-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

FERk (E) Credit risk (Continued)

B eE : (48) Notes: (Continued)

2. HEKESREMS ASEEHA 2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
BB RS R E 5k ML AR approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ErFEHNBEHEEEENEER ECL. Except for debtors with credit-impaired which assess
% B ABEERENEL ARESR expected credit losses on individual basis, the Group determines
RAEFHTEREEEEI AEBEK the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision
FA &8 B K 58 5 4B B0 B B B [ 7B TR 7% matrix, grouped by past due status.

ZHEMBHEERR -
ERASEEERBREEN - K As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
EEZEAGBEANKRRTIHEZTFH debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
BE RERZEEFP THEERS because these customers consist of a large number of small
B/ NEUR B ARRK - MRS BB Al R customers with common risk characteristics that are
BERIBE KGR ERFTA B KIE representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
R R - TRIZHEEER due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following
BSRBEERRMNEN 25 HE table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
RZBEZZFR=_ZF=-—%+=A trade receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix
=+ —HEERBEBEEIHEFE as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 within lifetime ECL.
HEREEEE -
REAE Gross carrying amount
—ZE_C —E-—F
2022 2021
FTHBBEE EWEZRE FHEEEX RRESZHRE
Average loss Trade Average loss Trade
rate receivables rate receivables
% TER % FAT
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BER (R HR) Current (not past
due) 0.9 75,910 0.5 90,522
B EIOR 1-90 days past due 4.6 39,682 4.5 29,103
BHIOR EMF 90 days—2 years
past due 6.7 11,322 2.8 22,676
126,914 142,301

Bt BRI DRBEEFARBHFEH
ME LB RENRME  TEREE
F B Z AL 77 BN T 15 0 Al IE 1
BRMELAE - EREEH RN AR
DH - RS EBT ANEREER
REFEF -

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
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48. ¢RI T A (&)

TREREEBRZERBER (B)

FERR (&)

fisE - ()
3. EERBAER REERXZHFR

BEREZRTIAREHER EFR
REAGERBEEES -

EUME S HARRANEFEREMEES

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3. The credit risk is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high reputation, the directors
consider no ECL is provided.

The following table shows summarised the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables for

EERNEZEIBENR - both credit-impaired and not credit-impaired:
st
Total
FHIT
HK$'000
R—E-_—F—HF—H As at 1 January 2021 2,782
B iR AR (EEE Impairment losses recognised 3,886
¥ 85 Write-offs (4,404)
bE W =% Exchange differences 91
R-ZFB-_—%+-_HA=+—H As at 31 December 2021 2,355
B R AR (EEE Impairment losses recognised 2,832
HEHE AT Disposal of subsidiaries (671)
bE =% Exchange differences (1,246)

RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H

As at 31 December 2022 3,270
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48. €@ T A (&) 48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
SHRAKEEEEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

FERk () Credit risk (Continued)

HMERE  Ef#ZERERFE Other receivables, deposits paid and interest income
A receivable

TREATREMEKFIE  BEFEReR The following table shows reconciliations of loss allowance
FEYCH) BN A TER ) BB B R H R - that has been recognised for other receivables, deposits paid

and interest income receivable:

12 BAFEYE Z2FEBEAS

EEBE FEEE et

12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total

TET AT FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

R-—E—_—F—H—H As at 1 January 2021 176 3,677 3,853
B R A B E B Impairment losses

recognised 589 — 589

MEH =5 Exchange differences 9 102 111

MRZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2021 774 3,779 4,553
B ERE R EEE Impairment losses

recognised 2,994 = 2,994

HEHE AT Disposal of subsidiaries (28) — (28)

PEH =% Exchange differences (32) (320) (352)

MR-ZZT-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H As at 31 December 2022 3,708 3,459 7,167
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48. £R T A (&) 48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
SHRAKEEEEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

EERk () Credit risk (Continued)
HEH T R HANIZER R ERH Amount due from other related parties and intermediate

holding companies

RN B E AR BE R 5 R AR N IERR A A The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances
RIRFERW BB BERNEER that has been recognised for amount(s) due from other

related parties and intermediate holding companies:

NREARBE 2FHBEWY

BER EEEE et
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
FHET TAT FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZE=Z—F—H—H As at 1 January 2021 1,535 3,692 5,227
(BE#O) BEmRANMERIE  Impairment loses (reversed)
recognised (317) 7,403 7,086
MEH =5 Exchange differences 38 — 38
R=ZFE=——F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 1,256 11,095 12,351
B R AR EEE Impairment loses
recognised 38 8,725 8,763
bE i =% Exchange differences (107) — (107)
RZEZZF+=ZH=+—H As at 31 December 2022 1,187 19,820 21,007
Miz¥: R-_ZTE-——F+-_F=+—H H Note: As at 31 December 2022, allowance of HK$21,003,000 (2021:
MmEB A RXREGLGZEE R HK$12,351,000) attributable to amounts due from other
21,003,000 L (=& = — 4 : related parties while HK$4,000 (2021: Nil) attributable to
12,351,000/ 7T) * A MER A A amounts due from intermediate holdings companies.

KRR G 2 #tE B4,0008 T (==
Z—F fE) e
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Amount due from an associate

The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowance that
has been recognised for amount due from an associate:

1REREME 2GHEHEH

BEE#R FEER wmat

12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total

T T T T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZE=——F—H—H As at 1 January 2021 — 15,890 15,890
B R BB (A E 18 Impairment loses

recognised — 14,514 14,514

P & =R Exchange differences — (158) (158)

R-ZE-_—F+-_H=+—H As at 31 December 2021 — 30,246 30,246
B ERH R EE R Impairment loses

recognised = 41,129 41,129

MEH =5 Exchange differences — 745 745

R-ZZE-—F+_-_HA=+—H As at 31 December 2022 = 72,120 72,120

T B 14 L R Liquidity risk

REERBUERRE  AEEERELE
SEEERRENRAEBLZERHTE
ERBRERSRENDTEZRE MR
T EEBYKF - ARBEKRBRITIEERE
REERPESHR - EEEERRIT
fEEZERBR -

TRHFIAEBSREEZHTA NI
AR o ZEFIR DB A EEATRE
REELREEZREEH  BoR
EEKUARLRERY - RREIEF
BRASBERE - BABHSTH
% - R B B DA R R 2
HE -

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

MELH RERY AERRE
BRA= SR 3EAZEF 1255 BBSE RELE EASE
Weighted
average On demand or Total
effective less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
% FET TER TER FET TER TER
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZ-—%+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2022
ERESHEREER Trade and bills payables and
H A e 508 other payables — 116,326 — — - 116,326 116,326
RE A B 7 FOR Amounts due to other related
parties = 25,280 = = = 25,280 25,280
BITEE Bank borrowings 4.01 27,842 134,559 87,188 39,520 289,109 261,925
HEaE Lease liabilities 3.90 18,004 56,793 231,125 58,440 364,362 328,797
187,452 191,352 318,313 97,960 795,077 732,328
MmEFH e S RERRS
ERA = SR3EA  3EAEIF (33 BiB5F el Eika]
Weighted
average On demand or Total
effective less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
% TRT TR TAR TRT TAT TRT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZ-F+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 2021
i3 7‘%%¥KIE&?%}E& Trade and bills payables and
H e 50 other payables = 135,411 = = — 135,411 135,411
R—RHNE “"TTAIE Amount due to an intermediate
holding company - 2,446 - - - 2,446 2,446
R E At B 75 FR0B Amounts due to other related
parties — 113,035 — — — 113,035 113,035
BEE Bank borrowings 4.18 57,164 173,113 18,418 — 248,695 243,802
HERRE Lease liabilities 3.93 23,905 72,485 335,862 110,093 542,345 485,149
331,961 245,598 354,280 110,093 1,041,932 979,843
fisl F B = B B ¥ BARE TE 2 1 The amounts included above for variable interest rate
FTREEHBRER - AlFF A L IEDTES instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to

MEBEZEATAZSERSET -

change,
estimates of

if changes in variable interest rates differ to those

interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of various financial assets.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

DFER DREER HEERTREIEBAE
Fair value Valuation technique
SREE Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy and key inputs
—EC__F —E-—F
2022 2021
TERT FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEBERERAVEREZ Financial assets at FVTPL
SREE
Hinix & Other investments 20,000 — F=f B
Level 2 Note

Mz F-RERESHNRAFEDRETS
HR ZERANRERHATEHE
BABEBR SN E M EBERREE
ERGABEATHMNE  BEFE
MESEFBERERIZHER -

REBEZE_ZE_—FR-_F_—F+_A4
=t BHUEFE F—H F_HESF
RN EER -

EERR AEBESEMBHRERAE
BHEKATRZeBEERERAGEZ
FHSBERAFERS RS2 FE
DERMBERESRENMIZB AR TE
BIAVETE -

Note: Level 2 fair values of fixed interest funds have been determined
based on quotes from market makers, funds administrators or
alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The
most significant input are market interest rates, net asset values
and latest redemption prices or transaction prices of the funds.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values. Such fair values have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.
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49. EEEHA

RZZFE_ZF+=-A=+—H ' &x5E
2 $R171EE 206,555,000/ (ZE=—
&£ :167,046,000 8 L) R HE B E
661,000/ 7L (==& = — 4 : 4,776,000

49. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$206,555,000 (2021: HK$167,046,000) and lease liabilities
of HK$661,000 (2021: HK$4,776,000) were secured by the
following:

BIT) BLAT IR B R

—ZE=-= —E-—
2022 2021
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BF REEY) Buildings and structures 81,558 98,586
"EYE Investment property 37,760 —
EREEE Right-of-use assets 32,945 24,563
ERETE Construction in progress 136,843 —
FEU Z 5 50E Trade receivables — 20,123
RITAE R Bank balance 112 889
289,218 144,161

50. (XR) —@BtE QR PNER
DA R (FKE)

—HBERARRIERAFEAER

199,571,000 L (= & — — 4 :
161,114,000/ 70) (MK = E BB #E
68,104,000 L (=& = — F

27,680,000/ 7T)) 2 FEUB B WA K
m—EEE R riREEMRES
10,075,000 Tt (=& = — &F :
14,260,000 7T ) (0 Bk {5 & &5 18 B 1
3,438,000/ 7 (—ZZF = —4F : 2,450,000
7S TT)) KK - FFIER55% K AR
—FREENEK - BREZEZAIN - B
M4 181,696,000 (=T = —F :
675,000% 70) (M b = E B 18 & &
578,000/ 7L (ZZ = — 4 : 116,000/
JT)) I BREE B MR IR B IR Bk (EE -

50. AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM (TO) AN

ASSOCIATE/INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANIES

Amount due from an associate mainly represented the
receivable of royalty fee income with gross carrying amount of
HK$199,571,000 (2021: HK$161,114,000), net of allowance
for credit losses of HK$68,104,000 (2021: HK$27,680,000), a
loan to an associate with gross carrying amount of
HK$10,075,000 (2021: HK$14,260,000), net of allowance for
credit losses of HK$3,438,000 (2021: HK$2,450,000)) which
was unsecured, interest bearing of 5.5% per annum and
repayable within one year. Except for the loan, the remaining
balance with gross carrying amount of HK$1,696,000 (2021:
HK$675,000), net of allowance for credit losses of
HK$578,000 (2021: HK$116,000)) was unsecured and
repayable on demand.
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EC_?:—i—T—_H:-T——EI R—H
RNERARRAELEER 8 KREA
REBREER -

BRE #4218 /41,025,000 T (—ZF = —
4 290,000 ) (MK EEFBIERE
4,000 (ZEZ—F ) WA NIE
BARRRAEER B RARER
BE -

BERBELE XS REER

Lhx Aﬁﬁ%&%ﬂﬂﬁf@*”ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂ%
R G kEsR BoRIESN » 755 B B BF B
H

(a) HEBRERS

50.

51.

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM (TO) AN
ASSOCIATE/INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the amount due to an intermediate
holding company was unsecured, non-interest bearing and was
repayable on demand.

Amounts due from intermediate holding companies with gross
carrying amount of HK$1,025,000 (2021: HK$290,000), net of
allowance for credit losses of HK$4,000 (2021: Nil.) was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and was repayable on
demand.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

In addition to the transactions, balances and commitments
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group had transactions and balances with related parties
and other related parties which also constitute connected
persons of the Group as defined under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, are disclosed below.

(a) Continuing connected transactions

BB A+ REER RHHE —E-C T
Nature of

Connected persons and related parties transactions 2022 2021

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hr B8 () £ AR Q8 () He A 1,603 -

SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd (note)

aE: ARRZEFRFEER
BERUER) EMEMARA
A([HTERDBEARE #
BS5% A EHREE -RZZE
——F - BAEAERITERES
BEAMENRERER ° AR
RAIEESERZER 5 HIRE
ERAIE S HAZHET -

Rental income

Note: Mr. Jiang Chaowen, director of the Company, owns more
than 5% of the voting power at SPF (Beijing)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd (“SPF”)'s general meeting. Mr.
Jiang has significant influence and beneficial interests in
SPF during 2022. The directors of the Company
confirmed the transactions are conducted in accordance

to the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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51. BERBEE IS R4 () 51. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(CONTINUED)
(b) XEBE (b) Summary of transactions
(W A) &R
(Income) Expenses
—E-—F T —4F
2022 2021
B 5 FBT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—[E B & A7) An associate
— BIEBRA — Royalty fee income (i) (37,803) (37,796)
— FERKA — Interest income (795) (395)
—REFR N ERA A An intermediate holding
company
— HEeEH — Rental expense (ii) — 2,083
— F B2 A — Interest income (ii) (1,066) —
— MEMAX — Interest expense (i) — 2,382
— HEEM — Sale of products (i) (7) (11)
BIRIR R 2 AR T Related parties of the ultimate
shareholder
— HEEM — Sale of products (ii) (18) (408)
— REE — Service fee (ii) 329 296
— e A — Rental income (a) (1,603) —
(0 TEEEEAEHE (c) Key management personnel compensation
—E- & T —4F
2022 2021
FET T
HK$'000 HK$’000
Fe M EAMBEEES]  Salaries and other short-term benefits 6,733 6,503
BE R 12 A AR Post-employment costs 451 244

7,184 6,747
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51. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(CONTINUED)
(d) HEEREE (d) Summary of balances
—_E:__ —EF-—
2022 2021
B 5 FET T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
REEE Current assets
—Z R R K Amount due from a shareholder (iii) — 106
RERR AT ZKIEB  Amount due from subsidiaries of
YNCIDSEN the ultimate holding company (iif) 29,529 22,672
RARMEBARZ— Amount due from a
HIEFERRARER R F non-controlling shareholder
of the Company’s subsidiary (iii) 63,105 71,830
Hh BE S 75 R Amounts due from other related
parties 92,634 94,608
REAE Current liabilities
REHEYERS A B —M Amount due to a subsidiary of
(R NCl v /9] the ultimate holding company (iif) 25,280 113,035
REMEEHEEHZIE  Amounts due to other related
parties 25,280 113,035

M sE -

(i) ZERXHIERBTrue Yogak B
2K EAREEBTERE
VE B 8 BT IR R A R FF AT
ZRE - ZEXHUTEX L
MRANETTHARIE T 2 FER
2.

(i) HEXSBRALNERER
ST FIRASEFIASET
R FEEERAA R
B2 MER B,/ EmE
25

(i) RZEZZFR=-ZFT=—F
+=-—A=1+—8 #&HAEE
PR ERARERER -

Notes:

These transactions represent payments from True Yoga Group
in consideration for the right and license granted by the Group
for its operation in Taiwan. These transactions do not
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

These transactions constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions of the Company that are fully exempt
from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(i)  As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances were
unsecured, non-interest bearing and were repayable on
demand.
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52. HAREIE

[t

@ RZZE-—AFNAT=H'EQ (a)
Al Patrick John Wee Ewe
Seng 4t A4 ([PIW S 4 |) K Active
Gains Universal Limited ([ Active
Gains D1EBRE AN (HBIRS
AN AEZEEBSEERE AR QA
MARGIHEENB AR Fester
Global Limited ([Fester Global])
EREEABLNERSMRK(E
Mok  SFEERRGRER A
14692019 ([ =T — N FEER2
FFl) e

REARBASKF 2EH I R
Fester GlobalR #&Fester Global
(ERBER) - ARR(ERBEFE
RA) * Active Gains (BIERPIW %
EEFINER  (ERER) RPIW
EEMEREARBAIRE
—+tFRANBIILZEE &
([EE W] $KEETrue Cayman
BI51% X - A A L W iE e &F
BARRARGBEA-ZT —+
FRALH - —_ZE—+FHA
—_+thAhBRE-_ZE—t&+A
ZHNBRAERBE K (5E[Z
EXH]) RIREE o [REABL (HAF
BE)ATSHERERR :

() {188 E B # 583,500,000
ETC

(i) EAFActive Gains&PIW L
A LAAS /A B & Fester Global
A3z ABh True Caymanss
EREBE—_ZT—tF+_H
=T —BIEMBFEEELD
BRAREBCEK : &

F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

52. CONTINGENCIES

On 13 August 2019, the Company was served a writ of
summons (the “Writ”) filed by Mr. Patrick John Wee
Ewe Seng (“Mr. PJW") and Active Gains Universal
Limited (“Active Gains”) as the plaintiffs (collectively as
the “Plaintiffs”) against the Company and Fester Global
Limited (“Fester Global”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the defendants under High Court
Action No. 1469/2019 (the “2019 Legal Proceedings”) in
the High Court of Hong Kong.

The Plaintiffs’ allegations in the Writ are related to the
acquisition by Fester Global of 51% equity interest in
True Cayman pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 6 May 2017 (“SPA”) made between
Fester Global (as purchaser), the Company (as
purchaser’s guarantor), Active Gains (being an entity
controlled by Mr. PJW as vendor), and Mr. PJW (as
vendor’s warrantor). Details of the said acquisition were
disclosed in the announcements and circular of the
Company respectively dated 7 May 2017, 29 May 2017
and 28 July 2017 (collectively, the “Documents”). The
Plaintiffs claim for, among others, the following:

(i)  payment of balance of the purchase price, being
US$3,500,000;

(i) a declaration that the profit guarantee given by
Active Gains and Mr. PJW in favour of the
Company and Fester Global in respect of True
Cayman Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2017 had been met; and
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52. SAREIE () 52. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(@ (&) (@  (Continued)

(i)  EFAFActive Gains & PJIW L
A LAAS /A 8] & Fester Global
A%z AFh True Cayman&s
EREBE—T—N\FE=F
—NWFE+-A=+—HIEH
BEEELHRBFRE RS
BAR - BREZEXHH
FIigEE B WS IRE
Active Gainsi#§ B #E1TE R
h BARE - LA[AIFester Global
& True Caymanz % T %
1 o

RARARERZ=ZZE—NLF+=A
T_HREASSERREREN
BOBERAOMBAEBREIREAZ
MR- RZEBE-_—F—F RN
Active Gains7BERL B B kMR
FEREEBERANEBELEE -
AEEBEREBEE_T—LFRZ
E-NF+_A=+—HILEE
2 BB S o8 HI AT AR 1D R EC 155
% N2 HRER| o LAFester Global 5%
HAEIFAH10,000WTrue
Caymanf 15 B 8 % F Fester
Global * fEA#EZH TRFIRE
ZHEE NRA B HA R B 3R0E o
it AEEREBEE T —tF
F—_E-—NE+-_A=+—H8I1
FEZHBEFERARSE AZLHR
BHR((RBER]) KB AFRE
ERIZEBIN  REARREER]
ZB RERNBEERERAR
HRMEUEDE R ==
F—AWMA " &NQRQ A KFester
Global £ R (a) & & 5] R B R
EREBAZRE  ROKIETEERR
HRNHERERNR BRI
LB

(i) a declaration that the profit guarantee given by
Active Gains and Mr. PJW in favour of the
Company and Fester Global in respect of the True
Cayman Group for the financial years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 ceases to have
effect and that Active Gains be entitled to exercise
the put option so as to sell certain shareholding in
True Cayman to Fester Global according to the
terms of the SPA as disclosed in the Documents.

The Company has filed the defence to the High Court
of Hong Kong on 12 December 2019 and has been
vigorously defending and opposing the Plaintiffs’ claims.
In January 2021, the Group has enforced its right under
a share charge agreement since Active Gains has failed
to compensate the Group in respect of the profit
guarantee shortfalls for the financial years ended
31 December 2017 and 2018 under the SPA. 10,000
shares in True Cayman charged in favour of Fester
Global were transferred to Fester Global as partial
settlement of the amounts due and payable under the
profit guarantee arrangement. Subsequently, the Group
issued a counterclaim (”“Counterclaim”) against the
Plaintiffs to recover the balance of the profit guarantee
shortfalls for the financial years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018, and in response, the Plaintiffs filed their
Amended Reply, Defence to Counterclaim and
Counterclaim to Counterclaim. On 4 January 2022, the
Company and Fester Global filed (a) a Re-Amended
Defence and Counterclaim and (b) a Rejoinder to
Amended Reply and Reply to Defence to Counterclaim
and Defence to Counterclaim to Counterclaim.
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52. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

The 2019 Legal Proceedings are still at a preliminary
stage and the date of trial has not been fixed up to the
date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements. Based on the opinion of the management of
the Company in consideration of the latest development,
the possibility of any significant economic outflow in
relation to the 2019 Legal Proceedings is remote.

In March 2021, Chongging Kangle, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, received a court summons*
(f82) attaching a statement of civil claim* (R ZE#Ek
#k) (the “Shanghai Legal Proceedings”) from the
Shanghai Xuhui District People’s Court* (_E/8MRIE 2
ANEJEBT) (“Xuhui District Court”) in relation to the
claim made by Shanghai Haixin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
(EBBME RN AR AT (“Shanghai Haixin”) against
Chongqging Kangle as defendant for the alleged
non-performance of a cooperation agreement on project
for Hydroxychloroquine Sulfate* (FREA¥SEIETE B A 1EH
%) signed on 19 May 2011 between Chongging Kangle
and Shanghai Haixin (the “Cooperation Agreement”).
Shanghai Haixin sought for court order to terminate the
Cooperation Agreement, and claimed against Chongging
Kangle for the damages in the amount of
RMB49,000,000 and the costs incurred in connection
with the Shanghai Legal Proceedings. Chongging Kangle
had engaged lawyers and intended to vigorously defend
Shanghai Haixin’s claims. On 25 November 2021, the
Xuhui District Court added Xi‘an Haixin Medical
Production Co., Ltd.* (FZ/BMEZEARE A7) (“Xi'an
Haixin”), an independent third party as an additional
party plaintiff to the Shanghai Legal Proceedings.
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52. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

Pursuant to a civil mediation agreement* (RZEFEE)
(the “Civil Mediation Agreement”) issued by the Xuhui
District Court on 24 June 2022, Chongging Kangle,
Shanghai Haixin and Xi‘an Haixin have reached
settlement in respect of the Shanghai Legal Proceedings
through mediation conducted by the Xuhui District
Court. According to the Civil Mediation Agreement, it is
agreed that (i) the Shanghai Legal Proceedings shall be
settled; (ii) Chongqging Kangle shall sell the active
pharmaceutical ingredients Hydroxychloroguine Sulfate to
Xi‘an Haixin, and Xi‘an Haixin shall make payment to
Chongging Kangle for such products provided; and (iii)
Shanghai Haixin and Xi‘an Haixin shall dismiss all the
claims against Chongging Kangle under the Shanghai
Legal Proceedings, including the discharge of all
freezing, seizure and attachment of assets under the
Shanghai Legal Proceedings, and shall waive any future
claim arising out of the Cooperation Agreement.

During the year, the parties have complied with the
terms of the Civil Mediation Agreement, and all
freezing, seizure and attachment of assets of Chongging
Kangle under the Shanghai Legal Proceedings have been
discharged. Goods were transferred on an arm’s length
basis. Management considered the Shanghai Legal
Proceedings has completed with no material
contingencies or provision made.



308

HEZEEREEERAT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

52. AEE (F)

[t

(0 HERAEEREESHE m (0)
RE L HEM Active Gains &2 PIW 5t
ESKEBEEZE—TTH 3
S RZTEZ__F=H BESE
BEEERER_T=_=_F=A
+ANB&EE 2 A - BLFester
Global {ERRE AN IRIBES %)
BTaRAASE 194220215k M3 & 12
B2 ERFR( B —FEE
FA ) MBBHEINZ Active Gains
RPIWSE & (RIS Al B
AREMsHRERBRRKRLE
([REFEFSAK]) © Fester Global
RZZEZ—FERFARTHERER
EdActive GainsKPIWSHEEERE
E Wik 0 A K Active GainsiE &
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52. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s further actions to seek
compensation from Active Gains and Mr. PJW under the
profit guarantee arrangement of SPA, in March 2022, a
concurrent writ of summons with statement of claim
(the “Concurrent Writ”) was served on Active Gains and
Mr. PJW (collectively as the “Defendants”), outside Hong
Kong pursuant to the leave granted by the High Court
of Hong Kong on 18 February 2022 for serving the
Concurrent Writ on the Defendants out of the
jurisdiction of Hong Kong in relation to the legal action
instituted by Fester Global, as the plaintiff, against the
Defendants under the High Court Action No. 1942/2021
(the “2021 Legal Proceedings”). Fester Global's claims
under the 2021 Legal Proceedings are related to the
breaches of the SPA by Active Gains and Mr. PJW, and
the breaches of the shareholders’ agreement (the
“SHA") dated 29 May 2017 entered into among Fester
Global, Active Gains and True Cayman by Active Gains.
Details of Fester Global claims against Active Gains are
disclosed in the Company’'s announcement dated
25 March 2022.

Active Gains and Mr. PJW filed and served a Defence
and Counterclaim on 20 July 2022, pursuant to which
Active Gains counterclaimed for (i) a declaration that
True Cayman is subject to trade sale as of 31 March
2020 pursuant to the SHA, (ii) specific performance of
clauses 11.2 and 11.5 of the SHA, specifically the
appointment of an appointed valuer (as defined under
clause 11.3 of the SHA), and (iii) relevant damages for
breach of the above provisions. In response, Fester
Global filed Reply and Defence to Counterclaim on 11
November 2022.
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52. AEE (F)

(0)

B £ XAt Sh -

(&)

—E-FERFRMERDNE
B #HELEHEAMEHRET
HRHY AABEZEHBEH R
BARREEEBESKEIEES
REBRFERNER H_F
T FERFRAEBIEFNER
REEINRE AT RELERE /)N ©

AEFER T

T A=+ HYEEFNERKARRE

52. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(0

(Continued)

The 2021 Legal Proceedings are still at a preliminary
stage and the date of trial has not been fixed up to the
date of issue of these consolidated financial statements.
Based on the opinion of the management of the
Company after seeking legal advice and considering the
latest development, the possibility of any significant
economic outflow in relation to the 2021 Legal
Proceedings is remote.

Except for the above, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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53. MIEXBMELERAGZHIER

[t

TRHMAEEREXBMELAEBEZ
2 (BEATRIFRSEY) - BEX
BRELABZRSRNECKLIARKE
AenERenAKEFZa RS RBR
NOBRBREXBRERE -

53.

F+=—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

R—REHN REAM
B FERFIE RS HEBE ERARFE BEIZE st
Amount due
to an
intermediate  Amounts due
Interest Dividend Lease holding to other
Borrowings payables payables liabilities company related parties Total
THT TET TET THT FTET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(FizE33) (FizEa2) (F3zE50)  (F#aE51(d))
(note 33) (note 42) (note 50)  (note 51(d))
R-ZE-—%—F—H At 1 January 2021 196,777 242 — 554,518 33,738 466 785,741
RERSR Financing cash flows 42,489 (10,877) (14,669) (63,558) (33,674) (19,513) (99,802)
ERETREM Addition of construction in
progress = = = = = 130,389 130,389
AEEEM Addition of new leases — — — 29,578 — — 29,578
B 3w &2 B AN COVID-19-related rent
HEeER concessions received — — — (29,169) — — (29,169)
HEBEYRERTE Lease modification and
reassessment = = = (21,775) = = (21,775)
B3 =% Exchange differences 4,536 (73) — (6,358) — 1,693 (202)
FERX Interest expenses — 10,877 — 21,913 2,382 — 35,172
DR T IR E R 2 RS Dividend distribution to
non-controlling interests = = 14,669 = = = 14,669
RZB--f+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2021 243,802 169 — 485,149 2,446 113,035 844,601
R—Eh REA
BE ERFE HEEE EZERAARE BHELIXNE aE
Amount due
to an Amounts due
intermediate to other
Interest Lease holding related
Borrowings payables liabilities company parties Total
TR TER TER TR TR TER
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(FfiE33) (GETY) (BEE50)  (HIEE51(d))
(note 33) (note 42) (note 50) (note 51(d))
R-ZE-—_%—F—H At 1 January 2022 243,802 169 485,149 2,446 113,035 844,601
MERER Financing cash flows 62,458 (11,526) (79,152) (2,332) (106,780) (137,332)
TERTIREM Addition of construction in progress — — — - 17,280 17,280
SR Addition of new leases = = 655 = = 655
B BENEREEBN
HeBE COVID-19-related rent concessions received = = (6,885) = = (6,885)
HEERRENTGE Lease modification and reassessment — — (76,780) — — (76,780)
HENBAR Disposal of subsidiaries (26,334) — (3,394) — — (29,728)
ERER Exchange differences (18,001) 17 (5,308) (114) 1,745 (21,661)
FSHX Interest expenses - 11,526 14,512 — - 26,038
R=ZZ-_F+-H=+—H At 31 December 2022 261,925 186 328,797 = 25,280 616,188
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54. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

—E-_—F —EF-—
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
L Property, plant and equipment 2,883 265
EREEE Right-of-use assets 10,534 12,641
KRB AR 2 "E Investments in subsidiaries 372,452 437,091
I ENGIVSE Amounts due from subsidiaries 726,982 734,581
1,112,851 1,184,578
RBEE Current assets
H th & R IE R TR IR Other receivables and prepayments 9,345 7,180
— B & A R R 3R Amount due from an associate 7,754 12,369
HMEE Other investments 20,000 16,000
RehB2EEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,737 52,560
47,836 88,109
REEE Current liabilities
HiEAREREFER Other payables and accrued expenses 2,109 6,234
HEAE Lease liabilities 1,442 1,442
3,551 7,676
RBEEFHE Net current assets 44,285 80,433
HEERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,157,136 1,265,011
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54. ATz BRI & (&) 54. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
eS8 —E-—4F
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B2 X & Capital and reserves
fi& 7 Share capital 11,177 11,177
[ 15 v 18 Kttt (B RE) Share premium and reserves (note) 1,136,178 1,242,611
EREE Total equity 1,147,355 1,253,788
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BIRPK A Provision for reinstatement cost 626 626
HEBE Lease liabilities 9,155 10,597
9,781 11,223
1,157,136 1,265,011
RARZHMBRARKERZE_=F= The statement of financial position of the Company was
A +tHBEEESEHERB TIIAL approved by the board of directors on 24 March 2023 and
REREFEE was signed on its behalf by:
B¥E FEX
Bai Pingyan Jiang Chaowen
- -

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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54. AT 2 M BRI K (F) 54. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
B 5 - Notes:
B RERREE SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
ARGER Ui
HERE AEEZ
R EE 2kt EEFERE ERffE RiER X
Shares held Employee
for share  share-based
Share award compensation  Translation Accumulated
premium scheme reserve reserve losses Total
TET TAT TET TAT TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-_-F—f—H At 1 January 2021 1,523,949 (4,854) 1,038 (38,490) (184,556) 1,297,087
ARRAEEER Loss for the year of the Company = = — - (66,874) (66,874)
AEREIERELE ERER Exchange difference arising on translation to
presentation currency — — — 12,398 — 12,398
AEEEENH (L) 88 Total comprehensive income (expense) for the
year — — — 12,398 (66,874) (54,476)
BAMZ ERE Share options lapsed — — (1,038) — 1,038 —
RZZ=Z-F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2021 1,523,949 (4,854) — (26,092) (250,392) 1,242,611
ARRAEEER Loss for the year of the Company = = — — (70,498) (70,498)
ARREIIEREE ER AR Exchange difference arising on translation to
presentation currency = = = (35,935) = (35,935)
AEERE (L) WangE Total comprehensive expense for the year — — — (35,935) (70,498) (106,433)

RZZ-ZF+=-A=t—-H At 31 December 2022 1,523,949 (4,854) - (62,027) (320,890) 1,136,178
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55. &~ 7l & # 55. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
KARIFTBENBRARIR-_E-_—_F K= Particulars of all subsidiaries of the Company as
T —F+_A=+—HZERDOT: 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
ERTRAR
EERRA/ AEEEL
NCES: ML R Begny EHEEMER ERRAER TEER

Paid up issued
ordinary share

at

Place of incorporation/  Place of capital/paid up  Effective equity interest
Name of company registration operations registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
—E--f —E-—F
2022 2021
% %
Fester Global Limited EBERTHS BE (I 100 100 HEZR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 Investment holding
ERARAH RERAHE BE (EH 100 100 EEE%
Fortunate Gold Limited British Virgin Islands Hong Kong US$1 Inactive
EMEERAA &8 £ 18T 100 100 ®REER
Fully Fine Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Gratwick Limited RERTHE BB (EH 100 100 ®REZR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Uss$1 Investment holding
Greater Vision Limited EBERTHS BE 157 100 100 HEZR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 Investment holding
EREEERAA Bt BB 15871 100 100 ®REZR
Kingway Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
BEBRAR &8 £ 18T 100 100 ®REHER
Kingwood Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
FRBRAEEARAR REMS BB 10057 90 90 EEzx
Konta Investment Management ~ Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$100 Inactive
Co., Limited
HE R BN EEMERAR & (fE3) Gl = —f 55434  EEERZMABER
The PRC (Note 3) The PRC Trading of laboratory
related products
SEAH (LR ENEEER  HE () HE =i 80## 804 EEEE

NG| The PRC (Note 1) The PRC Inactive
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55. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
EERTRERZ
EERBA/ AEEELZ
NCET EMAL B Kew EHRERER ERRAER TEEH
Paid up issued
ordinary share
Place of incorporation/  Place of capital/paid up  Effective equity interest
Name of company registration operations registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ZE-C-FE —T-_—fF
2022 2021
% %
Sharkview Limited RBRLES B E 100 100 #REER
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Uss$1 Investment holding
EhEES Rl (3E1) HE AK#120,000,000 100 100 BERBRURZERHEER
T ik
The PRC (Note 1) The PRC RMB120,000,000 Investment holding and
manufacturing and sales
of prescription of drugs
ERAH (IR ENHERER P E (M52) HE AK#10,000,0007T 100% 100  HEBREER
NG The PRC (Note 2) The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Research and development
of medical products
AR TR EERAR R (FEE3) HE ARH5,360,0007C =i 100 SUERHERHE
The PRC (Note 3) The PRC RMB5,360,000 Manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs
REZXREEXERAA hEl (Fst4) HE AR#18,007,322.35 66 66 BEREETEER
T
The PRC (Note 4) The PRC RMB18,007,322.35 Manufacture and sales of
Chinese medicine
products
EEREREBRAT Rl (fff5Es) HE ARE21,814,118T 59.42* 50.42%  BUERHEERFE
The PRC (Note 5) The PRC RMB21,814,118 Manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs
HEROR) ENENERAR & (fTd) HE AR H8,400,0007 = 55.43%  BEERTHEWED
The PRC (Note 4) The PRC RMBS8,400,000 Trading of laboratory
related products
ERERRLEYHRERAT & (fZ6) HE = 59.42* 50.42%  HEBREM
The PRC (Note 6) The PRC Research and development
of medical products
AEEBESEERHH (R e (FizET) HE =3 100 100 HBEERREXER
BRAA The PRC (Note 7) The PRC Investment holding and
corporate advisory
MEEmMRCEERHZACR)  RE(FHE7) HE = 100 100 EEEx
BRAT The PRC (Note 7) The PRC Inactive
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55. B2 &R (&)

55. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
ERTRERZ
EERRE/ rEEELZ
DRER EMER LB 5 Bewl EHRERER ERRAESR TEEH
Paid up issued
ordinary share
Place of incorporation/  Place of capital/paid up  Effective equity interest
Name of company registration operations registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
—E--F —T-—-F
2022 2021
% %
IR ERRRERRREDAR RHE (H:2) REl AR%60,000,0007T 100 100 HEEX
NG The PRC (Note 2) The PRC RMB60,000,000 Inactive
BEEEERAT o % 187 100 00 EEEE
Glorious Mark Investments Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Inactive
Limited
TFKT True Holdings REHS Hg 5,050,000 7T 73 73 REER
Cayman Islands Singapore US$5,050,000 Investment holding
Profit Heaven Management EBERTHS FIK (EV 73 73 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands Singapore Us$1 Investment holding
True Fitness Holdings (Singapore) 713 % THINE T 73 73 REER
Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore SGD1 Investment holding
True Fit Pte. Ltd. AR Gl 1R T 73 73 EELEX
Singapore Singapore SGD1 Inactive
True Fitness Pte. Ltd. AN IR 4,474,000%7 M3 T 73 73 BERSHLREEHED
R
Singapore Singapore SGD4,474,000 Operating of fitness centres
and provision of
consultation services
True Yoga Pte. Ltd. NS Hng 1,000,000%7 M3% 7T 73 73 BERGROREEES
R
Singapore Singapore SGD1,000,000 Operating of fitness centres

and provision of
consultation services
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55. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
BRTRERZ
EERRE/ AEEELZ
DRER AR B 5 Bewl EHRERER ERRAER TEEH
Paid up issued
ordinary share
Place of incorporation/  Place of capital/paid up  Effective equity interest
Name of company registration operations registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
—E--F —T-—-F
2022 2021
% %
True Fitness (STC) Pte. Ltd. g R 1,700,000%7 1% 7T 73 73 EERFTLREHFEAR
%

Singapore Singapore SGD1,700,000 Operating of fitness centres
and provision of
consultation services

True Yoga Holdings Pte. Ltd. K Hmsg 13T 73 73 RAER

Singapore Singapore SGD1 Investment holding

ZHEREBRAA RERS 0 100% 7T 100 100 EEE%
Taisheng Investment Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$100 Inactive
Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P. HEHS BB (E 100 100 EEEX
Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$1 Inactive
IRERRERRERAA R (MaF2) HE AR ¥800,0007T 100 100 WEBEER

The PRC (Note 2) The PRC RMB800,000 Research and development

of medical products
REZXRNEXERAA Bl (HEE3) HE = 66 66 HERHETZER

The PRC (Note 3) The PRC Manufacture and sales of
Chinese medicine
products

REZREZEMRERAR  RE(HFF3) HE =i 66 — EEEZ

The PRC (Note 3) The PRC Inactive

RER - MBARMEZRTEAESE

% o

it

i ZERRIARAG

B Rz -

* ZERFREZEEREEGRAFMK
TEWEEHRAMER -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

Remarks:

##

*

These companies are held and controlled by Tongfang

Pharmaceutical.

These companies were set up by Kontafarma China Holdings
Limited and there was no paid up registered capital.
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55. M~ A& X (&) 55. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

B & Notes:

(1) BREEAT (HHEE) (1) limited liability company (sino-foreign equity joint ventures)

2) BREFEAFRCEABE) (2) limited liability company (wholly owned by a legal person)

(3) ABREMEAR GEERAZREIIZRL (3) limited liability company (sole proprietorship that is not invested
SEABE) or held by a natural person)

(4) HmAERIEEAT (4)  other limited liability company

(5) BREFEAR(BAAKREIZER) (5)  limited liability company (invested or held by a natural person)

6) AREAEDT (BAARESTIEIRHE (6)  limited liability company (sole proprietorship invested or held by
ABE) a natural person)

(7)) EREFRAI(EBREABE) (7)  limited liability company (solely invested by corporation in

Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau)
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56. EEEAFEREZZHELQ
R Z#FH1E

TRETARBEEEAZERERZ
FEEMBRARZHE

56.

HEZZ-—F+=-A=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31 December 2022

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company that have material
non-controlling interests:

FERRERAZHETE TREFEREZZEN
EERREELA (B18) R FERESR

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting
rights held by non-

Profit (loss) allocated to ~ Accumulated non-

NCIES Name of company controlling interests  non-controlling interests  controlling interests
S — = el — cE T el — &
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
% % TET FTHT TER FTHT
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFRLZEFRAAF  Changging Kangle
Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* 41 41 1,708 9,615 64,130 68,255
Rp#E s Hft3E2%  Other non-wholly owned
MELA subsidiaries of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical 20 to 34 20 to 45 14,484 19,185 16,876 75,200
True Cayman& Bl True Cayman Group 27 27 (27,448) (17,092) (25,832) 2,311
ARRlZEZEMBAR  Non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the
Company N/A N/A = (1,213) = =
55,174 145,766

BRAARBRAEAFE RS KB
REZHBEERERFIINT - AR
BENMEZ2REBAEHEN S5

Summarised financial information in respect of the Company'’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests are set
out below. The summarised financial information below
presented amounts before intra-group eliminations.
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56. BEEARFEZERERZHBL

56. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

CilA=3-¢ ) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

EEEH#REFRATA Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
S —E-—F

2022 2021
FE T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 119,648 149,848
IEREEE Non-current assets 143,332 155,815
mEN B & Current liabilities (95,815) (140,038)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (14,133) (2,845)

ANA BB R (L = Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 88,902 94,525

FJEE R HE o= Non-controlling interests 64,130 68,255
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56. FEEAFEREZZHELQ

56. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

B 2 15 (&) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)
EREH#REFR AR (&) Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
(Continued)
—=E=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
FHET FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue 136,452 174,962
ZH 55 Net expenses (132,243) (151,011)
N4 5 A Profit for the year 4,209 23,951
AR B PR R EAE & K Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 2,501 14,336
SEVE AR A 20 FE (G 8 Profit attributable to non-controlling
interests 1,708 9,615
N i A Profit for the year 4,209 23,951
AR A AR B 4G H Ath 2 TE Other comprehensive (expense) income
(X ) Wz attributable to owners
of the Company (7,946) 2,280
e EREGEMEm Other comprehensive (expense) income
(ZH) e attributable to non-controlling
interests (5,833) 1,939
ANEFHMEE (X H)UKEE  Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (13,779) 4,219
NARIEEREMS2ME ()  Total comprehensive (expense) income
&y attributable to owners of the
Company (5,445) 16,616
#TQH% ﬁnlﬁfﬁiﬁ(iﬁd) Total comprehensive (expense) income
Was 42 attributable to non-controlling
interests (4,125) 11,554
REEDHE LR Total comprehensive income
for the year (9,570) 28,170
DK T IR R 2 R R Dividend distribution to non-controlling
interests — 14,669
BEEBZHEMACGEL)  Net cash inflow from (outflow for)

HE operating activities 38,358 (11,568)
KEXK 2R R FEE Net cash outflow for investing activities (12,892) (22,801)
BMEXB 2B RLFE Net cash outflow for financing activities (23,720) (29,716)
HemACRL) F8E Net cash inflow (outflow) 1,746 (64,085)
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56. BEEARFEZERERZHBL

A 215 ()

True Cayman£

56. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

True Cayman Group

S —E-—F

2022 2021

TET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

TMENE E Current assets 218,063 219,828

ERBEE Non-current assets 283,143 450,500

mEN B & Current liabilities (418,042) (332,082)

FEMBBE Non-current liabilities (297,943) (450,052)
ANA BB R (L = Equity attributable to owners

of the Company (188,947) (114,117)

PR = Non-controlling interests (25,832) 2,311
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56. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

True Cayman Group (Continued)

—=E=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
FET FHE T
HK$"000 HK$'000
PN Revenue 171,159 161,282
BT Net expenses (272,018) (265,192)
NEEEE Loss for the year (100,859) (103,910)
NA AR R EAG &5 1B Loss attributable to owners
of the Company (73,411) (86,818)
IR = PR G B 1R Loss attributable to non-controlling
interests (27,448) (17,092)
KEZEE Loss for the year (100,859) (103,910)
ARABREREEEMEE Other comprehensive (expense)/income
(X H), Mz attributable to owners of the
Company (1,419) 2,174
FEVE IR M A B (G HMth 2 TE Other comprehensive (expense)/income
(ZH) Mz attributable to non-controlling
interests (695) 762
ANEFEMEE (X H), Yz Other comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year (2,114) 2,936
AARREEMMEE L HABAE Total comprehensive expense
attributable to owners of the
Company (74,830) (84,644)
R E R EG2A S H48% Total comprehensive expense
attributable to non-controlling
interests (28,143) (16,330)
REEREX LA Total comprehensive expense for the year (102,973) (100,974)
LEXE CBESRANFRE Net cash inflow for operating activities 36,437 37,902
KEXBK 2R R FEE Net cash outflow for investing activities (3,944) (6,706)
MEXEK ZIRE R TR Net cash outflow for financing activities (34,706) (37,252)
WE&mt F5 Net cash outflow (2,213) (6,056)
EE B & = 57. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

RN EE14 K 43(@) BT EE © AN ST
BRHEEE  GAESEREMEEKES
AN BBEFEEH 2B REEDN
EBEDRIEREHET -

As a result of the completion of the Disposal during the year
as disclosed in notes 14 & 43(a), the comparative figures in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been re-presented the operation
of the SPF Group as a discontinued operation.
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HEREREEEGRAT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

BET-A=t-HLPREE

Financial year ended 31 December

-N\& ZE-NF —E-FF —T--F ZT-ZF
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
FTEL FTEL TAEL TAEL TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&=5) (E5)
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
EY Results
WA Revenue 2,093,724 921,148* 1,009,134 803,267 894,062
PR A& A (B518) Profit (loss) before taxation 108,866 79,083* (297) (54,465)* (117,736)
W Taxation (37,354) (14,805)* (19,788) (1,830)* 7,992
FERAN(ER) Profit (loss) for the year:
REFBEREER From continuing operations 64,278 (20,085) (56,295) (109,744)
REBRIECEER From discontinued operation 933 (195,797) 51,742 56,942
71,512 65,211 (215,882) (4,553) (52,802)
REZHER (E51B) FEME S © Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to:
ARAEIRR Owners of the Company 32,499 36,102 (267,164) (15,048) (41,546)
RS Non-controlling interests 39,013 29,109 51,282 10,495 (11,256)
71,512 65,211 (215,882) (4,553) (52,802)
BREARA (F#E) Basic earnings (loss) per share
(B1L) (HK cent) 0.60 0.65 (4.79) (0.27) (0.74)
R+=B=+-H
At 31 December
-\E ZE-HNF —T-TF —T--F CBF
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
TAET TAET TAET TAET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERER Assets and liabilities
BEE Total assets 3,342,464 4,000,172 2,542,284 2,558,775 2,120,443
BAE Total liabilities 1,433,403 2,079,124 1,188,527 1,220,991 964,162
R Non-controlling interests 515,680 508,926 139,571 145,766 55,174
AR AIRER AR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 1,393,381 1,412,122 1,214,186 1,192,018 1,101,107
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On 21 December 2020, the cement business of the Group was
disposed of and is presented as discontinued operation for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and comparatives for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been re-presented accordingly.

On 29 July 2022, the SPF Group was disposed of and presented as
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been re-
presented accordingly.
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